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FORM 10-K

(Mark One)
ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF EFSECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 19¢
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(Address of principal executive offit (Registrant’s telephone number)

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(ihefAct:

Title of Each Class Name of Each Exchange on Which Reqistere
Common shares of beneficial interest, $.01 parev NYSE MKT

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(ghefct:None
Indicate by check mark whether the Registrantigli:known seasoned issuer (as defined in Rulecf@Be Securities Act). YES = NOY
Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant tsequired to file reports pursuant to Section £3%(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. YES NOY

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant éE) filed all reports required to be filed by Sewnti or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of4l€8ring the preceding
months (or for such shorter period that the regiigtwas required to file such reports), and (2)bdeen subject to such filing requirements for thst®0 days. YEZ  NO__

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant lisntted electronically and posted on its corpok&feb site, if any, every Interactive Data File riegd to be submitted a
posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulatiol §ection 232.405 of this chapter) during the pding 12 months (or for such shorter period thatRegistrant was required
submit and post such files). YBS _ NO__

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquifers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K ig nontained herein, and will not be contained,h® Ibest of the Registrast’
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Indicate by check mark whether the Registrantlarge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a-accelerated filer or a smaller reporting compase the definitions ofldrge
accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer” and “smalfeporting company” in Rule 12b-2 of the ExchaAge. (Check one):

Large accelerated filer_ Accelerated filef Non-accelerated filer Smaller reporting compa__
(Do ratteck if a smaller reporting company)

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrantshell company (as defined in Exchange Act Rule ZRi¥ES__ NOY

The aggregate market value of common shares hetbbsffiliates of the Registrant, based upon the clpsiale price of the Common Shares of Beneficiarggt on June &
2013 as reported on the NYSE MKT, was approxima$8y million. Common Shares of Beneficial Interestd by each officer and trust manager and by gacson who owr
10% or more of theutstanding Common Shares of Beneficial Interesehzeen excluded because such persons may be déerbediffiliates. This determination of affili
status is not necessarily a conclusive determindtipother purposes.

As of March 5, 2014, the Registrant had outstanding§96,220 Common Shares of Beneficial Interest.
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Forward-Looking Statements

This Form 10-K contains certain forwatdeking statements within the meaning of Sectioh 87 the Securities Act of 1933 :
Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1@Bdch are intended to be covered by the safe hrarbreated thereby. These statem
include the plans and objectives of managementuinre operations, including plans and objectivetating to future growth of our loa
receivable and availability of funds. Such forwdodking statements can be identified by the usém¥arddooking terminology such
“may,” “will,” “expect,” “intend,” “believe,” “anti cipate,” “estimate,” or “continue,” or the negative thereof or other variations or dar
words or phrases. The forwatdeking statements included herein are based omeatirexpectations that involve numerous risks
uncertainties identified in this Form 10-K, incladi without limitation, the risks identified undére caption “ltem 1A. Risk Factors.”
Assumptions relating to the foregoing involve judgis with respect to, among other things, futurenemic, competitive and mar
conditions and future business decisions, all atiare difficult or impossible to predict accurbteand many of which are beyond our con
Although we believe that the assumptions underlgiegorwarclooking statements are reasonable, any of the aggans could be inaccurs
and, therefore, there can be no assurance thatdheard-looking statements included in this FormKL@vill prove to be accurate. In light
the significant uncertainties inherent in the forddooking statements included herein, the inclusidnsiach information should not
regarded as a representation by us or any othes@ethat our objectives and plans will be achie\Reladers are cautioned not to place ur
reliance on forward-looking statements. Forwdodking statements speak only as of the date theynade. We do not undertake to up
them to reflect changes that occur after the daéy are made, except to the extent required byicgipé securities laws.

PART |
ltem 1. BUSINESS
INTRODUCTION

PMC Commercial Trust (“PMC Commercial” and togethath its wholly-owned subsidiaries, the “Compan$qur” or “we”) is a ree
estate investment trust (“REITYrganized in 1993 that primarily originates loaossiall businesses collateralized by first lienstlom ree
estate of the related businesses. As a REIT, wk seenaximize shareholder value through Idegn growth in dividends paid to ¢
shareholders. We must distribute at least 90% ofREIT taxable income to shareholders to maintainREIT status. See “Tax Statuur
common shares are traded on the NYSE MKT undesyh#ol “PCC”.Upon completion of the merger, referred to belour, dommon shar:
will be traded on the NASDAQ Global Market undee symbol “PMCT.”

We historically generated revenue primarily frone tield and other fees earned on our investments Mans predominantly
borrowers in the hospitality industry. Our operaidnclude originating, servicing and selling thevgrnment guaranteed portions of cel
loans. During the years ended December 31, 2012@bd, our total revenues were $17.9 million and.$million, respectively, and our |
income (loss) was $2.1 million and ($2.2) millisaspectively. See “Item 8. Financial StatementsSugplementary Data.”

On July 8, 2013, we entered into a definitive meagreement with CIM Urban REIT, LLC (“CIM REIT"g private commercial RE
and subsidiaries of the respective parties. Onugelrll, 2014, PMC Commercial shareholders approeeiin transactions contemplatec
the merger agreement. Approval for the transfeowf SBA 7(a) license was received from the SmakiBess Administration (“SBA"pn
March 10, 2014. The merger is anticipated to bemetad no later than March 31, 2014 based upomsdtisfaction or waiver of all conditio
to the merger.

Pursuant to the merger agreement, an affiliate IM REIT will receive approximately 22.0 million ndyvissued PMC Commerc
common shares and approximately 65.0 million neisdypred PMC Commercial preferred shares. Each peefeshare will be convertible ir
seven common shares, resulting in the issuancen diggregate of approximately 477.2 million commdrarss in the merger and ot
transactions after the conversion representingeqpiately 97.8% of PMC Commercial’s outstandingreka

All PMC Commercial common shares that were outstaposmmediately prior to the transactions will remautstanding following tt
merger and related transactions. In addition, PM@@ercial shareholders of record at the close @bilsiness day prior to the closing of
transactions will receive a special cash divideh®%50 per common share plus that pata portion of our regular quarterly cash divic
accrued through the closing date of the mergerlgayan business days following the completionhefrnerger.
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CIM Urban Partners, L.P. (“CIM Urban")he operating subsidiary of CIM REIT, and its sdimiies invest primarily in substantie
stabilized real estate and real estate-relatedsassdigh density, high barrier-tnatry urban markets throughout North America, whziM
Group, LLC (“CIM Group”), an affiliate of CIM Urbarhas targeted for opportunistic investment ancctviarre likely, in CIM Grougs opinion
to experience abovaverage rent growth relative to national averagetaa their neighboring central business distri€tv Urban is manage
by an affiliate of CIM Group, a related party. CIGfoup is an integrated, full-service investment agger with inhouse research, acquisiti
investment, development, finance, leasing and memagt capabilities. Its headquarters are locaté@$nAngeles, California.

Upon completion of the merger, we plan to (1) iny@#narily in substantially stabilized real estated real estateelated assets in hi
density, high barrier-tentry urban markets throughout North America, manner similar to the current investment stratefg@I Urban ani
(2) continue to originate loans to small businessdisiteralized by first liens on the real estat¢he related businesses, in accordance witl
current investment strategy but with a focus onaexiing our existing business of originating loam®tigh the SBAs 7(a) Guaranteed Lo
Program (“SBA 7(a) Program”).

Our lending business will continue to be manageainyexisting employees and management team. Témtgns of our real est:
business will be managed by CIM Group through astment management agreement (“the Investment dgéamant Agreementthat will
provide the day-to-day management of CIM Urlsaaperations. CIM Group will manage most aspectsusfreal estate business, and
anticipated that PMC Commercial will be the priradifnvestment vehicle through which CIM Group wilace substantially stabilized r
estate investments. We expect to generate additrahse by:

® expanding the existing CIM Urban portfolio thréuiipe acquisition of substantially stabilized restate and real estateglated asse
at yields which are accretive relative to the téedalividend

® increasing the leverage of the CIM Urban real egpatrtfolio from its current ratio to a ratio mareline with the broad universe
REITs, and to the extent additional borrowing isrttavailable, subsequently investing the procesdsadditional investments; al

® expanding over time into new real estate-relatdiVities supported by CIM Groupbroad real estate investment capabilities. 1
activities may include (1) originating and/or intiag in a variety of loan products, including, gt limited to, mezzanine loal
commercial real estate loans and other types ofsloé?) real estate development activities to ereatre property or otherwi
and/or (3) forming an opeended REIT to raise additional capital from inditnal investors, which would involve a joint verd
with CIM Urban.

A condition to completion of the merger was apptasviathe change in ownership of our two Small Besis Investment Compan
(“SBICs”) by the Small Business Investment Company Divisibthe SBA. As part of the approval process, liceagplications were requir
to be submitted for each SBIC. Due to the lengittmgframe associated with the license applicatiamtess, we were unable to obtain the SBA
approval of the SBIC license applications. Themefaipon completion of the merger, the licenses bdllsurrendered. After completion of
merger, we may re-apply for these licenses.

LENDING ACTIVITIES
Overview

We are a national lender that primarily original@sns to small businesses, principally in the lediservice hospitality industry.
addition to first liens on the real estate of telated businesses, our loans are typically persogabranteed by the principals of the ent
obligated on the loans.

We identify loan origination opportunities throughrsonal contacts, internet referrals, attendahtmde shows and meetings, di
mailings, advertisements in trade publications atier marketing methods. We also generate loaosighr referrals from real estate and |
brokers, franchise representatives, existing boereplawyers and accountants.

Loan Originations and Underwriting
We believe that we successfully compete in certaittors of the commercial real estate finance mapkenarily the limited servic

hospitality sector, due to our diligent underwigtiwhich is benefitted by our understanding of oarrbwers’businesses and our respon
customer service.
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We consider traditional underwriting criteria such

The underlying cash flow of the owroperator;

The components, value and replacement cost ofdtrewe''s collateral (primarily real estate
The industry and competitive environment in whieb borrower operate

The financial strength of the guarantc

Analysis of local market condition

The ease with which the collateral can be liquidg

The existence of any secondary repayment sou

Evaluation of the property operator; ¢

The existence of a franchise relationsl

Upon receipt of a completed loan application, owedit department conducts: (1) a detailed analg§ithe potential loan, whi
typically includes a thirgearty licensed appraisal and a valuation by ouditmepartment of the property that will collatézal the loan t
ensure compliance with loan-to-value percentag@sa (site inspection for real estate collateraliteahs, (3) a review of the borrower’
business experience, (4) a review of the borroweréslit history, and (5) an analysis of the borrosvelebt-service-coverage, debtaquity
and other applicable ratios. We also utilize lanakket economic information to the extent available

Loan Portfolio Statistics

Information on our loans receivable was as follows:

At December 31

2013 2012

(Dollars in thousands
Principal outstanding (1 $ 239,60 $ 242,12
Weighted average interest r: 5.8% 5.8%
Average vyield (2 5.7% 5.2%
Weighted average contractual maturity in ye 15.€ 15.t
Hospitality industry concentratic 94.7% 94.3%
Texas concentration (: 13.4% 14.7%

(1) Loans receivable outstanding before loars leserves and deferred commitment fees.

(2) The calculation of average yield divides omterest income, prepayment fees and other lodateé fees, adjusted by -
provision for loan losses, by the weighted avellag@es receivable outstanding.

(3) No other state concentrations greater thaequal to 10% existed at December 31, 2013 or 2

SBA 7(a) Program

First Western SBLC, Inc. (“First Western”), a whpetwned subsidiary of PMC Commercial Trust, is liGoh@s a small busine
lending company (“SBLC") that originates loans tigh the SBA 7(a) Program.

The SBA maintains a Preferred Lender Program wheiteigrants Preferred Lender Program (“PLRtatus to certain lende
originating SBA 7(a) Program loans based on achiere of certain standards in lending which are latyu monitored by the SBA. Fit
Western has been granted national PLP status agidaies, sells and services small business loass Preferred Lender, First Wester
authorized to place SBA guarantees on loans witeeaking prior SBA review and approval. Being damatl lender, PLP status allows F
Western to expedite loans since First Western isaguired to present applications to the SBA fumaurrent review and approval.

We continue to focus on the origination of SBA 7Rapgram loans due to their profitability. We wdithe SBA 7(a) Program
originate small business loans, primarily secungddal estate, and then sell the government gusgdrortion to investors.

The SBA 7(a) Program is the SBAprimary loan program. In general, the SBA reduiss to lenders by guaranteeing major port
of qualified loans made to small businesses. Thabkes lenders to provide financing to small busées when funding may otherwise
unavailable or not available on reasonable terntoAdingly, loans originated using the SBA 7(a) gPam typically have less string
underwriting requirements than loans originatedauralir other loan programs. These differences deomriting will typically be related to tl
age of the property, required equity investmemntjtéd business experience of the borrower and gtineasf guarantors.

4
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We may originate SBA 7(a) Program loans up to $Bianiprimarily to existing businesses, who use fheds for a wide range
business needs including, but not limited to:

® Opening, expanding or acquiring a business or free

* Purchasing commercial real estate and propertyawgments; an

* Refinancing existing business de

The terms of an SBA 7(a) Program loan are primatigginguished from the terms of a conventionahlbg the following:

* A longer term is possibl. We offer up to 25 year amortization periods araturities compared to conventional loans w
typically are a maximum of 20 yea

* Lower down payments are generally requi. SBA loans typically have down payments that aaally 20% of the entire proje
cost while conventional loans generally requiredMsein 25% and 309

* No early balloon payments or prepayment . SBA loans are generally fully amortizing with@iballoon payment at maturity.
addition, if the term is less than 15 years, therm prepayment fe:

Under the SBA 7(a) Program, the SBA typically gméeas 75% of qualified loans over $150,000. WHhike eligibility requirements
the SBA 7(a) Program vary by the industry of therbwer and affiliates and other factors, the gelneligibility requirements include, but ¢
not limited to: (1) gross sales of the borrowerrgatnexceed size standards set by the SBA (i.e.,0$3@lion for limited service hospitali
properties) or alternatively average net incomenoaexceed $5.0 million for the most recent twedisyears for the borrower and affilial
(2) liquid assets of the borrower cannot exceedifipd limits, (3) tangible net worth of the borrewand affiliates must be less than $.
million, (4) the borrower must be a U.S. citizenlegal permanent resident and (5) the maximum aggeeSBA loan guarantees to a borrc
cannot exceed $3.75 million. Maximum maturities 8BA 7(a) Program loans are 25 years for real @estat 10 years for the purchas
machinery, furniture, fixtures and/or equipmentohder to operate as an SBLC, a licensee is regjtirenaintain a minimum regulatory cap
(as defined by SBA regulations) of the greater1gfl0% of its outstanding loans receivable and roifneestments or (2) $1.0 million, anc
subject to certain other regulatory restrictionshsas change in control provisions. First Westsrpdriodically examined and audited by
SBA to determine compliance with SBA regulations.

TAX STATUS

PMC Commercial has elected to be taxed as a RE#Enthe Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amertded' Code”).As a REIT
PMC Commercial is generally not subject to Fed@émabme tax (including any applicable alternativenimum tax) to the extent that
distributes at least 90% of its REIT taxable incoimeshareholders. Certain of PMC Commersiaubsidiaries have elected to be treatt
taxable REIT subsidiaries; thus, their earnings subject to U.S. Federal income tax. To the extMiC Commerciab taxable REI
subsidiaries retain their earnings and profitss¢éhearnings and profits will be unavailable fotrdisition to our shareholders.

PMC Commercial may, however, be subject to ceff@ideral excise taxes and state and local taxes axcome and property. If PN
Commercial fails to qualify as a REIT in any taxalkar, it will be subject to Federal income taaesegular corporate rates (including
applicable alternative minimum tax) and will not &lgle to qualify as a REIT for four subsequent dexgears. REITs are subject to a nun
of organizational and operational requirements urtde Code. See “ltem 1A. Risk Factors — REIT RelaRisks”for additional tax stati
information.

EMPLOYEES

We employed 32 individuals including marketing gedionals, investment professionals, operationfegsimnals and administrat
staff as of December 31, 2013. We have employmgmeanents with our two executive officers. At Debem31, 2013, our operations w
centralized in Dallas, Texas. We believe the refehip with our employees is good.

COMPETITION
Lending

When originating loans we compete with other sggciecommercial lenders, SBA 7(a) lenders, banksker dealers, other REI
savings and loan associations, insurance companié®ther entities that originate loans. Many efsthcompetitors have greater financial
managerial resources than us, are able to prowidéces we are not able to provided ., depository services), and may be better at
withstand the impact of economic downturns.
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Variable-rate lending For our variable-rate loan products, we believecampete effectively on the basis of interest raves,long-
term maturities and payment schedules, the qualityur service, our reputation in the marketplao®] greater responsiveness to renewa
refinancing requests from borrowers.

Fixed-rate lending:In the current market, borrowers are looking premhaely for fixedrate loans; however, to date, our abilit
offer fixed+ate loans has been limited by our cost of capital availability of funds. Upon completion of thesmger, we do not anticipz
originating fixed-rate loans.

CIM Urban

CIM Urban’s office portfolio competes with a humber of deypels, owners and operators of office real estatmynof which ow
properties similar to CIM Urban in the same marletahich its properties are located.

CIM Urban’s hotel portfolio competes for guestsnpaiily with other hotels in the immediate vicinitf CIM Urban’s hotels an
secondarily with other hotels in the geographicathat of CIM Urban’s hotels.

There are numerous housing alternatives that campith CIM Urbans apartment communities in attracting residentgséhinclud
other apartment communities and sinfgletily homes that are available for rent in the ke#s in which the communities are located. ¢
Urban also faces competition from other real estatestment funds, businesses and other entitidseicquisition, development and opere
of apartment communities.

SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT REPORTS

We file with or furnish to the Securities and Exagja Commission (“SEC")n accordance with the Securities Exchange Acta¥4:
as amended (the “Exchange Act”) our annual repmitform 10-K, our quarterly reports on Form 10-@ anr current reports on Formks-
These reports are available free of charge on alsite, www.pmctrust.com/investors, as soon a®onedny practicable after we electronici
file the information with the SEC. We are providitige address to our internet site solely for ttiermation of investors. We do not intend
address to be an active link or to otherwise inomafe the contents of the website into this report.

The SEC maintains an internet site, www.sec.gogt ttontains reports, proxy and information stateasemd other informatic
regarding issuers that file electronically with BEC.
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Item 1A. RISK FACTORS

The following information should be read in conjtioc with Part Il, Item 7, “Managemerd’ Discussion and Analysis of Finan
Condition and Results of Operations” and the Coitsdbed Financial Statements and related notes int Raltem 8, “Financial Statemen
and Supplemental Data” of this Form X0-Due to our complexity, a wide range of factoosild materially affect our future developments
performance. In addition to the factors affectimesific business operations identified in connattiath the description of these operati
and the financial results of these operations diésct elsewhere in this report, management has ifilthtthe following important factors tt
could cause actual results to differ materiallyrfrdghose reflected in forwarddoking statements or from our historical resulthiese factor
which are not allinclusive, could have a material impact on our assduations, results of operations or financialndition and could als
impair our ability to maintain dividend distributis at current or anticipated levels. We anticiptite completion of the merger with CIM R
to occur no later than March 31, 2014; thereforiskrfactors are provided for the operations of twnbined company, CIM REIT and
lending activities of PMC Commercial Trust.

General Risks- Combined Company

If PMC Commercial fails to maintain an effective sytem of internal control over financial reporting, it may not be able to accuratel
report its financial results or prevent fraud. As aresult, shareholders could lose confidence in PMCommercial's financial and othel
public reporting, which would harm the business andhe trading price of PMC Commercial’s common shars.

CIM Urban was previously privately owned and ndbjeat to complying with the rules and regulatiopplécable to publicly trade
companies including, without limitation, those betSecurities and Exchange Commission (“SE@&tional securities exchanges and
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board, fedenad state securities laws and the Sarbanes-OxlepfA2002 (“Sarbanes-Oxley Agt”
Following completion of the merger with CIM UrbaRMC Commercial will continue as a public companyjeat to Section 404 of t
Sarbane®xley Act relating to internal controls over finaacreporting. As such, PMC Commercial will be regd to expand and integr:
CIM Urban into its internal controls and procedures

Effective internal controls over financial repogiare necessary for PMC Commercial to provide b&difinancial reports and, toget
with adequate controls and procedures, are designpeevent fraud. Any failure to integrate CIM @rband its controls and procedures ¢
implement required new or improved controls, oficlifities encountered in their integration or implentation, could cause PMC Commet
to fail to meet its reporting obligations. In adilit, any testing by PMC Commercial or its indepenidegistered public accounting fi
conducted in connection with Section 404 of theb8aes-Oxley Act may reveal deficiencies in PMC Caruoial's internal controls ov
financial reporting that are deemed to be materedknesses or that may require prospective oragik@ changes to its consolidated finar
statements or identify other areas for furtherrditbe or improvement. Inferior internal controlsubd also cause investors to lose confiden
PMC Commercial’s reported financial information, ialh could have a negative effect on the tradinggouf PMC Commerciat’ commo
shares.

PMC Commercial is required to disclose changes niades internal control procedures on a quartérdgsis and its managemen
required to assess the effectiveness of theseatsmnnually. Management's and PMC Commersiaidependent registered public accour
firm's assessment of these controls related to Clidan and its subsidiaries will not occur until PM@mmercials Annual Report on For
10-K for the year ending December 31, 2014. An jpreaelent assessment of the effectiveness of PMC @oomis internal controls cou
detect problems that its management’s assessmght not. Undetected material weaknesses in PMC Gangial’s internal controls could le
to financial statement restatements and requiteiitcur any expense of remediation.

If PMC Commercial is unable to integrate successfly the operations of CIM Urban, its business and rsults of operations may b
negatively affected.

The merger involves the integration of companigsictv previously operated as a publicly traded R&ti# a privately owned limit
partnership, that had operated independently fraoh ether. Successful integration of the operat@inGIM Urban will depend primarily ¢
PMC Commerciab ability to consolidate business, operations, ndts; systems, technologies, policies and procaddiee merger also po:
other risks commonly associated with similar tratisas, including unanticipated liabilities, unegped costs and the diversion
managemens attention to the integration of the operationP®IC Commercial and CIM Urban. PMC Commercial maylve able to integre
CIM Urban’s operations without encountering difficulties, luding, but not limited to, the loss of key emplege the disruption of i
respective ongoing businesses or possible incemsigts in standards, controls, policies and praeeduf PMC Commercial has difficulti
with any of these integrations, this may harm itsibess and/or financial results.

7
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The future consolidated results of PMC Commercial ad its subsidiaries, including CIM Urban, after the merger may suffer if PMC
Commercial does not effectively manage its expandexgperations following the merger.

PMC Commercial may continue to expand its operatibnough additional acquisitions and other stiatebgnsactions, some of wh
may involve complex challenges. The future sucoé$aMC Commercial and its subsidiaries will depeindpart, upon its ability to manage
expansion opportunities, integrate new operationstasiness lines in an efficient and timely manseccessfully monitor its operations, cc
regulatory compliance and service quality and na@&mntother necessary internal controls. PMC ComraBsciexpansion or acquisiti
opportunities may not be successful, and the coethitompany may not realize its expected operatffigiencies, cost savings, rever
enhancements, synergies or other benefits.

PMC Commercial cannot assure you that it will be ake to pay dividends.

PMC Commercial plans to pay a quarterly dividendf04375 per PMC Commercial common share aftermtémger, which is le:
than the historical PMC Commercial dividend paitheTpayment of such dividends to PMC Commercial edi@ders may be impacted
various factors, including the following:

* We may not have enough capital resources to pdy diwvadends due to changes in our cash requiremeaystal spending plar

cash flow or financial positior

* Holders of PMC Commercial preferred shares aretledtio receive dividends prior to holders of PM@n@nercial commc

shares and there may be insufficient cash to pagetids on PMC Commercial common shares after dlyenpnt of dividends
holders of the PMC Commercial preferred shs

® Decisions on whether, when and in which amountead&e any future dividends will remain at all tineegtirely at the discretion

the Board of Trust Managers, which reserves thiet ig change PMC Commercialdividend practices at any time and for
reason

* To the extent that PMC Commercial obtains credihgs, PMC Commercial may desire to retain casm&intain or improve i

credit ratings; ani

® The amount of dividends that PMC Commersiatubsidiaries may distribute to PMC Commerciabubject to restrictior

imposed by the SBA and may be subject to restristimposed by state law, restrictions that mayntygoised by state regulatc
and restrictions imposed by the terms of any ctirvefuture indebtedness that these subsidiarigsintar.

PMC Commercial’'s shareholders have no contractuather legal right to dividends that have not bdealared.

We operate in a highly regulated environment and susequent changes could adversely affect our finaradicondition and/or results o
operations.

As a company whose common shares are publicly drage are subject to the rules and regulationh@fSEC. In addition, some
our lending operations are regulated by the SBAar@ls in laws that govern our entities may sigaifity affect our business. Laws
regulations may be changed from time to time, draihterpretations of the relevant laws and regardatare also subject to change. .
change in the laws or regulations governing ouirtass could have a material impact on our finarmaldition and/or results of operations.

Changes in accounting standards may adversely impgaour financial condition and/or results of operatons.

As a company whose common shares are publiclydragde are subject to the rules and regulationsi®fd.S. Financial Accountil
Standards Board (“FASB”) related to generally atedpaccounting principles (“GAAP"Various changes to GAAP are constantly b
considered, some of which could materially impaat meported financial condition and/or results pemtions. Also, to the extent publi
traded companies in the U.S. would be requiretiénftiture to prepare financial statements in acowrd with International Financial Report
Standards (“IFRS")nstead of the current GAAP in the U.S, this chaimgaccounting standards could materially impaat reported financi:
condition and/or results of operations.
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PMC Commercial depends on the experience and expé&é of its key personnel and the loss of the serei of its key personnel cou
have a material adverse affect on our business stegy, financial condition and results of operations

We depend on the efforts, diligence, skill, netwofkbusiness contacts and close supervision osglects of our business by
executive management team and following completibthe merger, the senior management team of CllalrREIT Management, L.
(“Advisor), a limited partnership that provides dayday management of CIM Urbanbperations. The loss of any members of exec
management could harm PMC Commersidlusiness strategy, financial condition and resaflioperations. In addition, the loss of eithethz
executive officers of PMC Commercial Trust wouldisa an event of default on PMC Commercial Trugislving credit facility.

CIM Service Provider, LLC (“Manager”) will have the right to manage the business of PMC @nmercial and certain of its subsidiarie
pursuant to a Master Services Agreement and othernvestment management agreements. Notwithstanding ehfact that thess
agreements provide broad discretion and authority ad the payment of fees to the Manager, the agreemtsnmay be assigned by tt
Manager in certain circumstances without PMC Commecial's consent and may not be terminated by PMC Commerai, except ir
the case of the Master Services Agreement, in lineitl circumstances for cause, either or both of whichmay have a material advers
effect on PMC Commercial.

Effective upon completion of the merger, the Mamagel PMC Commercial will enter into the Masterg@s Agreement pursuant
which the Manager has the right to provide or deatg third parties to provide various management @fministrative services to P)
Commercial and its direct and indirect subsidiaries1C Commercial will be obligated to pay the Magsiag quarterly base service fee
$250,000 for the provision of base services andketarate transaction fees for transactional an@roffervices that the Manager elect
provide to PMC Commercial. Pursuant to the termghef Master Services Agreement, the Manager willehthe right to provide ai
transactional services to PMC Commercial that ithdetherwise engage a third party to provide.

Pursuant to the terms of the Master Services Agee¢nthe Manager may also recommend new busingssrtopities to PM!
Commercial for its approval and will make a recomagion as to whether each such new business sheuliternally managed or externi
managed and if externally managed, the externabhgemand the terms of the management agreeméiné piroposed external manager is t
the Manager, PMC Commercislindependent Trust Managers must approve theideds make such new business externally managd
terms of the applicable management agreement.ch siew business is to be internally managed, thedder will oversee the hiring
personnel and the implementation of internal mamea as a transactional service.

The Master Services Agreement continues in futécand effect until December 31, 2018, and thezeafill renew automatically ea
year. PMC Commercial may generally only termin&ie Master Services Agreement for the Man’s material breach of the Master Serv
Agreement, fraud, gross negligence or willful misdoct or if in certain limited circumstances, amge of control of the Manager occurs
PMC Commerciab independent Trust Managers determine to be ralyedetrimental to PMC Commercial and its subsiédis as a whol
PMC Commercial does not have the right to termirtlatgeMaster Services Agreement solely for the gmformance of PMC Commercial
operations or any investment made by PMC Commeotighe recommendation of the Manager. Pursuatitedaster Services Agreeme
PMC Commercial has agreed to appoint a membereoManager or any of its affiliates, as designatgdhe Manager, as the manager
“Urban GP Manager”) of Urban Partners GP, LLC, ¢geaeral partner of CIM Urban (“CIM Urban GPTiy addition, any removal of Urban ¢
Manager as manager of CIM Urban GP pursuant tovthster Services Agreement will not affect the rggbf the Manager under the Ma:
Services Agreement. Accordingly, the Manager wilhtinue to provide the base services and receiwddse service fee, and the Manag
the applicable service provider will continue t@myide the transactional services and receive tesaiction fees, under the Master Sen
Agreement.

Further, the Master Services Agreement may be madipy the Manager without the consent of PMC Coraiakin the case of ¢
assignment by the Manager to an affiliate or artyetitat is a successor through merger or acqaisitf the business of the Manager. In ce
circumstances, including the merger or other adtiprsof the business of the Manager, the amounfeets being paid pursuant to
agreements or the poor performance by the Man&)4€, Commercial may desire to terminate one or nobtee management agreements
a result of the limited termination rights undeesh agreements, it may not have the right to textmiauch agreement(s), which could ha
material adverse effect on PMC Commercial.
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Future sales of PMC Commercial's common shares magause its market price to drop significantly, evernif PMC Commercial’ s
business is doing well.

Urban Partners Il, LLC (“Urban I1")the members of which will be CIM REIT and CIM Urb&artners GP, LLC, is entitled
registration rights, subject to certain limitatiomdth respect to the PMC Commercial securitiewiit receive upon completion of the mer
pursuant to the Registration Rights and Lockup Agrent. Urban Il is entitled to require PMC Commaladn up to eight occasions, to regi
under the Securities Act of 1933 the PMC Commercaahmon shares it receives in the merger and th€ BMdmmercial common sha
issuable upon conversion of the PMC Commercialgorel shares it receives in the merger.

In accordance with lockup provisions included ia BRegistration Rights and Lockup Agreement, Urbbas hot permitted to engage
public sales of the PMC Commercial common sharegdeives in the merger (and the PMC Commercialnaom shares issuable uj
conversion of the PMC Commercial preferred sharesceives in the merger) until after the m&nth anniversary of the consummation of
merger without restriction, provided that thesdrretions do not apply with respect to 40 millioME Commercial common shares six mol
following the merger with the prior approval of ajurity of the independent Trust Managers. Thel $¥e no lockup restrictions appliec
private sales of transfer of such shares.

Following the expiration of the lockup restrictigisere may be significant peap demand by CIM REIT to sell its PMC Commer
common shares. A large volume of sales of PMC Comiadecommon shares could decrease the prevailiagkeh price of the PM
Commercial common shares and could impair PMC Cormiadés ability to raise additional capital through tleesof equity securities in t
future. Even if a substantial number of sales of@®P®@bmmercial common shares do not occur, the memeeption of the possibility of the
sales could depress the market price of PMC Comriadleztommon shares and have a negative effect on Rdd@mercials ability to rais
capital in the future.

Certain of PMC Commercial’s Trust Managers and executive officers after the erger may face conflicts of interest related to pdons
they hold with the Advisor, CIM Group and their affiliates, which could result in decisions that are at in the best interest of PM(
Commercial’s shareholders.

Following completion of the merger, PMC Commerdaaticipates that some of its Trust Managers andwdke officers will by
individuals who are also part owners, officers diréctors of CIM Group, the Advisor, the Managed dheir affiliates. As a result, they n
owe fiduciary duties to these various other erdied their equity owners, which fiduciary dutieaynfrom time to time conflict with tt
fiduciary duties they owe to PMC Commercial andsisreholders. Further, these multiple responsdslimay create conflicts of interest
these individuals if they are presented with opyuties that may benefit PMC Commercial and thétreo affiliates. The individuals may
incentivized to allocate investment opportunitie®ther entities rather than to PMC Commercial.iTlogalties to other affiliated entities cot
result in actions or inactions that are detrimettd®MC Commercial's business, strategy and investropportunities.

If PMC Commercial and CIM Urban seek to internalize the management functions provided pursuant to theMaster Service!
Agreement and the Investment Management Agreementhere is no assurance that PMC Commercial could redh agreements witl
the Manager and the Advisor and PMC Commercial cowd incur substantial costs and lose certain key peosinel.

At some point in the future, the Board of Trust Mgars may determine that it is in the best inteosff®IMC Commercial and ClI
Urban to become setfranaged by internalizing the functions performedh®y Manager and the Advisor and to terminate tlastst Service
Agreement and the Investment Management Agreentémivever, neither PMC Commercial nor CIM Urban hbe unilateral right t
terminate the Master Services Agreement or thesinvent Management Agreement, and neither the Mamagethe Advisor would t
obligated to enter into an internalization trangactvith PMC Commercial or CIM Urban. There is ngsarance that a mutually accept
agreement with these entities as to the termsepintiernalization could be reached. In additioe, ¢bsts that PMC Commercial and CIM Ur
would incur in any such internalization transact&sa uncertain and could be substantial.

Further, if PMC Commercial and CIM Urban were tteimalize these management functions, certain kgyl@/ees may not becol
employees of PMC Commercial but may instead reraaiployees of the Manager and the Advisor or thesipective affiliates, especially if 1
management functions are internalized but the Managd the Advisor are not acquired by PMC Comnaérdn inability to manage
internalization transaction could effectively rasalPMC Commercial incurring excess costs andesirff) deficiencies in its disclosure cont
and procedures or its internal control over finahceporting. These deficiencies could cause intwur additional costs, and management
attention could be diverted from most effectivelgmaging its investments, which could result imdurring unanticipated costs in connec
with any internalization transaction.
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The Manager’s and Advisor’'s fees are payable regafdss of CIM Urban’s and PMC Commercial’s performance, which may reduc
their incentive to devote time and resources to CIMJrban’s portfolio.

Pursuant to the Master Services Agreement whichbgdome effective after the merger, the Managérbeientitled to receive a bz
services fee of $1 million per year, regardlesshef performance of PMC Commercial, and will alsoelétled to receive fees related to
provision of transactional and other services. Aleisor will be entitled to receive an asset mamaget fee based upon the gross asset va
CIM Urban’s assets, including any assets acquise@IM Urban in the future. The Manager’'s and theviddr’s entitlement to substantial non-
performance based compensation might reduce tie@ntive to devote their time and effort to seekingfitable opportunities for CIM Urbas’
portfolio.

The Advisor, the Manager and their respective affiates may engage in additional management or invesent opportunities which
compete with PMC Commercial and its subsidiaries, Wich could result in decisions that are not in thebest interests of PM(
Commercial’s shareholders.

The Investment Management Agreement with the Advésa the Master Services Agreement with the Mandgenot prevent tt
Advisor and the Manager, as applicable, and thespective affiliates from engaging in additionalnagement or investment opportunit
some of which could compete with PMC Commercial asdubsidiaries. The Advisor, the Manager and ttespective affiliates may engge
in additional management or investment opportusitieat have overlapping objectives with CIM Urband may thus face conflicts in
allocation of investment opportunities to theseeotmvestments. Allocation of investment opportigsitis at the discretion of the Advi:
and/or the Manager and there is no guaranteefitsaaltocation would be made in the best interésh® PMC Commercial shareholders.

Risks Related to the Merger

Our shareholders will experience significant immedite dilution in percentage ownership and effectiveoting power as a consequence
the issuance of the common shares and preferred siea to Urban Il as consideration in the merger.

The merger will significantly dilute the ownershimsition and effective voting power of our shareleos as of the merger ds
Following the issuance of the common shares anfépegl shares to Urban Il pursuant to the mergezeagent (and assuming conversio
the preferred shares pursuant to the merger agregmer shareholders at the merger date will fagddroximately 2.2% of the common shi
issued and outstanding immediately after consunumatf the merger.

Our shareholders cannot be certain of the market Mae of the common shares and preferred shares thatill be issued to Urban Il if the
merger is completed.

In connection with the closing of the merger, wél vgsue 22,000,003 common shares and 65,028,58femped shares to Urban
Because the number of shares to be issued in coomedth the merger is fixed, the market valuettodé shares issued in connection with
merger will depend upon the market price of a comralbare upon completion of the merger. The markftevof our common shares \
fluctuate prior to completion of the merger andréfiere may be different at the time the mergerossummated than it was at the time
merger agreement was negotiated, signed and dintkeof the special meeting on February 11, 20har& price changes may result fro
variety of factors that are beyond our control,luding general market andconomic conditions and changes in business prts
Accordingly, our shareholders cannot be certaithefmarket value of the shares that will be isgoddrban Il in connection with the mergel
the market value of our common shares at any tiitee the merger.

The market price of our common shares may declinesaa result of the merger.

The market price of our common shares may decbne @esult of the merger if we do not achieve tregived benefits of the mer
as rapidly as or to the extent anticipated byhersholders or financial or industry analysts her éffect of the merger on our financial resul
not consistent with the expectations of our shdose or financial or industry analysts.

In addition, following the merger, our shareholdefl own interests in a company with an expandediibess with a different mix
assets, risks and liabilities. Existing sharehadaay not wish to continue to invest in us postrger, or for other reasons may wish to dis
of some or all of their common shares. If, follogithe merger, large amounts of common shares veddethe price of common shares cc
decline substantially.
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The merger will result in changes to the Board of Tust Managers and initially, a majority of the Trust Managers will be affiliated with
the Advisor and will not be independent; and Urbanll will have effective control over the outcome ofall actions requiring the
approval of our shareholders, which might adversehaffect the market price of our common shares.

After the closing of the merger and assuming cosiver of the preferred shares, Urban Il will own @p@mately 97.8% of ol
outstanding common shares. As a result, PMC Comatesdl be a “controlled company,ivhich is a company in which over 50% of
voting power is held by an individual, a group aother company. As a “controlled companwyé will not be required to comply with cert
national securities exchange rules requiring adoadirectors with a majority of independent dimrs, a compensation committee compi
entirely of independent directors and a nominatiogmittee composed entirely of independent directour other shareholders will not h
the same corporate governance protections thawtbeld otherwise have if we were not a controllechpany.

Urban Il will have the ability to determine the ooine of all corporate actions of PMC Commercialuigng shareholder approv
including the ability to elect or remove all of tleust Managers. Following the closing of the mergfee Board of Trust Managers will con
of four Trust Managers who are affiliated with thdvisor and three independent Trust Managers whe wecommended for membershig
the Board of Trust Managers by the Advisor. Accogllf, we will not have the benefit of a Board ofu$t Managers with a majority
independent Trust Managers, and there is a rigkltleainterests of Urban Il and these Trust Mansgeéll not be consistent with the interest
other holders of common shares.

In addition to the effects described above, thiscemtration of ownership may have the effect oblielg or preventing a change
control and might adversely affect the market pateur common shares.

After the merger is completed, Urban Il will control the vote required for the conversion of the prefered shares into common shares 1
occur, which could materially and adversely affecthe holders of our common shares (and preferred shas) if such conversion i
delayed or does not occur at all.

The Board of Trust Managers has authorized thearsseiof preferred shares, consisting of 65,028(H#@&s A Convertible Cumulati
Preferred Shares, $.01 par value per share (lijaidareference $17.50 per share). The preferradestwill rank senior to our common she
as to distributions and with respect to distribmtiights or payments upon liquidation, dissolutmmwinding up of PMC Commercial. T
holders of the preferred shares will be entitleddoeive, when and as authorized by the Board astTManagers and declared by P
Commercial, cumulative distributions at the rate2®6 of $35.00 per share per year; provided th#tefpreferred shares are converted ¢
before the date that is six months from the eféectiate of the merger (which date may be extendedta certain force majeure event:
provided for under the terms of the preferred sfjathe distribution amount payable on the pretesieares will be calculated at the rat
3.5% of $35.00 per year. Pursuant to the mergeresigent, each preferred share will automaticallwedninto seven common shares on
first business day on which, pursuant to our Datian of Trust, there are sufficient authorized buaissued shares to convert all of
preferred shares into common shares.

Pursuant to the merger agreement, if the mergenwpleted, CIM REIT has agreed to cause PMC Comaieemnd PMC Commerci
has agreed, to hold another meeting of our shadel®las soon as practicable thereafter to appeoieng other things, an increase in
number of authorized common shares to one billibaréby satisfying the condition for the automatoiversion of the preferred shares is:
in connection with the merger into an aggregaté5,199,997 common shares). After the merger ispbeted, Urban 1l will hold a sufficie
number of shares to control the vote requiredtierdonversion of the preferred shares to occuhdrevent that the conversion of the prefe
shares into common shares is delayed or does nat at all, the rights of the holders of commonrebkdas well as the preferred shares) ¢
be materially and adversely affected.

After the merger is completed, Urban Il is expectedo make a reincorporation occur, which will causeghe holders of common shares -
have different rights that may be less advantageoubkan their current rights.

After the closing of the merger, our shareholdees expected to be asked to approve a reincorparatothat PMC Commercial’
corporate governance and the rights of its shadelnslwill be governed by Maryland law, a Marylatiter and Maryland bylaws, insteac
Texas law, our existing Declaration of Trust andsgxg bylaws. Urban 1l will hold a sufficient nurabof shares to control the vote require
make the reincorporation occur. Following any reiporation, holders of our common shares will halféerent rights that may be le
advantageous than the rights they currently have.
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PMC Commercial and CIM REIT have entered into a seiement regarding the derivative and class actionitigation related to the
merger and other transactions; the settlement remais subject to final court approval and completion the merger, and there is ni
assurance that any or all of our shareholders wilbenefit from such settlement.

On October 9, 2013, certain of our shareholdeesifa lawsuit against PMC Commercial, members of RB&Gmercials Board ¢
Trust Managers and executive officers and CIM Ré&hallenging the proposed merger. As of Januar@84, PMC Commercial and the ot
defendants entered into a settlement agreementsuih PMC Commercial shareholders to settle theative and class action litigation.

While the settlement required Manager to implengetrading plan under Rule 10li5immediately following the closing of the mer
to purchase up to 2.75 million shares of PMC Conwiaéat prices up to $5.00 per share, there candbassurance as to the impact tha
trading plan will have upon the liquidity or mark@tice for such shares. Under the terms of théese¢int, the trading plan, will, in gene
expire on the date that 2.75 million shares havenhmirchased or August 10, 2014, whichever isexarlihere can be no assurance th:
2.75 million shares will be purchased by August2@14, in which case any benefits of the tradirappgb our shareholders may not be 1
realized. Further, there can be no assurance lieaPMC Commercial common shares held by any péaticihareholder may be purcha
under the trading plan because the number of mdistg PMC Commercial common shares substantialgeds 2.75 million shares. Furtl
the terms of the trading plan and compliance wijpligable law may limit the number of shares than effectively be purchased under
trading plan to less than 2.75 million shares. Adowly, there can be no assurance that all shidetsowho desire to have their shi
purchased under the trading plan will be able tesa@or that any such shareholder will be able teehbe desired number of shares purchas
at an attractive price. Additionally, because te&lement remains subject to final court approvad @& conditioned on completion of
merger, there is no assurance that the terms dfettiement, including the trading plan, will beplemented. Finally, after the trading pla
complete, the trading market for our shares magduatively affected due to decreased float, tradaigme or liquidity. Any such reduction
float, trading volume or liquidity may make it mad#ficult to buy or sell our shares without affexg the market price or at all.

Risks Related to CIM Urban's Business and Properties

The following risk factors apply to the business! aperations of CIM Urban and also will apply toetkkonsolidated business ¢
operations of PMC Commercial upon completion of ierger anticipated no later than March 31, 2014y /of the risk factors describ
below could significantly and adversely affect thenbined compang’business, prospects, ability to pay dividendegmees, gross profit, ca
flows, financial condition and results of operatso

Capital and credit market conditions may adverselyaffect demand for CIM Urban’s properties and the overall availability and cosbf
credit.

In periods when the capital and credit markets Bgpee significant volatility, demand for CIM Urbanproperties and the ovel
availability and cost of credit may be adverselgetied. No assurances can be given that the capithtredit market conditions will not hav
material adverse effect on CIM Urban’s busineswritial condition or results of operations.

In addition, CIM Urbars business and results of operations could be selyeaffected by significant volatility in the cégdiand cred

markets as follows:

* The tenants in CIM Urbas’office properties may experience a deterioratiotheir sales or other revenue, or experien
constraint on the availability of credit necessarjund operations, which in turn may adversely actthose tenantshility to pay
contractual base rents and tenant recoveries. $&ma@ts may terminate their occupancy due to ailityato operate profitabl
for an extended period of time, impacting CIM Ur’'s ability to maintain occupancy leve

® Constraints on the availability of credit to termamecessary to purchase and install improveméxitistes and equipment and
fund start-up business expenses, could impact Cibhtls ability to procure new tenants for spaces curargcant in existin
office properties or properties under developmentt

e CIM Urban’s joint venture and other aovestment partners could experience difficultyadfing financing in the future for t
same reasons discussed above. Their inability tairofinancing on acceptable terms, or at all, donégatively impact ClI
Urbar’s ability to acquire additional properti¢

13



Table of Contents

Current general economic conditions could have andwerse effect on the office, lodging and apartmemommunities industries.

The United States continues to be in a post-remeasy slowgrowth environment, which has experienced histdlyidaigh levels o
unemployment. Uncertainty over the depth and domatif this economic environment continues to hawegative impact on the office, lodg
and apartment communities industries. There is speneral consensus among economists that the egandime United States emerged fi
a recessionary environment in 2009, but high uneympént levels were evident in 2010, 2011, 2012 20183. As a result, CIM Urban and
office, lodging and apartment communities industmeay, among other things, experience reductiongvenue resulting from lower rer
rates and occupancy levels. Accordingly, CIM Urlsafinancial results could be impacted by the ecananvironment, and future financ
results and growth could be further harmed untih@are expansive national economic environment ivglemt. A weaker than anticipa
economic recovery, or a return to a recessionatiomal economic environment, could result in low decreased levels of business
consumer travel, negatively impacting the lodgindustry. Moreover, in the event of another recesdioe office and apartment communi
industries could experience reductions in rentes;aoccupancy levels, property valuations andemses in operating costs such as adver
and turnover expenses. Such an economic outconié atso negatively impact CIM Urban and its tenafiture growth prospects and co
significantly impact their results of operations.

CIM Urban'’s operating performance is subject to riks associated with the lodging industry.

The success of CIM Urban’s hotel properties depdadsgely on the property operatomability to adapt to dominant trends in
lodging industry as well as disruptions such astgrecompetitive pressures, increased consolidatimustry overbuilding, dependence
consumer spending patterns and changing demoggghi introduction of new concepts and produataijlability of labor, price levels a
macroeconomic and microeconomic conditions. Theesg of a particular hotel brand, the ability dfcel brand to fulfill any obligations
operators of its business, and trends in the laggidustry may affect CIM Urban’s income and casailable for dividends.

The lodging industry could also experience a sigaift decline in occupancy and average daily rdtesto a reduction in busin
and/or leisure travel. General economic conditiams,eased fuel costs, natural disasters and termttacks are a few factors that could a
an individual's willingness to travel.

A majority of CIM Urban’ s properties, by aggregate net operating income amhjuare feet, are located in California and the Disict of
Columbia. CIM Urban is dependent on the Californiaand the District of Columbia office and hotel markes and economics, and
therefore susceptible to risks of events in those arkets that could adversely affect CIM Urban’s business, such as adverse marl
conditions, changes in local laws or regulations ahnatural disasters.

Because CIM Urbars’ properties in California (and particularly, in Kend, California) and the District of Columbia repent
significant portion of CIM Urbars portfolio by aggregate net operating income anehee feet, CIM Urban is exposed to greater econoisis
than if it owned a more geographically dispersedfplio. CIM Urban is susceptible to adverse depet@nts in the California (and particula
in Oakland) and the District of Columbia economicl aegulatory environments (such as business Ilsymfidownsizing, industry slowdow
relocations of businesses, increases in real estatether taxes, costs of complying with governialeregulations or increased regulation
other factors) as well as natural disasters thaumoi these areas (such as earthquakes, floodothed events). In addition, the State
California is also regarded as more litigious amatenhighly regulated and taxed than many stateg;hamay reduce demand for office i
hotel space in California. Any adverse developménthie economy or real estate markets in Califoifaind particularly, in Oakland) or -
District of Columbia, or any decrease in demanddffice or hotel space resulting from the Califarrfand particularly, in Oakland) or -
District of Columbia regulatory or business envir@nts, could adversely impact CIM Urbarfinancial condition, results of operations
cash flow.

Investments in office buildings that have governmentenants are subject to the risks associated witlkonducting business with th
Federal government.

Investments in office buildings that have governtritenants are subject to risks associated with wctity business with the Fede
government. Congressional action to reduce budgstanding by the United States could limit theding of government agencies or of
organizations. Adverse developments and/or conditiaffecting government tenants could reduce denfandspace, impact the credit-
worthiness of such tenants or force such tenantuttail operations, which could impair their atyilto meet their rent obligations to C
Urban and, accordingly, could have a material aslveffect on CIM Urbas’ results of operations. The risks of conductingitess with th
Federal government also include the risk of cimidl &riminal fines and the risk of public scrutiny@M Urban’s performance at high prof
sites.
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CIM Urban'’s operating performance is subject to riks associated with the real estate industry.

Real estate investments are subject to various askl fluctuations and cycles in value and demarahy of which are beyond {
control of CIM Urban. Certain events may decreasgh@vailable for dividends, as well as the valu€IM Urban’s properties. These eve
include, but are not limited to:

Adverse changes in economic and socioeconomic tionslj

Vacancies or CIM Urbé's inability to rent space on favorable ter

Adverse changes in financial conditions of buyeediers and tenants of properti

Inability to collect rent from tenant

Competition from other real estate investors wigngicant capital, including other real estate @giing companies, public

traded REITs and institutional investment fur

® Reductions in the level of demand for office, hadeld apartment community space and changes inethdve popularity ¢
properties
Increases in the supply of office, hotel and apanihtommunity spac

* Fluctuations in interest rates, which could adebr affect CIM Urbars ability, or the ability of buyers and tenantgodperties, t
obtain financing on favorable terms or at

* Dependence on third parties to provide leasingkdrage, property management and other servicdsrespect to CIM Urbag’
investments

® Increases in expenses, including insurance casbey Icosts, utility prices, real estate assessnardsother taxes and costs
compliance with laws, regulations and governmeticigs, and CIM Urbars inability to pass on some or all of these inczséte
CIM Urbar’s tenants; an

® Changes in and changes in enforcement of, laws)aggns and government policies, including, withbenitation, health, safet
environmental, zoning and tax laws, governmensaidi policies and the Americans with Disabilitiest Af 1990 “ADA").

In addition, periods of economic slowdown or rec@ssrising interest rates or declining demand rfeal estate, or the puk
perception that any of these events may occur,dcregult in a general decline in rents or an inmedaincidence of defaults under exis
leases. If CIM Urban cannot operate its propeg@as to meet its financial expectations, CIM Utbdimancial condition, results of operatic
cash flow and ability to satisfy its debt servid#igations and to pay dividends could be adveraéflycted. There can be no assurance that
Urban can achieve its economic objectives.

Tenant concentration increases the risk that casHdw could be interrupted.

CIM Urban is, and expects that it will continuelt®, subject to a degree of tenant concentraticeradin of its properties. In the ev
that a tenant occupying a significant portion oé @n more of CIM Urbars properties or whose rental income represenigréfisant portion ¢
the rental revenue at such property or propertieewo experience financial weakness or file baptiny it would more negatively impact C
Urban’s financial condition and results of operationatifathe tenant did not occupy multiple propert@soccupied a smaller portion o
single property.

CIM Urban has a concentration of government tenaatsss its portfolio. The reduction of governmimtding for such governme
agencies and other organizations and changes uatems governing such agencies and organizatonl have a material adverse effec
CIM Urban’s investments in office buildings with\ggrnment tenants.

CIM Urban may become subject to risk and liabilities unique to joint venture relationships.

CIM Urban owns properties through “joint ventureVéstments in which it co-invests with other ineest CIM Urbans business pl:
contemplates further acquisitions of propertie®ulgh joint ventures and sales to institutions atiphownership of properties that it whc
owns. Real estate is relatively difficult to sellickly. CIM Urban may be unable to realize its istraent objectives by a sale of equit
attractive prices within any given period of timemsay otherwise be unable to complete any exitegsa In particular, these risks could a
from weakness in or even the lack of an establighadket for a property, changes in the financiatdition or prospects of prospect
purchasers, changes in domestic or internatioraiauic conditions and changes in laws, regulat@rfgscal policies of jurisdictions in whi
the property is located. Joint venture investménislve certain risks, including that joint ventyvartners may control or share certain appi
rights over major decisions or might have econooniother business interests or goals that are sistant with the business interests of (
Urban or goals that would affect CIM Urbanrability to operate the property. The occurrentere or more of the foregoing events cc
adversely affect CIM Urban'’s financial conditiossults of operations and cash flow and CIM Urbaifiity to pay dividends.
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CIM Urban’s success depends on the ability of the dvisor to manage its investments, and the Adviscs’ failure to manage it
investments in a sufficient manner could have a matial adverse effect on CIM Urban’s business strategy, the value of its real est
investments and results of operations.

CIM Urban presently has no employees. CIM Urbaredes on the Advisos’ ability to manage its investments in a manneficset
to maintain or increase revenues and to generé#fieisot revenues in excess of its operating arieeoexpenses. The Advisor is not require
dedicate any particular number of employees or eyga hours to CIM Urbag’business in order to fulfill its obligations undiee Investmel
Management Agreement entered into between CIM Udpmahthe Advisor. CIM Urban believes that its ssscéepends to a significant ex
upon the experience of the Advisesenior management team, whose continued sesvita iguaranteed. CIM Urban is subject to the thisk
upon termination of the Investment Management Ages®, no suitable replacement will be found to nggn€IM Urban. If the Investme
Management Agreement is terminated, CIM Urban metybe able to execute its business plan and mdgrsiasses, which could have
material adverse effect on its ability to makeritsitions. The Advisos failure to manage CIM Urban and its investmeritagversely affec
the underlying value of CIM Urbas'real estate investments, the results of its ¢ipasaand its ability to make distributions andby amount
due on its indebtedness. The terms of the InvestManagement Agreement provide that it can onlydominated by the mutual agreemer
CIM Urban and the Advisor. Accordingly, CIM Urbas $ubject to the further risk that it does not htneability to unilaterally terminate t
Investment Management Agreement in the event oAthésor’s poor performance.

The Advisor’s fees are based on the gross assetualof CIM Urban’ s assets, including any assets acquired by CIM Urban the future.
This fee arrangement may lead the Advisor to recomend riskier investments regardless of their longerm performance in an effort
to maximize its compensation.

The Advisor’s fees are based on the gross assat wdlCIM Urban$ assets, including any assets acquired by CIM rJitbghe future
which may provide incentive for the Advisor to istén assets that are riskier investments regasdi€sheir performance. Consequently,
Advisor may recommend investments that are notssegdy in the best interests of PMC Commersiahareholders in order to maximize
compensation. Neither CIM Urban nor PMC Commerbia$ the right pursuant to the terms of the InvestnManagement Agreement
terminate unilaterally the Investment Managemente&gient in the event of CIM Urbanpoor investment performance or mismanageme
the Advisor.

CIM Urban competes with current and future investment entities affiliated with the Advisor for accesso the benefits that CIM Urban’s
relationship with the Advisor provides to CIM Urban, including access to investment opportunities.

There may be conflicts of interest in allocatinggaatment opportunities to CIM Urban and other fyndsestment vehicles a
ventures managed by the Advisor. For example, tthasdr currently serves as the investment manaf€iM VI (Urban REIT), LLC and it
parallel funds (collectively, “CIM VI”), a privatéund formed to invest in substantially stabilizedlrestate and real estatdated assets loca
in urban areas that CIM Group has already qualiiiednvestment. There will be a significant overia the assets and investment strategi
CIM Urban and CIM VI, and many of the same invesitmgersonnel will provide services to both entitidthough there are no contract
restrictions limiting the ability of CIM Urban tocquire additional properties, it is the intentidnGIM Group not to provide CIM Urban wi
acquisition opportunities until the equity capitdlCIM VI is fully committed. Further, the Advisand its affiliates may in the future fo
additional funds or sponsor additional investmesittigles and ventures that have overlapping objestivith CIM Urban and therefore n
compete with CIM Urban for investment opportunitig#be ability of the Advisor, the Manager and thefficers and employees to engag
other business activities, including the manageroénther investment vehicles sponsored by CIM @ranay reduce the time the Advisor
the Manager spend managing the activities of ClMddrand PMC Commercial.

The business of CIM Urban will be managed by UrbanGP Manager, an affiliate of CIM Group, and PMC Commercial will have
limited rights with respect to the management and antrol of CIM Urban.

Pursuant to the Master Services Agreement, PMC Ganeial has agreed to appoint Urban GP Manageream#nager of CIM Urbz
GP. Subject to the limitations set forth in the gaing documents of CIM Urban and the CIM Urban @ie,Urban GP Manager will have
power and authority to manage, to direct the mamage,
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business and affairs of and to make all decisiortsetmade by or on behalf of (1) the CIM Urban @B &) CIM Urban. PMC Commercial
an indirect limited partner of CIM Urban; the righand obligations of PMC Commercial are subje¢hé&limitations set forth in CIM Urbag’
partnership agreement (the “CIM Urban Partnershipe@ment”);and except as set forth in the Master Services égent and the rigl
specifically reserved to limited partners by theviUrban Partnership Agreement and applicable laMCRCommercial has no part in 1
management and control of CIM Urban.

PMC Commercial may only remove the Urban GP Managehe manager of the CIM Urban GP for “causetefined in the Mas!
Services Agreement). Removal for “causd8o requires the approval of the holders of astlé® 2/3% of the outstanding shares of F
Commercial (excluding for this purpose any shamdd by the Manager and any affiliates of the Mamagecept to the extent set forth in
immediately following sentence). Notwithstanding ftoregoing, CIM REIT will have the right to votayashares of PMC Commercial the
owns with respect to any vote held to remove theadrGP Manager as the manager of the CIM Urbanp&®ided, however, if any su
removal vote is held after the second anniversathe Master Services Agreement, CIM REIT shallaibtvoting instructions from certain
its non-affiliated investors with respect to votitige shares beneficially owned by such waffiliated investors and CIM REIT shall vote
number of shares beneficially owned by such noiiatfd investor as so instructed by such mdfiliated investor. Upon removal,
replacement manager will be appointed by the indéget Trust Managers.

The CIM Urban Partnership Agreement is in place andCIM Urban will be subject to the investment limitations set forth therein, unles
approved by CIM Urban’s advisory committee, which rmay inhibit CIM Urban’ s ability to make investments that otherwise meetd
investment strategy.

The CIM Urban Partnership Agreement, as may be detefrom time to time, is in place. Accordingly,NCUrban is subject to tl
investment limitations set forth therein, and, with the approval of its advisory committee, whiansists of representatives of certain nor
affiliated members of CIM REIT, it may not:

* Invest more than the lesser of (1) 25% of the aggjee capital commitment of its partners and (2)5dillion of capita
contributions to any one asset or company; proyidexvever, that the foregoing limitation shall ragiply to an investme
consisting of a portfolio of, or a company or otleetity owning, multiple assets (i.e., the foregplimitation shall apply to ea
individual asset in any such portfolio or entit

* (1) invest more than 25% of the aggregate capdaimitments of its partners in any metropolitatistical area (“MSA")with a
population of 1,000,000 or less or in any recoghimal estate submarket of an MSA with a populatibmore than 1,000,000
(2) invest more than 50% of the aggregate capibahrnitments of its partners in any MSA with a popiola of more tha
1,000,000

* Invest in the securities of a publicly traded compaexcept as part of a transaction or series afstctions designed for
purpose of acquiring control of the company andfounderlying assets; ai

* Acquire or originate any senior debt (i.e., firsbnigage loans) if the acquisition or origination ®M Urban of such senior de
would cause the aggregate adjusted fair valueldZIldM Urban investments that are senior debt toa¢equ exceed 25% of tl
aggregate adjusted fair value of all CIM Urban stwgents (including, without duplication, any pragdevel reserves with resp
to such investments

Accordingly, CIM Urban may not be able to acquiegtain investments that otherwise meet its investragategy.

The CIM Urban Partnership Agreement contains provisons that give rights to certain unaffiliated membes of CIM REIT to influence
the business and operations of CIM Urban; such mendrs may have interests that are adverse to PMC Comarcial’s shareholder:
and the exercise of such rights may negatively impa the rights of PMC Commercial’s shareholders or the business of PV
Commercial.

The CIM Urban Partnership Agreement requires thit Orban maintain an advisory committee composedasfain members of Cl
REIT who are not affiliated with the general partoeCIM Urban. The advisory committee is respotesior resolving conflicts of interest a
selecting a new audit firm for CIM Urban. CIM Urbatso may not take certain actions (including thdescribed below) or make cert
investments without the consent of the advisory mittee. Since the CIM Urban Partnership Agreemeititnet be amended or modified
eliminate the rights of the advisory committee, dldeisory committee will continue to be compriséadnembers of CIM REIT. If the advisc
committee refuses to consent to certain actiorer@ngements of CIM Urban, it may adversely affbetability of CIM Urban to manage
expand its business.
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The CIM Urban Partnership Agreement requires thesent of a majority in interest of certain membefsCIM REIT in order ti
amend the CIM Urban Partnership Agreement and iireskment Management Agreement. In certain sitosfiopon a twdhirds vote ¢
certain members of CIM REIT, the general parthe€tM Urban may be removed and replaced. The refiespermit amendment of the C
Urban Partnership Agreement or the removal of #reegal partner by the members of CIM REIT may asklgrimpact PMC Commercial.

The CIM Urban Partnership Agreement specifies @il Urban is responsible for the operating experasd obligations of ClI
REIT, as well as certain out-plcket operating expenses of CIM Urban GP. CIM Urakso has indemnity obligations to CIM Urban G
Advisor, any member of the advisory committee dradrtrespective affiliates under the terms of th&l ©rban Partnership Agreement. Th
obligations may result in material liabilities tdNCUrban.

CIM Urban may be unable to renew leases or lease ¢ant office space.

Expiring leases may not be renewed, or may bkased at rental rates equal to or below existengal rates. Substantial r
abatements, tenant improvements, concessions,teartjnation rights or below market renewal optiomsy be offered to attract new tenant
retain existing tenants. Accordingly, portions dMCUrban’s office properties may remain vacant for extendedods of time. In additio
some existing leases currently provide tenants ojtions to renew the terms of their leases asrtitat are less than the current market re
to terminate their leases prior to the expiratiatedhereof. If CIM Urban is unable to obtain rémédes that are on average comparable
asking rents across its office portfolio, thenaitslity to generate cash flow growth will be negaty impacted.

Potential losses may not be covered by insurance.

CIM Urban’s business operations in California, New York, Rd@arolina, Texas and the District of Columbia susceptible to, ai
could be significantly affected by, adverse weattmrditions and natural disasters such as eartleguasunamis, hurricanes, volcanoes, v
blizzards, floods, landslides, drought and firekede adverse weather conditions and natural disasbeld cause significant damage to
properties in the portfolio, the risk of which ishtenced by the concentration of its propertiesabgregate net income and square fee
California and the District of Columbia. CIM Urbaninsurance may not be adequate to cover busingssuption or losses resulting fri
adverse weather or natural disasters. CIM Urbars eioé maintain insurance on its properties forheprakes, except for those properties
which the lender requires such insurance coveragaddition, CIM Urbars insurance policies include customary deductibles limitation:
on recovery. As a result, CIM Urban may be requteedhcur significant costs in the event of advessather conditions and natural disas
CIM Urban may discontinue part or all of any inswra coverage on some or all of its properties énftiture if the cost of premiums for any
these policies in its judgment exceeds the valub@toverage discounted for the risk of loss.

Furthermore, CIM Urban may not carry insurancedertain losses, including, but not limited to, kessaused by war or by ceri
environmental conditions, such as mold or asbestosddition, its title insurance policies may mwure for the current aggregate market v
of its portfolio, and CIM Urban may not increass fitle insurance coverage if the market valuet®fpiortfolio increases. As a result, C
Urban may not have sufficient coverage againskoablies that CIM Urban may experience, includingnfradverse title claims. If CIM Urb.
experiences a loss that is uninsured or that escpelicy limits, it could incur significant costsic lose the capital invested in the dam:
properties as well as the anticipated future chsisffrom those properties.

In addition, CIM Urbars properties may not be able to be rebuilt to thristing height or size at their existing locatiomder curret
land-use laws and policies. In the event that CIM Urbaperiences a substantial or comprehensive lossi@bf its properties, it may not
able to rebuild such property to its existing sfieations and otherwise may have to upgrade suocpauty to meet current code requirements.

Terrorism and other factors affecting demand for the properties of CIM Urban could harm its operatingresults.

The strength and profitability of CIM Urbanbusiness depends on demand for and the valte mfoiperties. Future terrorist attack
the United States, such as the attacks that oatimrmdew York and the District of Columbia on Septeer 11, 2001 and in Boston on April
2013, and other acts of terrorism or war may hamegative impact on its operations. Such terratistcks could have an adverse impact ¢
business even if they are not directed at its pt@mse In addition, the terrorist attacks of Sepgteml1, 2001 have substantially affectec
availability and price of insurance coverage fort@ia types of damages or occurrences, and CIM Jgbasurance policies for terrori:
include large deductibles and payments. Although CIM Urban maintains terrorisraurance coverage on its portfolio, the lack ofisighi
insurance for these types of acts could expose @ibén to significant losses and could have a negatipact on its operations.
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CIM Urban faces competition.

CIM Urban’s office portfolio competes with a humber of deypels, owners and operators of office real estatmynof which ow
properties similar to CIM Urban in the same markete/hich its properties are located. If CIM Urbarompetitors offer space at rental r
below current market rates, or below the rentag#IM Urban currently charges its tenants, CIMadrimay lose existing or potential ten:
and it may be pressured to reduce its rental rbtgdew those it currently charges or to offer moubstantial rent abatements, ter
improvements, early termination rights or below kearenewal options in order to retain tenants witetenantsleases expire. In that ca
CIM Urban’s financial condition, results of operations, cfietv and ability to satisfy its debt service obliigas and to pay dividends may
adversely affected.

CIM Urban’s hotel portfolio competes for guestsnpairily with other hotels in the immediate vicinitf CIM Urban’s hotels an
secondarily with other hotels in the geographicatket of CIM Urbans hotels. An increase in the number of competitiotels in a particuli
area could have a material adverse effect on thapamcy, average daily rate and revenue per al@italom of CIM Urbars hotels in thi
area.

There are numerous housing alternatives that campith CIM Urbans apartment communities in attracting residentgséhinclud
other apartment communities and sinfgezily homes that are available for rent in the keés in which the communities are located. If
demand for CIM Urbars apartment communities is reduced or if competitivelop and/or acquire competing apartment contiasnrente
rates may drop, which may have a material advdfeeteon CIM Urbans financial condition and results of operationdMQJrban also face
competition from other real estate investment futsinesses and other entities in the acquisidemelopment and operation of apartn
communities. This competition may result in an @ge in costs and prices of apartment communita&siM Urban acquires and/or develc

Because CIM Urban owns real property, it is subjecto extensive environmental regulation which createuncertainty regarding future
environmental expenditures and liabilities.

Environmental laws regulate, and impose liabiliby, freleases of hazardous or toxic substancestiet@nvironment. Under some
these laws, an owner or operator of real estatebadiable for costs related to soil or groundwatamtamination on or migrating to or from
property. In addition, persons who arrange fordisposal or treatment of hazardous or toxic sulsstamay be liable for the costs of clea
up contamination at the disposal site.

These laws often impose liability regardless of thbe the person knew of, or was responsible fag,ttesence of the hazardou
toxic substances that caused the contaminationta@onation resulting from any of these substanceshe failure to properly remediate th
may adversely affect CIM Urbamability to sell or rent its property or to borraxsing the property as collateral. In addition spas exposed
hazardous or toxic substances may sue for persopay damages. For example, some laws imposeliipfor release of or exposure
asbestogontaining materials. In other cases, some of tliparties of CIM Urban may have been impacted bytamination from pa
operations or from of§ite sources. As a result, CIM Urban may be patdintiiable for investigation and cleanup costsygdées and damag
under environmental laws.

Although most of CIM Urbars properties have been subjected to preliminaryiremmental assessments, known as Phe
assessments, by independent environmental consuttzat identify certain liabilities, Phase 1 assesnts are limited in scope, and may
include or identify all potential environmentalbitities or risks associated with the property. &5d required by applicable law, CIM Url
may decide not to further investigate, remedy orléorate the liabilities disclosed in the Phase steasments. Further, these or ¢
environmental studies may not identify all potengavironmental liabilities or accurately assessethier CIM Urban will incur materi
environmental liabilities in the future. If CIM Ualm does incur material environmental liabilities the future, it may face significe
remediation costs, and it may find it difficult $ell any affected properties.

Compliance with the ADA and fire, safety and otherregulations may require CIM Urban to make unanticipated expenditures tha
could significantly reduce the cash available for didends.

Under the ADA, all public accommodations must mfeeeral requirements related to access and uséshpldd persons. Althou
CIM Urban believes that its properties substantiaimply with present requirements of the ADA, dsmot conducted an audit or investige
of all of its properties to determine its compliantf one or
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more of its properties or future properties is motompliance with the ADA, then CIM Urban would beguired to incur additional costs
bring the property into compliance. Additional feale state and local laws also may require modifices to its properties or restrict its abi
to renovate its properties. CIM Urban cannot prieitie ultimate amount of the cost of complianceéhwiite ADA or other legislation.

In addition, CIM Urban properties are subject toimas federal, state and local regulatory requineisiesuch as state and local fire
life safety requirements. If CIM Urban were to f&al comply with these various requirements, it migicur governmental fines or privi
damage awards. If CIM Urban incurs substantialctstcomply with the ADA or any other regulatongué@ements, its financial conditic
results of operations, cash flow, ability to satigé debt service obligations and to pay dividecosld be adversely affected. Local regulati
including municipal or local ordinances, zoningtriesions and restrictive covenants imposed by camity developers may restrict its use
its properties and may require it to obtain apprdrk@m local officials or community standards orgaations at any time with respect to
properties, including prior to acquiring a propestywhen undertaking renovations of any of its g&xgsproperties.

CIM Urban may be unable to complete acquisitions tat would grow its business and, even if consummate®€IM Urban may fail to
successfully integrate and operate acquired propes.

CIM Urban plans to acquire additional propertiesopportunities arise. CIM Urbas'ability to acquire properties on favorable te
and successfully integrate and operate them |$sutq the following significant risks:
CIM Urban may be unable to acquire desired propetiecause of competition from other real estatestors with better acces:
less expensive capital, including other real estpgrating companies, publicly traded REITs an@&tment funds
e CIM Urban may acquire properties that are not an@eo its results upon acquisition, and CIM Urbaay not successful
manage and lease those properties to meet its taxipes;
Competition from other potential acquirers may gigantly increase purchase prict
e CIM Urban may be unable to generate sufficient ciksm operations or obtain the necessary debt aityedinancing tc
consummate an acquisition on favorable terms all;
e CIM Urban may need to spend more than anticipateduats to make necessary improvements or renowatioracquire
properties
CIM urban may spend significant time and money oteptial acquisitions that CIM Urban does not consate;
CIM Urban may be unable to quickly and efficieritijegrate new acquisitions into its existing opierss;
CIM Urban may suffer higher than expected vacaatgs and/or lower than expected rental rates
CIM Urban may acquire properties without any reseuior with only limited recourse, for liabilitiegainst the former owners
the properties

If CIM Urban cannot complete property acquisitiamsfavorable terms, or operate acquired propeti@seet its goals or expectatic
its financial condition, results of operations, ltdkow, ability to satisfy its debt service obligais and to pay dividends could be adver
affected.

CIM Urban may be unable to successfully expand iteperations into new markets.

Each of the risks applicable to CIM Urbargbility to acquire and successfully integrate apdrate properties in the markets in w
its properties are located are also applicabléstability to acquire and successfully integratd aperate properties in new markets. In add
to these risks, CIM Urban may not possess the saveé of familiarity with the dynamics and marketnditions of certain new markets the
may enter, which could adversely affect its abildyexpand into those markets. CIM Urban may béleng build a significant market share
achieve a desired return on its investments in mawkets. If CIM Urban is unsuccessful in expandimgp new markets, it could advers
affect its financial condition, results of operatsp cash flow, ability to satisfy its debt servatdigations and pay dividends.

CIM Urban may expand into new real estaterelated activities and investors will not have anyapproval rights regarding expansior
strategies or specific future investments.

CIM Urban may expand its operations into new resthterelated activities, including, without limitatior{1l) originating and/c
investingin a variety of loan products, including, but nimhited to, mezzanine loans, commercial real edtsias and other types of lo:
and/or (2) real estate development activities &ate substantially stabilized properties. Investalisnot have any approval rights with resy
to expansion strategies or future investments.dtments will therefore be relying on the Advisothwiespect to future investments to be n
by CIM Urban.
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CIM Urban may make investments outside of the Unité States, which would subject it to additional risls that may affect its operation
favorably or unfavorably.

CIM Urban may invest some of its capital outsidetef United States. CIM Urbaninvestments in foreign countries will be affes
favorably or unfavorably by changes in exchangesaue to political and economic factors, includimiiation. Because nob~S. companie
are subject to uniform accounting, auditing andificial reporting standards, practices and requinésneomparable with those applicabl
U.S. companies, there may be different types dl, lawer quality, information available about nonS. companies and their assets. This
affect CIM Urbans ability to underwrite and evaluate proposed itmesits in foreign countries or to obtain approgrifihancial repor
relating to such investments. In addition, withpest to certain countries, there may be an inctepséential for corrupt business practice:
the possibility of expropriation or confiscatoryadion, political or social inability, or diplomatidevelopments that could affect CIM Urban’
investments in those countries. Moreover, individe@mnomies will differ favorably or unfavorableofn the U.S. economy in such respec
growth of gross national product, rate of inflatichanges in currency rates and exchange congolagons and capital reinvestment.

If CIM Urban were deemed an investment company undethe Investment Company Act, applicable restrictims could make i
impractical for CIM Urban to continue its businessas contemplated and could have an adverse effect @M’s Urban’s business.

CIM Urban is not an investment company under theestment Company Act of 1940, as amended (the Stmvent Company Ac)”
and intends to conduct its operations so that lit mat be deemed an investment company. Howevat vifere to be deemed an investn
company, restrictions imposed by the Investment @ Act, including limitations on the nature ofvé@stments and ability to trans
business with affiliates, could make it impractif@ml CIM Urban to continue its business as contettgal. In addition, the Investment Comp
Act imposes certain requirements on companies dédmde within its regulatory scope, including stgition as an investment comp:
adoption of a specific form of corporate structarel compliance with certain burdensome reportiagord keeping, voting, proxy, disclos
and other rules and regulations. In the event@ttharacterization of CIM Urban as an investmentigany, the failure by CIM Urban to sati
such regulatory requirements, whether on a timabigor at all, would, under certain circumstanaés) have a material adverse effect on
Urban.

Investment Risks— Lending Activities

Changes in economic conditions could have an adversffect on our profitability.

Turmoil in the financial markets adversely affeetsonomic activity. This turmoil (including the efteof any perceived or acti
economic recession) subjects our borrowers to &ilshistress which could impair their ability toisét their obligations to us. During periods
economic stress, delinquencies and losses mayasei@nd losses may be substantial.

Commercial mortgage loans expose us to a high degref risk associated with investing in real estate.

The performance and value of our loans depends upamy factors beyond our control. Commercial resthte has experienc
cyclical performance and significant fluctuatiorrs the past that impacts the value of our real estaflateralized loans. The ultim
performance and value of our loans are subjecisiks mssociated with the ownership and operatioth@fproperties which collateralize
loans, including the property ownsriability to operate the property with sufficierdsb flow to meet debt service requirements.
performance and value of the properties collataradi our loans may be adversely affected by:

* Changes in national or regional economic conditi

®* Changes in real estate market conditions due toggsain national, regional or local economic candg& or property mark
characteristics
Continued disruptions in the credit markets inahgdihe ass-backed securitization marke
Competition from other propertie
Changes in interest rates and the condition ofitti# and equity capital marke
The ongoing need for capital repairs and improves)

Increases in real estate tax rates and other apgetpenses (including utilities

A significant increase in gasoline prices in a siperiod of time;

Adverse changes in governmental rules and fiscéitips; acts of God, including earthquakes, hum@s and other natu
disasters; acts of war or terrorism; or a decr@asige availability of or an increase in the cosinsurance

* Adverse changes in zoning lav
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® The impact of environmental legislation and commp@with environmental laws; ar
® Other factors that are beyond our control or thetrab of the commercial property owne

In the event that any of the properties underlyong loans experience any of the foregoing eventscourrences, the value of, :
return on, such loans may be negatively impacteatelver, our profitability may be negatively impeatt

Payment defaults and other credit risks in our invetment portfolio may increase which may cause advse effects on our cash flows ai
results of operations.

Recessionary economic conditions and adverse dawelots in the credit markets have led to businessaction, liquidity issues a
other problems for many of the businesses we fi@aAs a result, payment defaults and other créskisrin our investment portfolio increas
and may continue to increase, which has causednagdontinue to cause, adverse effects on ourfeash and results of operations.

Historically, we have not experienced significamgdes for most of our real estate secured loansodaer borrowersequity in thei
properties, the value of the underlying collatetiaé cash flows from operations of the businessdsother factors such as having recour:
the guarantors. However, due to the prolonged aoandownturn and the current economic environmesmst,believe that in many instanc
our borrowers’equity in their properties has eroded and may &ir#rode which may result in increased forecloseté/ity and credit losse
Whenever our borrowers experience significant apegalifficulties and we are forced to liquidatetbollateral underlying the loan, losses
be substantial.

We may increase loan loss reserves due to gengsaddss and economic conditions and increasedt @ediliquidity risks which me
continue to have an adverse effect on our finaneEalormance; however, there can be no assuraatéhtloan loss reserves we establish
be sufficient.

The commercial real estate loans we originate araikject to the risks of default and foreclosure whih could result in losses to us.

The commercial real estate loans we originate allateralized by incom@roducing properties (primarily limited service hiality
properties) and we are subject to risks of defanll foreclosure. In the event of a default undemcatgage loan, we bear a risk of los:
principal to the extent of any deficiency betweka value of the collateral and the unpaid princlglbnce of the mortgage loan, which c
have an adverse effect on our cash flows and sesfiloperations. If a borrower defaults on one wf commercial real estate loans and
underlying property collateralizing the loan islifficient to satisfy the outstanding balance of tban, we may suffer a loss. In additior
losses related to collateral deficiencies, durimg foreclosure process we may incur costs relatetle protection of our collateral includ
unpaid real estate taxes, legal fees, franchisg fasurance and operating shortfalls to the exttemtproperty is being operated by a cour
appointed receiver.

Foreclosure and bankruptcy are complex and somstiemgthy processes that are subject to Federadtatellaws and regulations.
action to foreclose on a property is subject to ynah the delays and expenses of other lawsuitshéf defendant raises defense:
counterclaims. In the event of a default by a nmeaytyy, these restrictions, among other things, mete our ability to foreclose on or sell
mortgaged property or to obtain proceeds sufficienepay all amounts due to us on the mortgage. Barrowers have the option of seel
Federal bankruptcy protection which could delay filmeclosure process. In conjunction with the bapkey process, the terms of the |
agreements may be modified. Typically, delays ie threclosure process will have a negative impacioor results of operations anc
financial condition due to direct and indirect costcurred and possible deterioration of the valigne collateral.

Our ability to sell any properties we own as a ltestiforeclosure will be impacted by changes iomamic and other conditions. C
ability to sell these properties and the pricesraeeive on their sale are affected by many faciaduding but not limited to, the number
potential buyers, the condition of the propertg ttumber of competing properties on the marketaher market conditions. If we are requ
to hold a property for an extended period of timelwose to operate the property, it could havegative impact on our results of operat
and/or financial condition due to direct and indtreosts incurred and possible deterioration ofvtidae of the collateral resulting in impairm
losses.
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There are significant risks in lending to small bugiesses.

Our loans receivable consist primarily of loans simall, privatelyowned businesses. There is typically no publichailable
information about these businesses; therefore, w& nely on our own due diligence to obtain infotiora in connection with our investm
decisions. Our borrowers may not meet net incormgh €low and other coverage tests typically impdsetlanks. A borrowes' ability to repa
its loan may be adversely impacted by numerousofacincluding a downturn in its industry or otheegative local or macro econor
conditions. Deterioration in a borrowsifinancial condition and prospects may be accomepdny deterioration in the collateral for the lo&m
addition, small businesses typically depend omtheagement talents and efforts of one person oradl group of people for their success.
loss of services of one or more of these personfddmave an adverse impact on the operations ofthall business. Small companies
typically more vulnerable to customer preferencearket conditions and economic downturns and afesd additional capital to maintain
business, expand or compete. These factors mayamaiapact on the ultimate recovery of our loarceieable from such businesses. Loar
small businesses, therefore, involve a high degfdeisiness and financial risk, which can resubbstantial losses and accordingly shou
considered speculative.

We depend on the accuracy of information provided ¥ potential borrowers and guarantors.

In deciding whether to extend credit or enter itrtnsactions with potential borrowers and/or thggiarantors, we rely on cert
information furnished to us by or on behalf of pdial borrowers and/or guarantors. We also relyrepresentations of potential borrow
and/or guarantors as to the accuracy of that irdtion. Our financial condition and results of openas could be negatively impacted to
extent we rely on financial statements or othesrimiation that is inaccurate or materially mislegdin

Longer term loans and our real estate owned (“REQO”are typically illiquid and their value may decrea®.

Our commercial real estate loans and real estapgirad through foreclosure are typically illiquicvestments. Therefore, we will
unable to vary our portfolio promptly in responseechanging economic, financial and investment dima. As a result, the fair market va
of these investments may decrease in the futuréassds may result.

There is typically no public market or establistetling market for the loans we originate. Accogtimthe market value for our loc
will typically be less than the estimated fair \alof our loans. The illiquid nature of our loansynaalversely affect our ability to dispose
such loans at times when it may be advantageonsamssary for us to liquidate such investments.

Changes in interest rates and competition could negvely affect lending operations, which could resltiin reduced earnings.

Our interest income will be reduced during low et rate environments. During any period that LIB@ the prime rate decreas
interest income on our loans will decline. Chanigemterest rates do not have an immediate impacthe interest income of our fixedte
loans. Our interest rate risk on our fixed-ratenbba primarily due to loan prepayments and madésrit

In general, due to the highly competitive natureoof business, we must execute efficient and é¥feqiromotional and marketi
programs. The effectiveness of our marketing andnption practices is important to our ability ta&be potential borrowers and retain exis
borrowers. If our marketing programs are not sugfesour results of operations and financial ctindimay be adversely affected.

We have concentrations of investments which may natively impact our financial condition and resultsof operations.

Substantially all of our revenue is generated fioems collateralized by hospitality properties.Ddcember 31, 2013, our loans w
95% concentrated in the hospitality industry. Aagtbrs that negatively impact the hospitality intdysincluding recessions, severe wea
events (such as hurricanes, blizzards, floods), elepressed commercial real estate markets, trastlctions, bankruptcies or other politica
geopolitical events, could have a material adveffaet on our financial condition and results oeogtions.

At December 31, 2013, 13% of our loans receivabdeevcollateralized by properties in Texas. No ostate had a concentratior
10% or greater of our loans receivable at Decer@be2013. A decline in economic conditions in atatesin which we have a concentratiol
investments could have an adverse effect on oanéial condition and results of operations.
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Establishing loan loss reserves entails significafidgment and may negatively impact our results obperations.

We have a quarterly review process to identify analuate potential exposure to loan losses. Therm@tation of whether significs
doubt exists and whether a loan loss reserve isssacy requires judgment and consideration of dlees fand circumstances existing at
evaluation date. Loans that require specific idieatiion review are identified based on one or mmegative characteristics including, but
limited to, non-payment or lack of timely paymefitpoincipal and/or interest, ngmayment or lack of timely payment of property taf@sar
extended period of time, deterioration of the pbgkiproperty (our collateral), insurance defaultsl/ar franchise defaults. In determin
estimated fair value, management utilizes the ptegglue of the expected cash flows discountetha@tdans effective interest rate and/or
estimation of underlying collateral values usingrisals, broker price opinions, tax assessed vahaior revenue analysis. Additiona
further changes to the facts and circumstancelseoindividual borrowers, the limited service hoality industry and the economy may req
the establishment of additional loan loss researebsthe effect to our results of operations mayniagerial. If our judgments underlying
establishment of our loan loss reserves are noecrour results of operations may be negativalyacted.

Whenever our borrowers experience significant dpegaifficulties and we are forced to liquidatetbollateral underlying the loa
losses may be relatively substantial.

Government Program and Requlatory Risks- Lending Activities

We have specific risks associated with originatingpans under the SBA 7(a) Program.

We sell the guaranteed portion of our SBA 7(a) Paogloans into the secondary market. These sales flesulted in collecting ca
premiums, creating a stream of future servicinggagror both. There can be no assurance that webavidible to continue originating th
loans, that a secondary market will exist or thatwill continue to realize premiums upon the sdlthe guaranteed portion of these loans.

We sell the guaranteed portion of our SBA 7(a) Paogloans and retain the credit risk on the gaaranteed portion of the loans.
share praata with the SBA in any recoveries. In the evendefault on an SBA loan, our pursuit of remedigaiast a borrower is subject
SBA rules and in some instances SBA approval. éf #BA establishes that a loss on an SBA guararteadis attributable to significe
technical deficiencies in the manner in which thenl was originated, funded or serviced by us, B& Bay seek recovery of the principal |
related to the deficiency from us. With respedthi® guaranteed portion of SBA loans that have lsedh the SBA will first honor its guaran
and then seek compensation from us in the evenhatluss is deemed to be attributable to techmiefitiencies. There can be no assurance
we will not experience a loss due to significarfidencies with our underwriting or servicing of 8Boans.

In certain instances, including liquidation or apaxoff of an SBA guaranteed loan, we may have aivable for the SBAs guarantee
portion of legal fees, operating expenses, propertgs paid etc. related to the loan or the colidt@ipon foreclosure). While we belie
expenses incurred were justified and necessarthécare and preservation of the collateral antliwithe established rules of the SBA, tt
can be no assurance that the SBA will reimbursénuaddition, reimbursement from the SBA is a tiommsuming and lengthy process anc
SBA may seek compensation from us related to reiggbnent of expenses which it does not believe wexeessary for the care ¢
preservation of the loan or its collateral. Althbube SBA has never declined to reimburse us $opdtrtion of material expenses, no assur
can be given that the SBA would not do so in tharfu

Curtailment of our ability to utilize the SBA 7(a) Program could adversely affect our results of opert#ons.

We are dependent upon the Federal government tatairathe SBA 7(a) Program. There can be no assertat the program will |
maintained or that loans will continue to be guéead at current levels. In addition, there can b@ssurance that First Western will be ab
maintain its status as a Preferred Lender or tleatan maintain our SBA 7(a) license.

If we cannot continue originating and selling goweent guaranteed loans at current levels, we cexjeérience a decrease in ful
servicing spreads and earned premiums. From tintiere the SBA has reached its internal budgeteddimnd ceased to guarantee loans
stated period of time. In addition, the SBA mayrag its rules regarding loans or Congress may ddgplation or fail to approve a bud
that would have the effect of
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discontinuing, reducing availability of funds far, changing loan programs. Ngevernmental programs could replace governmentranog
for some borrowers, but the terms might not be Bya&ceptable. If these changes occur, the volafians to small businesses that |
qualify for government guaranteed loans could declas could the profitability of these loans.

First Western has been granted national PLP statdsoriginates, sells and services small busiremssland is authorized to pl
SBA guarantees on loans without seeking prior SBAew and approval. Being a national lender, PlaRustallows First Western to expe:
loans since First Western is not required to prieapplications to the SBA for concurrent review approval. The loss of PLP status cc
adversely impact our marketing efforts and ultimakean origination volume which could negativetgpact our results of operations.

A government shutdown could adversely affect our S8 7(a) loan originations and results of operations.

We are dependent upon the Federal government totamaithe SBA 7(a) Program. Our lending businesdcche materially ar
adversely affected by circumstances or eventsdinihe availability of funds for this program. Avgonment shutdown occurred in Octc
2013 which affected our ability to originate SBAaY(oans as Congress failed to approve a budgetwhiturn eliminated availability of fun
for this program. We could again experience a gawent shutdown which would affect our ability tagimate government guaranteed Ic
and to sell the government guaranteed portionsiage loans in the secondary market. Any governmsleatdown could adversely affect
SBA 7(a) loan originations and results of operation

Any downgrade in the U.S.’s credit rating could magrially adversely affect our business and resultsf@perations.

U.S. debt ceiling and budget deficit concerns cduwseredit rating agency downgrade to the 8.8redit rating for the first time
history. In addition, there potentially may be fitidowngrades. Any default by the U.S. on its ailans, the perceived risk of such a de!
or any downgrade of the U.S.tredit rating could have a material adverse effacthe financial markets and economic conditionthe U.S
and throughout the world which could negativelyeaffour business and results of operations. Theseoenic and market conditions co
negatively impact the value of the government gu@ed portion of our SBA 7(a) Program loans.

Liquidity and Capital Resources Risks

The following risk factors apply to the combineglldity and capital resources of PMC Commercial &1 Urban upon completic
of the merger anticipated to occur no later thanrbta31, 2014.

PMC Commercial may be unable to secure funds for & future longterm liquidity needs, which could adversely impactPMC
Commercial’s business and results of operations.

PMC Commercial’'s londerm liquidity needs will consist primarily of fusdhecessary to pay for development or repositiomwi
properties, nomecurring capital expenditures, loan originatioms! aefinancing of indebtedness. PMC Commercial maly have sufficiet
funds on hand or may not be able to obtain additifinancing to cover all of these lotgrm cash requirements; although, PMC Comme
does not currently have any significant propertyeli@goments or repositioning projects planned. Tateire of PMC Commercia’business, ai
the requirements imposed by REIT rules that itrithiste a substantial majority of its REIT taxabfeéme on an annual basis in the forr
dividends, may cause PMC Commercial to have sutigkdiguidity needs over the long-term. PMC Comupial will seek to satisfy its long-
term liquidity needs through cash flows from opiers, longterm secured indebtedness and property dispositidmsse sources of fundi
may not be available on attractive terms or atlalPMC Commercial cannot obtain additional fundifay its longterm liquidity needs, i
investments may generate lower cash flows or dedfirvalue, or both, which may cause PMC Commetoiaéduce its dividend or sell as
at a time when it would not otherwise do so.

CIM Urban has incurred indebtedness and expects tmcur significant additional indebtedness on a cordidated basis, which may affec
its ability to pay distributions to PMC Commercial, may expose it to interest rate fluctuation risk ad may expose it to the risk ¢
default under debt obligations.

CIM Urban expects to incur significant additionadéebtedness, including through the use and potestigansion of its existir
revolving credit lines or the use of a new creidi¢] and there are no restrictions on the amouiridebtedness that CIM Urban may incur.
degree of leverage could make CIM Urban more valblerto a downturn in business or the economy géger
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Payments of principal and interest on borrowingy teave CIM Urban’s propertgwning entities with insufficient cash resource
operate its properties and/or pay distributionse Tincurrence of substantial outstanding indebtexiigs CIM Urban, and the limitatio
imposed by the debt agreements of CIM Urban, cbalee significant other adverse consequences, imgute following:

* The cash flow of CIM Urban may be insufficient t@@b our required principal and interest payme

* CIM Urban may be unable to borrow additional fsirad needed or on favorable terms, which couldradiyeaffect CIM Urbarg

liquidity for acquisitions or operation

* CIM Urban may be unable to refinance its indebtedrag maturity or the refinancing terms may be fagsrable than the terms

CIM Urbar’s original indebtednes
* CIM Urban may be forced to dispose of one or mdiigsgroperties, possibly on disadvantageous tg
CIM Urban will be exposed to interest and futureeiast rate volatility with respect to indebtednisg is variable rate; ar

* Any property-owning entity may default on its igiations and the lenders or mortgagees may fore@dasCIM Urbans propertie

and execute on any collateral that secures thairsl;

If any one of these events were to occur, CIM Utbdmancial condition, results of operations, céelv, and ability to satisfy ol
debt service obligations and to pay distributiom®MC Commercial could be adversely affected. PMEn@ercials ability to pay dividenc
to shareholders may be adversely impacted by Clbbkis inability to pay distributions to PMC Commercibd.addition, any foreclosure
CIM Urban’s properties could create taxable incamithout accompanying cash proceeds, which coulaestly affect CIM Urbars ability tc
meet the REIT distribution requirements imposedhayCode.

CIM Urban may be unable to refinance its indebtednss at maturity or the refinancing terms may be les§avorable than the terms o
CIM Urban’s original indebtedness.

Upon maturity of indebtedness obtained by CIM Uthilwere is no assurance that replacement finanmimgbe obtained or, if it
obtained, that interest rates and other terms wbelds favorable as for the original indebtednbsshility to refinance indebtedness
favorable terms may compel CIM Urban to attempdispose of the property or other properties on $deas favorable than might be obtai
at a later date. In addition, if the indebtednesguned before refinancing could be procured, tinelée could foreclose on the collateral
CIM Urban might suffer losses as a result of tleaéclosure. Further, lenders may require insuragegnst terrorist acts, particularly for la
properties in urban areas, and the unavailabifigugh insurance may make it difficult to financerefinance investments.

Third parties seeking to satisfy a liability of CIM Urban may have recourse against all of CIM Urban’sassets generally.

CIM Urban’s assets, including any investments held by CIMadrand any funds held by CIM Urban, may be availablsatisfy a
liabilities and other obligations of CIM Urban. @M Urban becomes subject to a liability, partieglsng to have the liability satisfied n
have recourse to CIM Urbaassets generally and not be limited to any paatiasset, such as the asset representing thetimeet giving ris
to the liability. In particular, CIM Urban has acmirse, unsecured line of credit. In the event Cli¥an is unable to pay its obligations as-
become due under the line of credit, the lender puague any or all of CIM Urban’s assets.

The market demand for Secondary Market Loan Sales iay decline or be temporarily suspended.

The market for the sale of the government guaranpeetion of SBA 7(a) Program loans may diminishi/an the premiums, if an
achieved on selling loans into that market mayduiced. To the extent the capital and credit marogberience volatility and disruption, th
may be a decrease in liquidity to acquire the gowvemt guaranteed portion of loans which are typicsdld into the secondary market. T
market dislocation could be a result of decreasgdstor demand for assecked securities in general or loans to a pagticualdustry and/c
increased investor yield requirements.
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REIT Related Risks

The following risk factors apply to the REIT quahtion of PMC Commercial and CIM Urban upon contigie of the merge
anticipated to occur no later than March 31, 2014.

PMC Commercial may incur adverse tax consequenceEPMC Commercial or any REIT subsidiary of CIM Urba n has failed or fails tc
qualify as a REIT for U.S. federal income tax purpges.

CIM Urban holds investments through REIT subsidisriEach of PMC Commercial and each REIT subsidiér¢€IM Urban ha
operated in a manner that it believes has allowsslqualify as a REIT for federal income tax pwses under the Code, and PMC Comme
and each such REIT subsidiary of CIM Urban intetudsontinue operating in such a manner. Neithd?MfC Commercial nor any such RE
subsidiary of CIM Urban has requested or plangtpest a ruling from the Internal Revenue Servie¢ it qualifies as a REIT. Qualification
a REIT involves the application of highly technieald complex Code provisions for which there arly éimited judicial and administrati\
interpretations. The complexity of these provisi@msl of the applicable treasury regulations thathaeen promulgated under the Coc
greater in the case of a REIT that holds its agsetaigh a partnership. The determination of varifactual matters and circumstances
entirely within the control of PMC Commercial oryasuch REIT subsidiary of CIM Urban may affectatsility to qualify as a REIT. In ord
to qualify as a REIT, each of PMC Commercial anchesuch REIT subsidiary of CIM Urban must satisfyusnber of requirements, includ
requirements regarding the ownership of its shaeggjirements regarding the composition of its@saed a requirement that at least 95% ¢
gross income in any year must be derived from §iadj sources, such as “rents from real properflso, a REIT must make distributions
shareholders aggregating annually at least 90%s afet taxable income, excluding any net capitaigydf any REIT subsidiary of CIM Urbi
has failed or fails to qualify as a REIT for anpsen, PMC Commercial would succeed to or incuriggmt tax liabilities and its ownership
CIM Urban could result in PMC Commercial failingdqoalify as a REIT.

If PMC Commercial loses its REIT status, it willc&aserious tax consequences that would substgntédlice its cash available
distribution, including cash available to pay ditidis to its shareholders, for each of the yeaxd\ed because:
® it would not be allowed a deduction for dividendsdoto shareholders in computing its taxable incamé would be subject
federal income tax at regular corporate re
* it also could be subject to the federal alternativeimum tax and possibly increased state and liao@s; anc
* unless it is entitled to relief under applicablatgtory provisions, it could not elect to be taxeeda REIT for four taxable yei
following the year during which it was disqualifie

In addition, if PMC Commercial fails to qualify as REIT, it will not be required to make distribui® to shareholders, ¢
accordingly, distributions from CIM Urban could bienilarly reduced. As a result of all these fact&®®C Commerciab failure to qualify as
REIT could impair its ability to expand its busisesnd raise capital, and would materially adveraéfgct the value of its shares.

REITs are subject to a range of complex organizatiwal and operational requirements.

In order to continue to qualify as a REIT, PMC Coenaial must distribute with respect to each taxaleler at least 90% of its RE
taxable income (excluding capital gains) to itsrehalders. A REIT must also meet certain requirdsieiith respect to the nature of its incc
and assets, and the ownership of its shares. Rotaxable year that PMC Commercial fails to quabfy a REIT, it will not be allowed
deduction for dividends paid to its shareholdersamputing taxable income and thus would becomgstio U.S. federal income tax as
were a regular taxable corporation. In such an \WRMC Commercial could be subject to potentialgngicant tax liabilities. Unless entitl
to relief under certain statutory provisions, PM@n@nercial would also be disqualified from treatmasta REIT for the four taxable ye
following the year in which it lost its qualificath. If PMC Commercial failed to qualify as a RERe market price of PMC Commert
Common Shares may decline, and PMC Commercial reagl to reduce substantially the amount of distigimstto its shareholders becaus
its increased tax liability.

The rules regulating REITs impose restrictions fluntypes of investments a REIT can make and thestgp activities in which it c:
engage directly. PMC Commerciglactivities will be limited by these restriciodlBMC Commercial might, however, also make ce
investments or engage in certain activities thREAT could not engage in directly (e.g., the sdleamdominiums) through one or more taxi
REIT subsidiaries. Any income earned through aliexREIT subsidiary would be subject to federabime tax at regular corporate rates.
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Ownership limitations associated with our REIT statis may restrict change of control or business comibation opportunities.

In order for PMC Commercial to qualify as a REIT, more than 50% in value of our outstanding comrsioares may be own
directly or indirectly, by five or fewer individuslduring the last half of any calendar year. “lndiisals” include natural persons, priv
foundations, some employee benefit plans and trastssome charitable trusts.

To preserve PMC CommercialREIT status, our declaration of trust generatighfbits any shareholder from directly or indirg
owning more than 9.8% of any class or series ofootstanding common shares or preferred sharesutiipecific waiver from our Board. T
ownership limitation could have the effect of digraging a takeover or other transaction in whicllés of our common shares might rec
a premium for their shares over the then prevaitiragket price or which holders might believe tooli@erwise in their best interests.

After completion of the merger, the power of the Bard of Trust Managers to revoke PMC Commercials REIT election without
shareholder approval may cause adverse consequendtests shareholders.

If the reincorporation occurs, PMC Commeragabrganizational documents will permit its BoardTofist Managers to revoke
otherwise terminate its REIT election, without #ygproval of its shareholders, if the Board of TiMsinagers determines that it is not in P
Commercials best interest to qualify as a REIT. In such &cB8C Commercial would become subject to U.S.rddstate and local incor
tax on its net taxable income and PMC Commercialld/oo longer be required to distribute most ofniéd taxable income to its shareholc
which have adverse consequences on the total retuisishareholders.

Our ownership of and relationship with our taxable REIT subsidiaries will be limited, and a failure to comply with the limits would
jeopardize our REIT status and may result in the aplication of a 100% excise tax.

Subject to certain restrictions, a REIT may owntoid00% of the stock of one or more taxable REIbs#@diaries. A taxable RE
subsidiary may earn income that would not be qyialif income if earned directly by the parent REBDth the subsidiary and the REIT r
jointly elect to treat the subsidiary as a taxdRET subsidiary. A corporation of which a taxabIEIR subsidiary directly or indirectly ow
more than 35% of the voting power or value of tteels will automatically be treated as a taxable RElibsidiary. Overall, no more than 2
of the value of a REIB assets may consist of stock or securities ofoomaore taxable REIT subsidiaries. A taxable REIbDsdiary general
will pay income tax at regular corporate rates ay taxable income that it earns. In addition, thgable REIT subsidiary rules limit t
deductibility of interest paid or accrued by a taleaREIT subsidiary to its parent REIT to assure the taxable REIT subsidiary is subjec
an appropriate level of corporate taxation. Thesuwlso impose a 100% excise tax on certain triosadetween a taxable REIT subsid
and its parent REIT that are not conducted on arisalength basis.

Our taxable REIT subsidiaries are subject to norrogborate income taxes. We continuously moniterwalue of our investments
taxable REIT subsidiaries for the purpose of emgudompliance with the rule that no more than 25%e value of our assets may consis
taxable REIT subsidiary stock and securities (whchpplied at the end of each calendar quartdr®. dggregate value of our taxable R
subsidiary stock and securities is less than 25%ef/alue of our total assets (including our tédXEIT subsidiary stock and securities) &
December 31, 2013. In addition, we will scrutingdé of our transactions with our taxable REIT sulieiies for the purpose of ensuring
they are entered into on arm&ngth terms in order to avoid incurring the 100%eise tax described above. There are no distrih
requirements applicable to the taxable REIT subsiel and aftetax earnings may be retained. There can be noawsjrhowever, that \
will be able to comply with the 25% limitation orwnership of taxable REIT subsidiary stock and siéesron an ongoing basis so a:
maintain REIT status or to avoid application of % excise tax imposed on certain non-arm’s-letrginsactions.

Item 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.

28



Table of Contents

Item 2. PROPERTIES
We lease office space for our corporate headquairddallas, Texas under an operating lease whiplres in February 2015.

The merger is anticipated to close no later thanc81, 2014. CIM Urbas’ portfolio of properties consists of office, midthily anc
hotel assets located in 11 U.S. markets. See ‘tellanagement’s Discussion and Analysis.”

Item 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

REIT Redux, L.P. et al v. PMC Commercial TrusgleOn October 9, 2013, a putative class action andativie lawsuit was filed i
the Dallas County Court at Law No. 5 in Dallas Cyuiiexas against and purportedly on behalf of P@&nmercial. The complaint namec
defendants PMC Commercial, members of the Boardexedutive officers of PMC Commercial and CIM RETMhe plaintiffs asserted t
action as a direct action, as well as a derivatiggon and alleged, among other things, that thar@dreached the PMC Commer
Declaration of Trust and conspired to deprive thentiffs and the class of their right to vote topaove or decline the merger, to approv
decline of the sale of PMC Commercial and to approv decline the authorization of the PMC Commérctanmon shares necessan
support the conversion rights of the PMC Commergiaferred shares to be issued pursuant to theemaggeement. The plaintiffs alleg
among other things, that the Board breached itscfidy duties by approving and recommending thesgations to the shareholders witt
due regard for the fairness of the transactiotinfato maximize value for the shareholders, engadgn bad faith and settealing by preferrin
transactions that further enriched the trust marsagiethe expense of the shareholders, and comgp@ideprive the shareholders of their vc
power and prerogatives. The complaint alleged @I REIT aided, abetted and induced those breaod&luciary duty. The complai
further alleged that the causes of action wereagged by gross negligence and intentional andcinak wrongdoing. The complaint sou
an order enjoining a vote on the transactions coplated by the merger agreement, an order cergjfihie matter as a class action for dam:
damages for lost shareholder value, exemplary dasjagtorneys fees and costs, appointment of a receiver, ficiso demands, in order
preserve and maximize shareholder value, and ladiratuch relief as the court may find reasonabtkerecessary to which plaintiffs may
entitled. We denied all of the allegations in tleenplaint.

As of January 28, 2014, we entered into settleragrtements with the plaintiffs subject to courtrappl. Under the terms of a cl
and derivative settlement agreement Manager ageepdrchase up to 2.75 million common shares of Rb#thmercial at market prices of
to $5.00 per share under a 10b%rading plan. The trading plan will generally &rpon the date that 2.75 million PMC Commerciaincaor
shares have been purchased or August 10, 2014heurdc is earlier. Also, pursuant to a separatéesetit agreement, Manager agree
purchase up to 500,000 PMC Commercial common stoavasd by REIT Redux, L.P. and its other “reportpagsons”at a price of $5.00 p
share, if requested by REIT Redux, L.P. to do sangttime between July 10, 2014 and August 10, 2014ddition, PMC Commercial h
agreed to pay reasonable attorney’s fees and expehplaintiffs’ counsel, as may be awarded bycihrt, of $772,000.

In the normal course of business we are periogigadity to certain legal actions and proceedingslining matters that are gener
incidental to our business.¢ ., collection of loans receivable). In managem®opinion, the resolution of these legal actiond proceeding
will not have a material adverse effect on our ofidated financial statements.

Item 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable.
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PART Il

Item 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELA TED SHAREHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our common shares are traded on the NYSE MKT utfteisymbol “PCC”.Subsequent to completion of the merger, our con
shares will be traded on the NASDAQ Global Marketier the symbol “PMCT.The following table sets forth, for the periodsigaded, th
high and low sales prices as reported on the NY$H Npreviously NYSE Amex) and the regular dividenuks share declared by us for €
such period.

Regular Quarterl

Dividends Per

Quarter Ende High Low Share
December 31, 2013 $ 918 $ 8.3¢ $0.125
September 30, 201 $10.2¢ $ 8.3( $0.125
June 30, 201 $ 85 $ 7.2¢ $0.125
March 31, 201: $ 76 $ 6.7 $0.125
December 31, 201 $ 7.7¢ $ 6.0¢ $0.120
September 30, 201 $ 82 $ 7.3t $0.160
June 30, 201 $ 8.7¢ $ 7.5( $0.160
March 31, 201: $ 9.0 $ 6.9t $0.160

On March 5, 2014, there were approximately 625 érslaf record of our common shares, excluding $tolders whose shares w
held by brokerage firms, depositories and othetitit®nal firms in “street namefor their customers. The last reported sales poiceur
common shares on March 5, 2014 was $9.69.

Our shareholders are entitled to receive dividemtden and as declared by the Board. On Februarg@84, the Board declarec
special dividend of $5.50 per common share plusgt@rata portion of our regular quarterly cash dividewdrued through the closing dat
the merger payable ten business days following¢imepletion of the merger.

During 2013, due primarily to the payment of sememexpenses and realized losses on our foreclgpsaperties, we generate:
taxable loss and all of our dividends were deerodaktreturns of capital.

We have not had any sales of unregistered seaudtigng the last three years.

See Item 12 in this Form 10-K for information redjag our equity compensation plans.
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Performance Graph

The following information in Item 5 is not deemexdite “soliciting material” or to be “filedivith the SEC or subject to Regulation 1
or 14C under the Securities Exchange Act of 19%k¢hange Act”)or to the liabilities of Section 18 of the Exchangjet, and will not b
deemed to be incorporated by reference into amgfilnder the Securities Act of 1933 or the ExcleaAgt, except to the extent the Comp
specifically incorporates it by reference into sactiing.

The line graph below compares the percentage chiandee cumulative total shareholder return on cemmon shares of benefic
interest with the cumulative total return of thesReil 2000 and our Peer Group which consists giudlicly traded investment companies
have the primary focus of mortgabacked security REITs and specialty finance REidted on the NYSE, NYSE MKT and the NASDAQ
which coverage is provided by SNL Financial LC flioe period from December 31, 2008 through Decer@beP013 assuming an investrr
of $100 on December 31, 2008 and the reinvestrfetivimlends. The share price performance showrhergtaph is not necessarily indica
of future price performance.

Total Return Performance
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Item 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following is a summary of our Selected FinahBiata as of and for the five years in the periodedl December 31, 2013.
following data should be read in conjunction withr @onsolidated financial statements and the ntiteeeto and “Item 7. Management’
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition d&ekults of Operations” appearing elsewhere inFlisn 10K. The selected financial d:
presented below has been derived from our congetidanancial statements.

Years Ended December &
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
(Dollars in thousands, except per share informafi

Total revenues (1 $ 17,90 $ 17,06¢ $ 16,07¢ $ 15,46 $ 16,26
Total expenses ( $ 14,27¢ $ 17,85¢ $ 11,27C $ 10,75: $ 10,377
Income (loss) from continuing operatic $ 2,41 $ (1,356 $ 469: $ 484: $ 6,051
Discontinued operations ( $ (347) $ (823 $ (1,045 $ (54%) $ 704
Net income (loss) (4 $ 2,067 $ (2,179 $ 3,647 $ 4,297 $ 6,761
Basic weighted average common shares outstal 10,59¢ 10,58¢ 10,57( 10,55¢ 10,57:
Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per common sl

Income (loss) from continuing operatic $ 0.2 $ 019 $ 044 $ 0.4¢ $ 0.57

Net income (loss $ 0.2C $ (0.2 $ 032 $ 041 $ 0.64
Dividends declared, comm $ 5,29¢ $ 6,35¢ $ 6,767 $ 6,751 $ 7,44t
Dividends per common sha $ 0.50C $ 0.60C $ 0.64C $ 0.64C $ 0.70¢
Net asset value per common sh $ 1282 $ 1318 $ 13.97 $ 14.2¢ $ 14.4¢
Return on total assets ( 2.63% 0.73% 2.96% 3.41% 4.15%
Return on equity (6 1.51% -1.53% 2.46% 2.85% 4.43%

At December 31
2013 2012 2011 2010 (7) 2009
(In thousands

Loans receivable, ni $ 23658 $ 23899 $ 23442 $ 23321 $ 196,64
Retained interests in transferred as $ 694 $ 77 $ 99%€¢ $ 1,01C $ 12,52
Total asset $ 25341 $ 247,70 $ 251,24° $ 252,127 $ 228,24
Debt $ 109,39 $ 97,166 $ 9586 $ 92,96¢ $ 68,50¢
Total beneficiarie’ equity $ 135,15 $ 138,32t $ 146,83t $ 149,66( $ 151,55

(1) The decrease in total revenues and incom ftontinuing operations from 2009 to 2010 is pritgadue to declines i
LIBOR. In addition, due to a change in accountindes effective January 1, 2010, our total revenuds fluctuate
significantly based on secondary market loan satesrecorded premium income.

(2) During 2013, includes $2.8 million of tramsi@n costs. During 2012, includes $3.9 millionateld to the evaluation
strategic alternatives and $2.1 million of severamand related benefits expense.

(3) We foreclosed on the underlying collaterdl tbree hospitality properties during 2010 whichngeated significan
operating and impairment losses during 2010, 2@D1,2 and 2013.

(4) The decrease in net income (loss) from 2012012 is due primarily to costs associated with évaluation of strateg
alternatives of $3.9 million and severance and tediabenefits expense of $2.1 million during 2012.

(5) Earnings (loss) before interest expenseiandme taxes as a percentage of average total asset

(6) Earnings (loss) as a percentage of averaga beneficiaries’ equity

(7) Effective January 1, 2010, due to a changeaccounting rules, the assets and liabilities bé toffbalance shee
securitizations were consolidated. In additiongefive January 1, 2010, due to a change in accagntules, proceed
received from legally sold portions of loans punsue Secondary Market Loan Sales (those soldxoes spread or tho:
sold for a 10% cash premium and excess spreadpamaanently treated as secured borrowings for ifieedf the loan
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ltem7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion should be read in conjiamctvith our Consolidated Financial Statements &nel related notes that appe
elsewhere in this document. For a more detailecmigson of the risks affecting our financial cotidn and results of operations, seRisk
Factor<” in Item 1A of this Form 10-K.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
Business Overview

We are a commercial finance company that is orgah&s a REIT and historically has specialized ndileg to the limited servi
hospitality industry. We have primarily been a coencal mortgage lender that originates loans tollsimasinesses that are princips
collateralized by first liens on the real estatéhef related business.

Our business of originating loans has been affettgdyeneral commercial real estate fundamentals taedoverall econom
environment. We designed our investment stratedettiexible so that we could adjust our loan atés in anticipation of, and in reaction
changes in the commercial real estate capital aoplepty markets and the overall economy as wetlhasmges to the specific characteristic
the underlying real estate assets that serve &earal for the majority of our investments and were able to continue to operate a profit
lending business. However, we have experiencedahility to significantly increase our assets une@nagement due to our limited ability
obtain leverage. As a result, during the past feary, we focused our origination efforts on SBA) Rebgram loans which require less ca|
due to our ability to sell the government guaradtgertion of such loans in the secondary markeé @iavailability of our traditional sourc
of capital has continued to constrain our growtmam-SBA 7(a) loan originations resulting in our becogtependent on SBA 7(a) Progi
loans.

In an effort to maximize shareholder value, on 812013, we entered into a definitive merger ages® with CIM REIT, a prival
commercial REIT, and subsidiaries of the respecipagties. On February 11, 2014, PMC Commercial edf@ders approved cert
transactions contemplated by the merger agreempptoval for the transfer of our SBA 7(a) licensasareceived from the SBA on March
2014. The merger is anticipated to be completedatey than March 31, 2014 based upon the satisfacii waiver of all conditions to t
merger.

In connection with the merger, we will issue 22,003 common shares of beneficial interest and @&3J2A preferred shares
beneficial interest to Urban II.

All PMC Commercial common shares that were outstaposmmediately prior to the transactions will remautstanding following tt
merger and related transactions. In addition, PM@ @ercial shareholders of record at the close ebilsiness day prior to the closing of
transactions will receive a special cash divideh®%50 per common share plus that pata portion of our regular quarterly cash divic
accrued through the closing date of the mergerlgayan business days following the completiorhefrnerger.

Upon completion of the merger, we will become theent of CIM Urban, the operating subsidiary of CREIT. We expect that tl
merger will provide us with the opportunity to irstein a portfolio of high quality performing reabtate assets that is managed b
experienced senior management team. To the externherger is completed, our business will be difiedsby product type, industry, teni
and asset class, which we believe will provide ith the ability to obtain capital on more attraetiterms than are currently available to us
the opportunity to participate in the enhancedriigrowth potential of the combined company. We alslieve that our shareholders will lik
benefit, over time, from the enhanced liquidityttehould result from a much greater number of @mmmon shares being held by a broi
shareholder base.

In addition, upon completion of the merger, we glarf{l) invest primarily in substantially stabil&zeeal estate and real estattatec
assets in high density, high barriergotry urban markets throughout North America, imanner similar to the current investment stratef
CIM Urban and (2) continue to originate loans toafirbusinesses collateralized by first liens on tbal estate of the related businesse
accordance with our current investment strategywbtlit a focus on expanding our existing businessrifinating loans through the SBA 7
Program.
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CIM Urban and its subsidiaries invest primarilysimbstantially stabilized real estate and real esédaited assets in high density, t
barrier-toentry urban markets throughout North America, whdM Group has targeted for opportunistic investmehich are likely, in CIN
Group’s opinion, to experience aboaeerage rent growth relative to national averagekoa their neighboring central business distri€tBvi
Group is an integrated, full-service investment ag@r with inhouse research, acquisition, investment, developniierance, leasing ai
management capabilities.

Our lending business will continue to be manageainyexisting employees and management team. Témtgns of our real est:
business will be managed by CIM Group through a®stment management agreement that will providedthetoday management of ClI
Urban’s operations. CIM Group will manage most aspecuofreal estate business to the extent the me&gampleted, and it is anticipa
that PMC Commercial will be the principal investrhesrghicle through which CIM Group will place substially stabilized real este
investments. We expect to generate additional Viayue

® expanding the existing CIM Urban portfolio thrdutine acquisition of substantially stabilized resilate and real estatelated assets
yields which are accretive relative to the targetitiend;

® increasing the leverage of the CIM Urban real espatrtfolio from its current ratio to a ratio mdreline with the broad universe
REITs, and to the extent additional borrowing isrtlavailable, subsequently investing the procestdsadditional investments; ai

* expanding over time into new real estate-relatetivities supported by CIM Group’broad real estate investment capabilities. 1
activities may include (1) originating and/or intieg in a variety of loan products, including, butt limited to, mezzanine loa
commercial real estate loans and other types ofslo@) real estate development activities to ereate property or otherwise, anc

(3) forming an operended REIT to raise additional capital from indtitoal investors, which would involve a joint verguwith CIM

Urban.

Overview and History of CIM Group

Founded by Shaul Kuba, Richard Ressler and Avi Sisamall of whom continue to direct the strategyCt¥1 Group and its day-to-
day management, CIM Group (affiliates of which wpitbvide services as the Advisor under various stment management agreements al
the Manager under the Master Services Agreemendnisntegrated, full-service investment managehifi-house research, acquisiti
investment, development, finance, leasing and memagt capabilities. CIM Group currently manageg#tments for its principals, partn
and investors, which include U.S. and internatiopahsion funds, endowments, multinational corporetiand other institutional privi
investors.

CIM Group was established in 1994 as a partneinfzestors seeking urban real estate investmentsrimmunities qualified by ClI
Group. During the past 19 years, CIM Group has @manted a consistent investment strategy and diseiim which it focuses on identifyil
and investing in urban properties in regions aretiéig submarkets in which market values have dedppelow intrinsic valuesife., long-terr
values to which CIM Group expects market valuesetmover) or in underserved/transitional urban iitstrthat have dedicated resource
become vibrant urban communities. CIM Graunvestment track record includes the formatiors@¥en institutional funds across C
Group’s opportunistic and stabilized real estate investrp&atforms as well as its infrastructure investinglatform. CIM Group has active
managed, leased, operated or otherwise controfiptbgimately 120 commercial real estate assetgeggting more than 22.6 million squ
feet with the goal of generating superior retuiorsits investors relative to the risk undertakemtigh investment in such assets.

Initially, CIM Group’s investments were made primarily with capital dbated by its principals. CIM Group has grown litgsines
significantly by investing in commercial and mudtifily real estate located in high-barrieretry urban markets through a variety
institutional funds. CIM Group primary real estate holdings include retail, lodg office and multifamily assets located in ttamhal
downtown areas and main streets within metropolaagas of the United States. These neighborhoqguisatly possess abowererag
economic and socioeconomic characteristics, whistotically have been resilient to various econofftictuations. As an extension of C
Group’s urban investment strategy, CIM Group may alseshin the basic pillars of growing communitiesotigh public goods and servic
which includes transportation, energy and utilitieatural resources, social services and facildied communications. Going forward, C
Group is committed to growing its business by zitily the same investment strategy to create valuigsf private and public investors.

Community Qualification

CIM Group’s investment strategy is centered around a comgnguidlification process. Since 1994, CIM Group aslified 9¢
communities for investment and has made investmierapproximately 44 of these communities. The camity qualification process can t:
as little as six months to as much as five yeatsisia
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key consideration when making an investment deeistiM Urban expects that its investments will paiity consist of investments locatec
qualified communities. However, future investmemtay be located in other areas (including areasdritsf North America) that have be
presented to CIM Group by a member of its relatigmaetwork.

CIM Group examines the characteristics of a matketletermine whether the district justifies theemsive efforts CIM Grot
undertakes in reviewing and making potential inwesits in its qualified communities. Qualified conmities generally fall into one of tv
categories: (1) transitional urban districts andw@ll-established, thriving urban areas (typicaligjor central business districts).

The criteria for qualifying communities that arartsitional urban districts are as follows:
® Improving demographic:

Broad public support for CIM Gror's investment approac

Private investmen

Underserved niches in the commu’s real estate infrastructure; &

Potential to invest a minimum of $100 million ofpaptunistic equity within five year:

The criteria for qualifying communities locatedtimiving urban areas are as follows:
Positive demographic

® Public support for investmer

® Opportunities below intrinsic value; a

® Potential to invest a minimum of $100 million ofpaptunistic equity within five year:

Business Principle

The qualification process is one of CIM Grosigore competencies, which demonstrates a diseiplimvesting program and strate
outlook on urban communities. Once a communityualified, CIM Group believes it continues to diatiate itself through the followil
business principles:

® Permanent investor in its qualified communiti
Product no-specific;

Community-based tenanting
Local market leadership with North American footpriand
Investment diversificatior

Overview and History of CIM REIT

CIM REIT was formed by CIM Group in 2005 to invesitrough its whollyewned operating partnership, CIM Urban, primarih
substantially stabilized real estate and real estdated assets in urban markets throughout Nortlerira. Deploying the investment discipl
and processes it has developed as an investorgn density, high barrier to entry urban marketsrabe last 19 years, CIM Group |
implemented a consistent investment strategy asaipiine across its family of funds, in which itcfeses on identifying and investing in ur
properties in qualified communities. This strateayd discipline has resulted in a portfolio of asdetld by CIM Urban that CIM Gro
believes will outperform acquisitions of similarsas type and vintage. CIM REIT has completed theestment of the approximately $
billion of equity it raised from institutional inggors.

CIM Urban Business Objectives and Growth Strategies

CIM Urban’s objective is to achieve superior |laiegm returns relative to the risk that CIM Urbaruigdertaking. CIM Urban intends
achieve this objective by continuing to deploy timeestment processes that CIM Group has developedgl19 years as an investor in ur
markets and identifying opportunities to invespates below intrinsic values.

CIM Urban intends to drive portfolio growth throughcombination of acquisition and asset managesteategies, which are designe:
increase cash flows and asset value.

CIM Urban’s investment strategy is centered around a comgngudlification process. CIM Urban believes thisttgy provides it wit
a significant competitive advantage when makingaorbeal estate investments. The communities qedlifiy CIM Group are targeted url
districts that have a variety of resources and amerthat are instrumental to the communitigbrancy. These communities attract people
are looking for homes, jobs, stores, restaurantiscther entertainment venues within proximity tdlutransportation. CIM Urban believ
that improving demographics, combined with publ@nemitment and future investments in these urbaghteirhoods, will provide grea
returns within these qualified communities compatedsimilar properties in other markets. Since 19@4M Group has qualified ¢
communities and has deployed cash in approximdilgf these qualified communities. The qualificatiprocess is a critical componen
CIM Group’s investment evaluation. Although CIM Urban may imeest exclusively in qualified communities, itagpected that most of Cl
Urban’s investments will be identified through teisstematic process.
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Through an active management program provided by Gtoup, CIM Urbans$ objective is to enhance the value of its investsian
increase cash flow. CIM Group has extensivéhamse research, acquisition, investment, developnferancing, leasing and other a:
management capabilities. CIM Urban believes tisahitherence to these core competencies throughGZtMp creates significant efficienc
of scale for CIM Urban, and has positioned CIM Urlba increase operating income and asset valuea.fAly integrated owner and opera
CIM Group’s asset management capabilities are cem@hted by its ifouse property management capabilities, which @elmonthly an
annual budgeting and reporting as well as vendoricgs management, property maintenance and capifanditures management. C
Group’s property managers seek to ensure that reveneetivigjs are met, lease terms are followed, reckgaére collected, preventat
maintenance programs are implemented, vendorsvateated and expenses are controlled. CIM Grouigwesand approves strategic plans
each investment, including financial, leasing, netirig, property positioning, strategic and disposifplans. In addition, CIM Group revie
and approves the annual business plan for thegtiortin a property-by-property basis, includingdépital and operating budget.

Competitive Advantages

CIM Urban believes that it has several competitilvantages to effectively carry out the foregoingibess objectives and gro
strategies:

» Strong Manager.CIM Urban will continue to be managed by CIM Growgich since 1994 has managed seven institutioamald
including CIM Urban. The competitive advantagesvpted to CIM Urban by CIM Group includ
. Experienced Management Tea@IM Group’s senior management team is composed of 10 priscigao have an avera
of 24 years of real estate and investment expegie@tM Group’s three foundersRichard Ressler, Avi Shemesh and S
Kuba—have worked together for the last 20 years, andtbeder senior management team has largely wddgsther fo
more than 10 year
. Integrated, Multidisciplinary Organization CIM Group has extensive meuse expertise in all aspects of real es
including market research, urban planning, comnyuretations, architecture, legal affairs, finandeyelopment, leasin
property management and tax. As a result, CIM Grprgvides handsn operating expertise throughout the invest
process
. Extensive Investment and Operating Experien€dM Group has invested in and operated a widayaof asset type
including multifamily, retail, office, hotel, infetructure, parking, signage and mixesk properties, as well as loans, anc
undertaken investments in both substantially stadall assets as well as opportunistic assets raguidievelopmer
redevelopment, distressed turnaround and/or redigaition strategies
. Disciplined Investment Proces$CIM Group follows a clearly defined and discigth investment process that it belie
enables it to identify and select attractive inwestts and to quantify and mitigate risk factorsisTprocess carries
investment through its entire lifecycle, spannitigsiges including sourcing, research, underwgitiimancing, acquisitiol
asset management and disposit
» Sourcing of Investment Opportunities. CIM Urban will have access to CIM Grogpextensive network of relationships v
owners, lenders, special servicers, financial mtstiaries and other industry participants from wWwhit is able to cultival
investment opportunities that are either wi&rket or not broadly marketed. CIM Group also vgorlkith local government agenc
to understand the goals and commitments of eachcipality in an effort to improve the various nefgirhoods in which CIt
Group owns and operates real estate assets. CIMpGrilizes its indepth knowledge of its qualified communities arsdbtoar
network of relationships to target investments batwCIM Group believes to be a discount to thefririsic (i.e., expected long-
term) values. These opportunities may include imests that are publicly listed for sale as welthasse that may become availe
off-market, via privately negotiated transactic
» High Quality Assets.CIM Urban’s investments are typically high qualisoperties that CIM Group believes are wadisitioned t
outperform their peers. The investments CIM Urbakes in qualified communities are generally subiegositive external factc
that CIM Urban believes will enhance their valugluding higher rent growth rates than regional aational averages for simi
assets
»  Opportunity for Strategic Growth. CIM Urban expects to have a variety of capital teses due to the low leverage of its portf
and its internal cash generation. CIM Urban bebetleese expected capital resources will enable Gthan to pursue a prudt
growth strategy and allow for future accretive dsiions.
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Investment Strategy

CIM Urban’s investment strategy is to continue nwest in substantially stabilized real estate aml estateelated assets located
qualified communities in a manner that will allodMCUrban to increase the value of its assets argtdw its revenue and cash flow in orde
enhance the dividends paid to investors. By emptpwg similar investment strategy to that which Glivban has consistently utilized to ta
stabilized real estate assets, CIM Urlsambjective is to leverage its extensive knowledfjine targeted asset types and communities tdifgl
investment opportunities at prices below intrinsdues and achieve superior returns relative taitkewhich CIM Urban is undertaking.

CIM Urban plans to continue investing in a diveraage of stabilized urban properties and loansrséchiy such properties, includ
office, retail, hotel, multifamily apartments, sage and parking, which meet CIM Urbarihvestment strategy and criteria and are lo
principally in qualified communities.

Portfolio of Properties of CIM Urban

CIM Urban'’s office, multifamily and hotel assets are locatedl1 U.S. markets. The breakdown by segment, nharke submarket, as
December 31, 2013, was as follows:
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Overview of CIM Urban’s Portfolio as of December 312013

Office  Multi -
and Retail
Rentable family
Square Hotel
Property Description Market Sub-Market Feet Units Rooms
Office Portfolio:
Properties (19
BB&T Center Charlotte, NC Uptown 553,056 — —
1 Kaiser Plazi Oakland, CA Lake Merritt 532,947 — —
2101 Webster Stre: Oakland, CA Lake Merritt 473,614 — —
980 9th Stree Sacramento, C, Downtown/Midtown 456,645 — —
211 Main Stree San Francisco, C. S Financial Distric 415,120 — —
370 L’Enfant Promenad District of Columbii  Southwes 407,321 — —
999 N Capitol Stree District of Columbii Capitol Hill 321,980 — —
899 N Capitol Stree District of Columbii  Capitol Hill 314,317 — —
800 N Capitol Stree District of Columbii Capitol Hill 310,358 — —
1901 Harrison Stret Oakland, CA Lake Merritt 272,952 — —
830 1st Stree District of Columbii Capitol Hill 247,337 — —
1333 Broadwa Oakland, CA City Center 237,196 — —
2100 Franklin Stree Oakland, CA Lake Merritt 216,666 — —
11620 Wilshire Boulevar Los Angeles, C/ West LA 191,075 — —
Penn Fielc Austin, TX South 181,746 — —
7083 Hollywood Boulevar Los Angeles, C/ Hollywood/Sunse 82,180 — —
260 Townsent San Francisco, C.  South of Marke 66,943 — —
11600 Wilshire Boulevar Los Angeles, C/ West LA 55,586 — —
Civic Center Orange County, C/ Central 37,116 — —
5,374,15¢ — —
Ancillary Properties (3 Properties
901 N Capitol Street(1 District of Columbii  Capitol Hill — — —
1010 8th St Parking (garage & ret: Sacramento, C, Downtown/Midtown 12,275 — —
2353 Webster Street (parking gara Oakland, CA Lake Merritt — — —
12,275 — —
Total Office Portfolio (22 Properties) 5,386,431 — —
Multifamily Portfolio:
4649 Cole Avenu Dallas, TX Oaklawn — 334 —
Memorial Hills Houston, TX Montrose/River Oal — 308 —
47 E 34th Stree New York, NY Midtown West — 110 —
3636 McKinney Avenur Dallas, TX Central Dallas — 103 —
3839 McKinney Avenu Dallas, TX Central Dallas — 75 —
Total Multifamily Portfolio (5 Properties) — 930 —
Hotel Portfolio:
Hotels (3 properties
Sheraton Grand Hot Sacramento, C, Downtown/Midtown — — 503
Courtyard Oaklani Oakland, CA City Center — — 162
LAX Holiday Inn Los Angeles, C/ LAX — — 405
— — 1,070
Ancillary Properties (1 Property
Sheraton Grand Hotel Parking Garage & Re¢ Sacramento, C; Downtown/Midtown 9,453 — —
Total Hotel Portfolio (4 Properties) 9,453 — —
TOTAL PORTFOLIO (31 Properties) 5,395,884 930 1,070

(1) 901 N Capitol Street is a 39,696 square faotel of land located between 899 and 999 N Ghiteet. The land parcel is entitled to develn

additional 270,172 square foot buildir
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LOAN PORTFOLIO INFORMATION AND STATISTICS
General

Loans funded during 2013 and 2012 were $56.1 millind $54.2 million, respectively. We anticipataidundings to be between ¢
million and $85 million during 2014. At December,2D13 and 2012, our outstanding commitments td fugw loans were $13.6 million ¢
$19.5 million, respectively. The majority of ourramitments are for SBA 7(a) Program loans with ies¢rates based on the prime rate w
provide an interest rate match with our presentcsuof funds. These loans also provide an SBAagiee typically for 75% of the lo
amount.

The recession subjected our borrowers to finansiedss. Due to the prolonged economic downturn twed current econorr
environment, we believe that in general, our boemhequity in their properties has been eroded and fondlyer erode which may result in
increase in foreclosure activity and credit los3é® lagging impact of the adverse economic coowfitimay continue to have an adverse ¢
on the financial condition of individual borroweand the limited service hospitality industry whitlay require the establishment of signific
additional loan loss reserves and the effect onresults of operations and financial condition rbaymaterial. We continue to experience is
related to our borrowers including payment issussiduencies, nopayment or lack of timely payment of real estateesa requests f
payment deferrals and extended interest only psrilattk of cash flow, potential loss of franchideterioration of the physical property (
collateral) and declining property values.

We continue to actively monitor and manage our mdéproblem loans. In certain instances, wheig likely to maximize our retur
we will consider restructuring loans. As we conéro pursue ways of improving our overall recovang repayment on these loans, we
experience reductions in net investment incomecast flow.

Lodging Industry Trends

Our loans are predominantly (95%) collateralized Hmyspitality properties. Based on a forecast pmdidy industry analy
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (“PwC3s well as various other industry analysts, thepitality industry is expected to have a contin
recovery during 2014. Reasons for the continuedvwery during 2014 include anticipated above avexagipancy levels and demand grc
that is expected to outpace hotel openings.

For our borrowers, the stronger market (if achigwamlld improve revenues that will benefit castwfland the ability to cover the
debt service. In addition, as the market rebouwdsywould expect that values of hospitality propertivill increase and become more stable
that there will be an increase in qualified buyfersour foreclosed properties.

Secondary Market Loan Sales

First Western sells loans pursuant to the SBA HRagram. The SBA guaranteed portions of these l@aassold in legal sé
transactions to either dealers in government gt@eanloans or institutional investors (“Secondargrkét Loan Sales™as the loans are fu
funded. These government guaranteed portions ofsloaay be sold for (1) a cash premium and the mimini% SBA required servicil
spread, (2) significant future servicing spread andcash premium or (3) future servicing spread armhsh premium of 10% Hybrid loar
sales”). Prior to January 1, 2010, all of thesee$ypf transactions were recorded as salas,{ve recorded premium income) for accoun
purposes. Effective January 1, 2010, due to a ehangccounting rules, we were required to permigyéeat certain of the proceeds recei
from these legally sold portions of loans (thosnsold solely for future servicing spread andéhoans sold for a cash premium of 10%
future servicing spread) as secured borrowingstfdebthe life of the loan and 100% of the loaririsluded in our loans receivable. We cal
longer record premium income on these types ofsaélecordingly, cash premiums collected on hybo@n sales are deferred and reflected
liability on our consolidated balance sheet and rtimed as a reduction to interest expense ovelifthef the loan. Deferred cash premium
December 31, 2013 were $3.0 million.

During 2013, we sold $27.0 million of the guarant@ertion of SBA 7(a) Program loans. For tax pugssince all Secondary Mar
Loan Sales are legal sales, we are required tadegains based on present value cash flow techsigaasistent with the book accoun
treatment utilized until January 1, 2010. We redambme as we receive the excess spread as weeséne sold portion of the loan. When
sell loans and retain servicing spreads greater 108 basis points, management believes that the @ the future servicing spreads reta
was greater than the foregone cash premiums.
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Loan Activity

In addition to our retained portfolio of $239.6 haih at December 31, 2013, we service $84.7 milldbraggregate principal balar
remaining on Secondary Market Loan Sales that baes accounted for as sales. Since we retain dusdsnterest in the cash flows from
sold loans, the performance of these loans impaatsprofitability and our cash available for divigkdistributions. Therefore, we prov
information on both our retained portfolio and cAggregate Portfolio (retained portfolio plus centdegally sold government guarant
portions of SBA 7(a) Program loan sales which arerecorded on our balance sheet).

Information on our Aggregate Portfolio, includingepayment trends, was as follows:

December 31
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
(Dollars in thousands

Aggregate Portfolio (1 $324,32! $313,54. $297,45. $284,45. $273,68
Loans fundet $56,13. $54,16: $38,35. $38,44(  $30,43!
Prepayment $22,81¢ $20,18: $10,35: $10,83( $12,79:
% Prepayments (z 7.3% 6.8% 3.6% 4.0% 4.6%

(1) Portfolio outstanding before loan loss reseramd deferred commitment fees.
(2) Represents prepayments as a percentage diguregate Portfolio outstanding as of the beginrofihe applicable yea

Loans Receivable Rollforward
The following table summarizes our loan activity fmr retained loans for the five-year period enBedember 31, 2013:

Years Ended December @

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
(In thousands

Loans receivable, n- beginning of yea $ 238,991 $ 234,427 $ 233,218 $ 196,642 $ 179,807
Loans funde- commercial mortgage loal 23,093 19,339 4,680 4,908 2,425
Loans funde SBA 7(a) Program loar 33,038 34,822 33,672 33,532 28,010
Loans originate« nor-cash (1 975 1,225 1,172 31,261 32,563
Proceeds from the sale of SBA 7(a) Program loan (23,687) (18,473) (15,774) (7,692) (24,996)
Prepayment (15,827) (15,691) (8,357) (9,716) (5,600)
Scheduled principal paymer (12,734) (12,871) (13,116) (11,283) (9,040)
Loans transferred to REO ( (3,641) (1,481) (409) (4,040) (4,948)
Reclassifications (4 (1,749) - - - -

Other adjustments (¢ (1,870) (2,306) (659) (394) (1,579)
Loans receivable, n- end of yeal $ 236,589 $ 238,991 $ 234,427 $ 233,218 $ 196,642

(1) Represents loans originated to facilitate the saeREQO and consolidation of securitized loans Whiere previousl
off balance sheet reconsolidatiol

(2) During 2010- 2013, represents proceeds from the sale of thergment guaranteed portion of SBA 7(a) Progranm$oa
sold solely for cash premiums due to a change @oating rules

(3) Loans on which the collateral was foreclosed upnd tne assets were subsequently classified as

(4) Reclassifications from secured borrowir— government guaranteed loans to loans receivable,

(5) Represents the net change in loan loss reserv&asutits and deferred commitment fe
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

Our discussion and analysis of our financial caodind our results of operations is based uporconsolidated financial statemei
which have been prepared in accordance with GAAR. dreparation of these financial statements reguis to make estimates and judgrr
that affect the reported amounts of assets, liadsli revenues and expenses and related disclo$wentingent assets and liabilities. |
management has discussed the development andigeletithese critical accounting policies and eatias with the audit committee of
Board, and the audit committee has reviewed thelatiares relating to these policies and estimatelsdied in this annual report.

We believe the following critical accounting coresidtions and significant accounting policies repne®ur more significant judgme
and estimates used in the preparation of our cwleetl financial statements.

Determination of Loan Loss Reserves

We have a quarterly review process to identify emaluate potential exposure to loan losses. Ldaatsréquire specific identificatis
review are troubled debt restructurings and loaestified based on one or more negative charatitsrigcluding, but not limited to, non-
payment or lack of timely payment of interest angbiancipal, nonpayment or lack of timely payment of property takasan extended peri
of time, insurance defaults and/or franchise dédadlhe specific identification evaluation beginghwan evaluation of the estimated fair vi
of the loan. In determining estimated fair valugn@agement utilizes the present value of the exgduatere cash flows discounted at the l@an’
effective interest rate and/or an estimation ofuhderlying collateral values using appraisalskergrice opinions, tax assessed value al
revenue analysis. Appraisals are ordered on alpasase basis when management believes that the e@mnofrthe property warrant tha
current appraisal be performed. We generally obfIRREA appraisals from certified appraisers froational companies. Management
appraisals as tools in conjunction with other dateants of collateral value as described abovestonate collateral values, not as the
determinant of value. The property valuation takes consideration current information on propergjues in general and value change
commercial real estate and/or hospitality propsrtiEhe probability of liquidation is then determdnleased on many factors and is uniqt
each individual loan. These probability determioiasi include macroeconomic factors, the locatiothefproperty and economic environn
where the property is located, industry specifittdas relating primarily to the hospitality indusi@and further to the limited service segmer
the hospitality industry), our historical experienwith similar borrowers and/or individual borrowar collateral characteristics, and in cer
circumstances, the strength of the guarantors. liflaédation probability is then applied to the espee to loss to determine the gener:
specific reserve for that loan and the ultimateedeination as to whether the loan is consideredhired.

The general loan loss reserve is established whaiteble information indicates that it is probabléoss has occurred in the portft
and the amount of the loss can be reasonably d@stim8ignificant judgment is required in determgthe general loan loss reserve, inclu
estimates of the likelihood of default and theraatied fair value of the collateral. The generahlt@ss reserve includes those loans which
have negative characteristics which have not yebine known to us. In addition to the reserves ésteal on loans not considered impa
that have been evaluated under a specific evatuatie general loan loss reserve uses a consisgthbdology to determine a loss percen
to be applied to outstanding loan balances. These percentages are based on many factors, pgneanihulative and recent loss histc
general economic conditions and more specificallyant trends in the limited service hospitalitgdustry.

Upon sale of the government guaranteed portion 8BA 7(a) Program loan, the unguaranteed portiothefloan retained by us
valued on a fair value basis and a discount isrdmmbas a reduction in basis of the retained pomibthe loan. At December 31, 2013, tt
discounts on the retained portions of our SBA Rigram loans totaled $2.7 million. In additionestablishing general reserves on our
portfolio, the SBA 7(a) retained portion of our hsaare separately evaluated and general resergentages applied are typically highe
address the potential for greater loss upon ligiagdaof the underlying collateral on the unguaredt&BA 7(a) Program loan portfolio.

Additional changes to the facts and circumstanéelseindividual borrowers, the limited service pitality industry and the econor
may require the establishment of significant addil loan loss reserves and the effect on ourtestibperations may be adverse.
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Valuation of REO and Impaired Loans

REO consists of properties acquired through fomeale in partial or total satisfaction of npefforming loans. REO acquired
satisfaction of a loan is recorded at estimatedvfalue less estimated costs to sell the propdrtheadate of foreclosure. Any excess of
carrying value of the loan over the fair value lod property less estimated costs to sell is chaoffeid the loan loss reserve when title to
property is obtained. Any excess of the estimatédvialue of the property less estimated costelicasd the carrying value is recorded as
on foreclosure within discontinued operations wtita to the property is obtained.

We have a quarterly review process to identify analuate potential exposure to impairment losseswrREO. This evaluation us
management’s judgment of the estimated fair valueusr REO. Adjustments to the carrying value araeagally based on management’
assessment of the appraised value of the propmwgrating statistics to the extent available andiscussions with potential purchasers
third-party brokers and are recorded as impairftases in discontinued operations on our cons@dlatatements of income (loss).

Managemens estimation of the fair value of our impaired Isan a Level 3 valuation in the fair value hierararstablished f
disclosure of how a company values its assetsetel, quoted market prices from active marketgHe identical asset (Level 1 inputs’
available, should be used to value an asset. lfegyarices are not available for the identical gghen a determination should be made if L
2 inputs are available. Level 2 inputs include gdoprices for similar assets in active marketsooridentical or similar assets in markets
are not active {.e., markets in which there are few transactions forabset, the prices are not current, price quotavany substantially, or
which little information is released publicly). Tieeis limited reliable market information for oumpaired loans and we utilize ot
methodologies to value the asset such as appiafsamation and tax assessed value of the collhtéras there are no Level 1 or Leve
determinations available. Level 3 inputs are unplzdge inputs for the asset that are used to medairrvalue when observable inputs are
available. These inputs include managenseatsessment of the appraised value of the ceallatax assessed value of the collateral al
operating statistics to the extent available. Atients to the carrying value of impaired loansrao®rded as loan loss reserves.

Revenue Recognition Policies
Interest Income

Interest income includes interest earned on loanscair shorterm investments and the amortization of net loagirmation fees ar
discounts. Interest income on loans is accruecased with the accrual of interest suspended whemdlated loan becomes a raeerual loar
A loan receivable is generally classified as nocraal (a “Non-Accrual Loan”)f (1) it is past due as to payment of principalimierest for
period of 60 days or more, (2) any portion of than is classified as doubtful or is charggtier (3) if the repayment in full of the princi
and/or interest is in doubt. Generally, loans drargedeff when management determines that we will be k&b collect any remainir
amounts due under the loan agreement, either thréiqgidation of collateral or other means. Intére&ome on a Nowkccrual Loan i
recognized on either the cash basis or the cosveeg basis.

Origination fees and direct loan origination cosist, are deferred and recognized as an adjustofigteld over the life of the relat
loan receivable using a method which approximateseffective interest method. Direct originatiorstsoinclude broker fees paid, if any,
capitalization of allocated payroll costs in origfimg the loan.

For loans originated under the SBA 7(a) Progranpnupale of the SBA guaranteed portion of the loghi&h are accounted for
sales, the unguaranteed portion of the loans edaly us is valued on a fair value basis and aodistc(the “Retained Loan Discounty
recorded as a reduction in basis of the retainetigmoof the loan. For loans recorded with a Retdih.oan Discount, these discounts
recognized as an adjustment of yield over thedifthe related loan receivable using the effecinerest method.

Premium Income

We sell the government guaranteed portion of ouk 3B) Program loans to investors. These governmeatanteed portions may
sold for (1) a cash premium and the minimum 1% SB4uired servicing spread, (2) future servicingespr greater than 1% and no ¢
premium or (3) future servicing spread greater th#nand a 10% cash premium. The government guadumertion of loans sold for a ci
premium and the minimum 1% required servicing sgpiraee recorded as saléise., we record premium income) for accounting purpc
Premium income represents the difference betweenfain value attributable to the sale of the gowsent guaranteed portion of a I
originated under the SBA 7(a) Program for a cagimum and the SBA required 1% servicing spreadthagrincipal balance (cost) alloca
to the loan.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended December 31, 2013 Compared to the YeanBed December 31, 2012

Overview
Year Ended
December 31 Change
2013 2012 $ %
(In thousands
Total revenue: $ 17,90 ¢ 17,06 ¢ 84C 4.9%
Total expense $ 14,27¢ § 17,85¢ ¢ (3,577) (20.0%
Income (loss) from continuing operatic $ 2,41 ¢ (1,35¢) ¢ 3,77( NM
Net income (loss $ 2,067 ¢ (2,179 ¢ 4,24¢ NM

Revenues increased during 2013 primarily due tmarease in recognized premium income from the satbe government guarante
portion of our SBA 7(a) Program loans while our empes decreased during 2013 primarily due to editiin of costs associated w
evaluating strategic alternatives and severanceeatkéd benefits, partially offset by transactimsts incurred related to the merger.

More detailed comparative information on the conitpms of and changes in our revenues and expesga®evided below.
Revenue:

Interest income increased slightly to $14,045,000ind) 2013 compared to $13,896,000 during 2012. ®eighted average loa
receivable decreased to $235.7 million during 20& $238.2 million during 2012. The weighted awgrdnterest rate on our loans receiv
increased slightly to 5.8% during 2013 from 5.7%imiy 2012.

Premium income will not equal collected cash premsiubecause premium income represents the differbateeen the fair val
attributable to the sale of the government guasghtgortion of the loan and the principal balances{cof the loan adjusted by cost:s
origination. During the last several years, magkemiums on Secondary Market Loan Sales have kdastarically high levels due to reduc
longer term interest rates. Our premium incomeeased to $2,468,000 during 2013 compared to $1088%Juring 2012. We sold more lo.
for solely cash premiums and the required 1% senyispread during 2013 than 2012. In addition,ehgas improvement in the market
Secondary Market Loan Sales. The average premidi@cted on cash sales increased slightly to 13.6#tnd 2013 compared to 13.4%
2012; however, premiums were reduced during thiehal of 2013. We believe that the market premigduction was due generally to
increase in longer term interest rates.

Secondary Market Loan Sales were as follows:

2013 2012
Principal Cash Premium Principal Cash Premium
Type of Sale Sold Receivec Sold Receivec
(In thousands
Cash premiun g 23,687 ¢ 3210 ¢ 18,473 ¢ 2,470
Hybrid 3,293 329 8,498 850
& 26,980 ¢ 3539 ¢ 26,971 ¢ 3,320
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Other income consisted of the following:

Years Ended
December 31

2013 2012
(In thousands
Servicing income $ 547  $ 499
Prepayment fee 418 279
Loan related incom- other 165 221
Retained interests in transferred as 162 189
Other 100 92

$ 1,392 8 1,280

We earn fees for servicing loans sold into the sdaoy market solely for cash premiums. As thess &e based on the principal balai
of the loans outstanding, they will increase asamnoans are sold into the secondary market ancedserover time as scheduled princ
payments and prepayments occur.

Interest Expenst

Interest expense consisted of the following:

Years Ended
December 31,

2013 2012
(In thousands
Debentures payab $ 994 $ 731
Secured borrowing 939 1,201
Junior subordinated not 977 1,034
Revolver 349 459
Structured notes payak - 21
Other 91 92

$ 3,350 $ 3,538

The weighted average cost of our funds was 3.5%gliooth 2013 and 2012.

Secured borrowings increase as we sell SBA 7(ajrBno loans for excess servicing spreads. The wedgéterage balance outstant
on our secured borrowings was $39.8 million dur@i3 compared to $38.6 million during 2012. Offsettinterest expense on sect
borrowings is amortization of cash premiums frorbiiiy loan sales of $404,000 and $145,000 durin@3201d 2012, respectively.

Interest expense on SBA debentures increased dhe iesuance of $4.0 million in August 2012, $&illion in March 2013 and $8
million in August 2013. We repaid $4.2 million oB& debentures upon maturity on September 1, 20h8.Weighted average interest ratt
our debentures decreased to 3.87% at Decembe033, fBom 4.47% at December 31, 2012. Our SBIC deibes payable of $27.5 milli
were repaid during February 2014 using cash on haddhe Revolver.

The weighted average balance outstanding undeRewvolver decreased to $10.0 million during 2013 parad to $16.1 million durir
2012 while the weighted average interest rate asad to 2.6% during 2013 compared to 2.5% durid@20

Other Expenses

General and administrative expense increased $3@6during 2013 compared to 2012. General and adirative expenses
comprised of (1) corporate overhead including legad professional fees, sales and marketing expepsbélic company and regulatory ct
and (2) expenses related to assets currently ipitheess of foreclosure. Our corporate overheackased to $2,295,000 during 2013 f
$2,065,000 during 2012 primarily due to an increaserofessional fees and public company reportiogts. Expenses related to as
currently in
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the process of foreclosure were $308,000 durin@ 2@pared to $62,000 during 2012. These expensaged during the foreclosure proc
for problem loans are primarily related to propegyes incurred, protection of the asset and ojpgrateficits funded to receivers. We exy
these costs to continue, and likely increase, uhél foreclosure processes are completed. Once letamposts associated with foreclc
properties are included in discontinued operations.

Transaction costs of $2,789,000 during 2013 pripaepresent legal and due diligence costs reladethe merger. The merger
anticipated to be completed no later than Marc2814.

During 2011, we received certain inquiries expmags preliminary interest in potential strategi@ngactions. The Board establishe
special committee of all independent trust manateevaluate these inquiries as well as other piatestrategic alternatives that could enh
shareholder value. During 2012, we expensed $3)800n costs (unrelated to the merger) associaiddevaluation of strategic alternati
including legal fees, trust manager fees and dligedice costs when discussions were terminated with interested party. The spe
committee was dissolved during December 2012.

Our provision for loan losses, net was $1,237,000nd 2013 compared to $1,934,000 during 2012. @avision for loan losses, n
during 2012 was comprised of a net provision fanléosses of $2,401,000 offset by recoveries o7 . Recoveries represent cash proc
from collections on personal loan guarantees. @uvigion for loan losses primarily relates to liedtservice hospitality properties classifie
troubled debt restructurings, including propertiaerently in the process of foreclosure. Our resemwere as follows:

At December 31

2013 2012
(In thousands
Specific $ 1,406 $ 1,535
Genera 1,878 1,878

$ 3284 $ 3,413

Due to the prolonged economic downturn and theeciireconomic environment, we believe that in gdneta borrowersequity in thei
properties has been eroded and may further eroddhwiray result in an increase in foreclosure afstignd credit losses. The lagging impac
the adverse economic conditions may continue tee tmv adverse effect on the financial conditionnafividual borrowers and the limit
service hospitality industry which may require #stablishment of significant additional loan lossarves.

Income tax provision (included in continuing opamas and discontinued operations) was $1,212,000@l2013 compared to $451,(
during 2012 related to our taxable REIT subsidgri@ur taxable REIT subsidiaries had taxable incofr#2,984,000 during 2013 compare
$1,995,000 during 2012 primarily due to increaseme of First Western. See — “Taxable Income.”

Discontinued Operations, Net of Te

Years Ended
December 31

2013 2012
(In thousands
Net operating losse $ (227) % (582)
Net gains (losses) on sales of real es (16) (15)
Impairment losse (135) (341)
Income tax benefi 31 115
Discontinued operations, net of t $ (347) % (823)

Our net operating losses relate to the operatindshalding costs of our REO included in discontohoperations.

During 2013, we foreclosed on the underlying cellat (limited service hospitality properties) ofdl loans with an estimated fair ve
at foreclosure of $2.3 million. We sold these prtips for $2,140,000, received cash proceeds df6El000 and financed the remainder. Lo
of $16,000 were recorded on the sales.
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During 2012, we foreclosed on the underlying cellat (limited service hospitality properties) ofawoans with a combined estimated
value at foreclosure of $1,481,000 and sold botthe$e properties during 2012. One property was feol$1,375,000 including cash proce
of $550,000 and financing of $825,000. The othepprty was sold solely for cash proceeds. No gailoss was recorded on these sale
addition, we sold a property during 2012 with atineated fair value of $76,000 and recorded a Ids%16,000.

Impairment losses represent declines in the estunfair value of our REO subsequent to initial atilon. Impairment losses during 2(
primarily related to a full service hospitality perty which was sold during 2013. Impairment losdesng 2012 primarily related to a re
establishment acquired in the third quarter of 2808:h continued to experience declines in its galthe property was sold during 2013.

Year Ended December 31, 2012 Compared to the YeanBed December 31, 2011

Overview
Year Ended
December 31 Change
2012 2011 $ %
(In thousands
Total revenue $ 17,068 ¢ 16,07¢ ¢ 98¢ 6.2%
Total expense $ 17,85¢ ¢ 11,27¢ ¢ 6,58¢ 58.4%
Income (loss) from continuing operatic g (1,356 ¢ 4,69 ¢ (6,04¢) NM
Net income (loss $ (2,179 ¢ 3,647 ¢ (5,82€) NM

Revenues increased during 2012 primarily due tharease in recognized premium income from the satbe government guarante
portion of our SBA 7(a) Program loans and an ingeeia interest income while our expenses incredseithg 2012 primarily due to (1) co
associated with evaluating strategic alternativie$3p870,000, (2) severance and related benefiierese related to the departure of our |
chief executive officer of $2,114,000 and (3) aar@ase in net provision for loan losses of $1,40@ Brimarily related to our limited serv
hospitality properties in the process of foreclesur

More detailed comparative information on the conitpms of and changes in our revenues and expesga®evided below.

Revenues

Interest income increased 2.3% to $13,896,000 dw&@i12 compared to $13,571,000 during 2011. Oughted average loans receive
increased 2.1% to $238.2 million during 2012 coradao $233.2 million during 2011. In addition, theighted average interest rate increi
from 5.6% at December 31, 2011 to 5.8% at Dece®beP012. At December 31, 2012, 83% of our loamsJzaiable interest rates.

Premium income results from certain sales of theegument guaranteed portion of SBA 7(a) Programddato the secondary mark
We record premium income at the time of sale fasthsales solely for cash premiums and the SBAinetj1% servicing spread. We s
more loans for solely cash premiums and the SBAiired 1% servicing spread during 2012 than 201&ddition, there was improvemen

the market for Secondary Market Loan Sales. Theageepremium collected on cash sales increase8.#484.during 2012 compared to 11.
in 2011.

Premium income will not equal collected cash prensiubecause premium income represents the differbateeen the fair val
attributable to the sale of the government guasghtgortion of the loan and the principal balances{cof the loan adjusted by cost:s
origination. Our premium income increased to $1,889 during 2012 from $1,450,000 during 2011.
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Secondary Market Loan Sales were as follows:

2012 2011
Principal Cash Premium Principal Cash Premium
Type of Sale Sold Receivec Sold Receivec
(In thousands
Cash premiun $ 18473 $ 2470 ¢ 15774 $ 1,728
Hybrid 8,498 850 11,638 1,164
$ 26971 $ 3320 ¢ 27412 $ 2,892

Other income consisted of the following:

Years Ended
December 31

2012 2011
(In thousands
Servicing income $ 499 % 399
Prepayment fee 279 118
Loan related incom- other 221 196
Retained interests in transferred as 189 215
Other 92 127
$ 1,280 $ 1,055

We earn fees for servicing loans sold into the sdaoy market. As these fees are based on the jpainsalances of the loans outstanc
they will increase as more loans are sold intosttmondary market (for cash premiums and the SBAimed| 1% servicing spread) and decr:

over time as scheduled principal payments and grapats occur on loans with an associated servieasgt.

Interest Expenst

Interest expense consisted of the following:

Years Ended
December 31

2012 2011
(In thousands
Secured borrowing $ 1,201 $ 752
Junior subordinated not 1,034 986
Debentures payab 731 552
Revolver 459 457
Structured notes payak 21 854
Other 92 92
$ 3538 % 3,693

The weighted average cost of our funds decreasdd¥ during 2012 compared to 3.8% during 2011.

Secured borrowings increase as we sell SBA 7(ajrBno loans for excess servicing spreads. The wetdgiterage balance outstant
on our secured borrowings was $38.6 million dur2@d2 compared to $28.0 million during 2011. Thegh&d average interest rate on
secured borrowings was 3.7% at December 31, 20ff@etfing interest expense on secured borrowingsriertization of cash premiums fr

hybrid loan sales of $145,000 and $209,000 durBitP2and 2011, respectively.

Interest expense on SBA debentures increased dile issuance of $5.0 million of debentures in Seysier 2011 and $4.0 million

August 2012.
47



Table of Contents

We amended our Revolver during June 2011. Thedsteate was reduced to the prime rate less 58 pasits or the 3@ay LIBOR plu:
2%, at our option. The weighted average balancetanding under our Revolver was $16.1 million dgr2012 compared to $14.1 milli
during 2011.

Interest expense on our structured notes payaldedpareased due to principal payments received ftemunderlying loans a
repayment of the notes. We repaid the remainingral of the 2003 Joint Venture notes on Februargdb2.

Other Expenses

General and administrative expense increased $20{%8%) during 2012 compared to 2011. Generalaministrative expenses
comprised of (1) corporate overhead including legad professional fees, sales and marketing expepsbelic company and regulatory ct
and (2) expenses related to assets currently ipitheess of foreclosure. Our corporate overheackased to $2,065,000 during 2012 f
$1,933,000 during 2011 primarily due to an increiseorporate legal fees. Expenses related to assetently in the process of foreclos
were $62,000 during 2012 compared to $77,000 du2Bitfl. These expenses incurred during the fore@ogtocess for problem loans
primarily related to property taxes incurred, potiten of the asset and operating deficits fundedetteivers. Expenses incurred during z
primarily relate to two limited service hospitaliproperties which are in receivership. We expeeséhcosts to continue, and likely incre
until the foreclosure processes are completed. QGroeplete, costs associated with foreclosed prigserre included in discontint
operations.

During 2012, we expensed $3,870,000 in costs aamsacivith evaluation of strategic alternativesudahg legal fees, trust manager 1
and due diligence costs compared to $778,000 d@@ig. Costs during 2012 consisted of $2,398,00@dal fees, $537,000 of investm
advisory fees, $503,000 of due diligence costs9%B® in trust manager fees and $33,000 of othpemses. On a cumulative basis,
expensed $4,648,000 related to the evaluationrafegfic alternatives consisting of $2,892,000 geldees, $668,000 of investment advit
fees, $503,000 of due diligence costs, $552,000uist manager fees and $33,000 of other expenses.special committee was dissol
during December of 2012.

Severance and related benefits expense of $2,10 &0@lated to our former chief executive offipersuant to his separation agreer
entered into during the fourth quarter of 2012.

Our provision for loan losses, net was $1,934,000nd 2012 compared to $460,000 during 2011. Ouwwipion for loan losses, n
during 2012 was comprised of a net provision fanltosses of $2,401,000 offset by recoveries o7 8. Recoveries represent cash proc
from collections on personal loan guarantees. @uvigion for loan losses primarily relates to liedtservice hospitality properties classifie
troubled debt restructurings, including propertasently in the process of foreclosure. Our resgrare categorized as follows:

At December 31

2012 2011
(In thousands
Specific $ 1,535 $ 563
Genera 1,878 1,249

$ 3413 $ 1,812

Realized losses of $333,000 and $257,000 during? 20id 2011, respectively, were recognized uponidation of the collater.
underlying loans. Due to the prolonged economicrtamw and the current economic environment, weekielithat in general, our borrowers
equity in their properties has been eroded and fudlger erode which may result in an increase medtosure activity and credit losses.
lagging impact of the adverse economic conditioay eontinue to have an adverse effect on the fiahnondition of individual borrowers a
the limited service hospitality industry which maaguire the establishment of significant additidoah loss reserves.

Income tax provision (included in continuing opéas and discontinued operations) was $451,000hdu2D12 compared to $114,(
during 2011 related to our taxable REIT subsidg@ri@ur taxable REIT subsidiaries had taxable incofrfl,995,000 during 2012 compare
$1,420,000 during 2011. See — “Taxable Incorii&é increase primarily relates to increased inténemsme and recoveries of loan losses o
SBIC subsidiary.
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Discontinued Operations, Net of Te

Years Ended
December 31

2012 2011

(In thousands

Net operating losse $ (582 $
Net gains (losses) on sales of real es (15)
Impairment losse (341
Income tax benefi 11F
Discontinued operations, net of t $ (823 $

Our net operating losses from discontinued opearatielate to the operations and holding costs pR&O.

During 2012, we foreclosed on the underlying cellat (limited service hospitality properties) ofaoans with a combined estimated
value at foreclosure of $1,481,000 and sold botthe$e properties during 2012. One property was feol$1,375,000 including cash proce
of $550,000 and financing of $825,000. The othepprty was sold solely for cash proceeds. No gailoss was recorded on these sale
addition, we sold a property during 2012 with atineated fair value of $76,000 and recorded a |ds$1®,000. During 2011, previou:
deferred gains of $685,000 from property sales wanted were recorded as gains due to principalctéths on the underlying loans.
addition, during June 2011, we sold an asset aedjdirough foreclosure for $1.3 million, receivexsic proceeds of $128,000 and finance:

remainder. A loss of $115,000 was recorded onrtesaction.

Impairment losses represent declines in the estnfair value of our REO subsequent to initial aion. Impairment losses during 2(
primarily related to a retail establishment acaiire the third quarter of 2009 which continued xperience declines in its value. During 2(
our impairment losses were primarily related talagfervice hospitality property. The property tegerienced significant operating losses,
in need of major capital improvements and had besd for an extended period of time with limited rket sales activity, including .
unsuccessful auction during the third quarter dfZ2@vhich contributed to the decline in value.
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SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION  (unaudited)

The following represents our selected quarterlaricial data which, in the opinion of managemerfieces adjustments (comprising o
normal recurring adjustments) necessary for fasentation.

Year Ended December 31, 20
Income (Loss)

Net
From Income Earnings
Continuing (Loss)
Revenues Operations (Loss) Per Share
(In thousands, except earnings (loss) per sharefaathotes’

First Quartel $ 4515 $ 1518 $ 134« $ 0.13
Second Quarte 4,484 920 84¢€ 0.08 (1)
Third Quartel 4,588 398 328 0.03 (2
Fourth Quarte 4,318 (422) (446 (0.04) (3

$ 17905 $ 2414 $ 206: $ 0.20

Year Ended December 31, 20
Income (Loss)

Net
From Income Earnings
Continuing (Loss)
Revenues Operations (Loss) Per Share
(In thousands, except earnings (loss) per sharefaothotes’
First Quartel $ 3,787 % 6) $ (155 % (0.01) (4
Second Quarte 3,964 (93) (415) (0.04) (5
Third Quartel 4,864 645 473 0.04 (6)
Fourth Quarte 4,450 (1,902) (2,082) (0.20) (7)
$ 17,065 $ (1,356) $ (2,179) $ (0.21)

(1) Includes $393,000 in transaction cos

(2) Includes $1,222,000 in transaction co:

(3) Includes $1,174,000 in transaction co:

(4) Includes $850,000 in expenses related to explanatfcstrategic alternative:

(5) Includes $1,352,000 in expenses related to exptoraif strategic alternative:

(6) Includes $1,421,000 in expenses related to exptoradf strategic alternative:

(7) Includes $2,114,000 in severance and related besnefiated to the separation agreement with ouethkkecutive officer and $247,00(
expenses related to exploration of strategic akéirres.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Cash Flow Analysis

Information on our cash flow was as follows:

Years Ended
December 31

2013 2012 Change
(In thousands
Cash provided by (used in) operating activi $ 1427 $ (L,77H $ 3,20z
Cash provided by (used in) investing activit $ (3,08 $ 2,80¢ $ (5,897)
Cash provided by (used in) financing activit $ 8,407 $ (6,306 $ 14,71

Operating Activities

Our cash provided by (used in) operating activifiestuates year-to-year based on managermet#tision to sell loans for solely ¢
premiums, as a hybrid loan sale or for solely s#mgi spread. Proceeds from Secondary Market Lod@s Sacluded in operating activiti
during 2013 and 2012 were $23,687,000 and $18,803/@spectively, as management sold a majorith@fgovernment guaranteed porti
of our SBA 7(a) Program loans for solely cash ptens. To the extent we sell the government guardrnteetion of SBA 7(a) Program loe
as a hybrid loan sale or for solely servicing sgrgaoceeds from Secondary Market Loan Sales atedad in financing activities. In additic
the change in our operating assets and liabiliiay significantly affect our cash from operatindivties. During 2013, the change in
operating assets and liabilities was a use of 08%$88,660,000 compared to 2012 in which the changeir operating assets and liabilities w
source of cash of $4,075,000. Operating assetdiatitities fluctuate based on timing of paymentaafcounts payable and accrued liabil
and collection of (release of) borrower advances.

Investing Activities

Our primary investing activity is the originatiorf lmans and collections on our investment portfolduring 2013 and 2012, c
primary use of funds was loans funded in excegwiatipal collected on loans receivable of $4,890,@nd $214,000, respectively. Our Ic
funded which are included in investing activitiesreased to $31,409,000 during 2013 from $28,086¢0ing 2012. Included within princig
collected on loans are principal prepayments of 85000 and $15,691,000 during 2013 and 2012eotisely. During 2012, restricted c:
and cash equivalents of $2,233,000 were releasexnnection with the exercise of the “clean-up "calption on our 2003 Joint Ventt
structured notes.

Based on our outstanding loan portfolio at Decen3der2013, our estimated collection of scheduladcgal payments in 2014
approximately $17.0 million which predominantly tdbe used to repay the balance outstanding uhédarévolver.

Financing Activities

We used funds from financing activities during 2@t®1 2012 primarily to pay dividends of $5,245,@0@ $6,752,000, respective
We received proceeds from the issuance of $14.Bomiand $4.0 million in SBIC debentures during 30dnd 2012, respectively. Proce
from Secondary Market Loan Sales recorded as setmeowings during 2013 and 2012 were $3,293,00D%8,498,000, respectively. Th
proceeds will fluctuate year-to-year based on meamemts decisions to sell loans for solely cash premiwsmsa hybrid loan sale or for sol
servicing spread. To the extent we sell the govemtnguaranteed portion of SBA 7(a) Program loans &ybrid loan sale or for sole
servicing spread, proceeds from Secondary MarkahlRales included in financing activities will irese.

Our SBIC debentures payable of $27.5 million arel$B.0 million of redeemable 3% cumulative prefeérseock of one of our SBI(
were repaid during February 2014 using cash on haddur Revolver.
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Sources and Uses of Funds - Historical
Sources of Funds

In general, we need liquidity to originate new Isamnd repay principal and interest on our debt. @parating revenues are typici
utilized to pay our operating expenses, interedt@imidends. We have been utilizing principal coliens on loans receivable, proceeds 1
Secondary Market Loan Sales, issuance of SBIC defenand borrowings under our Revolver as our gmysources of funds.

Prior to completion of the merger, the relativeiyited amount of capital available to originate neswmmercial loans has caused
restrict non-SBA 7(a) Program and nSBIC loan origination activity. If the merger istnocompleted, a reduction in the availability of
above sources of funds could have a material advienpact on our financial condition and resultsoperations. If these sources are
available in the future, we may have to originainis at reduced levels or sell assets, potentallynfavorable terms.

At December 31, 2013, our unsecured $40.0 milliendRver, with availability of $25.6 million, matusen June 30, 2015. The inte
rate is the prime rate less 50 basis points oB€haay LIBOR plus 2%, at our option. The Revolver rieggius to meet certain covenants w
among other things, limit our ability to incur ifmtedness, grant liens, make investments and ssdtsaasOur most significant covenant
minimum beneficiariesequity covenant of $132.0 million. In addition, tless of either of our named executive officers ldazause an eve
of default on our Revolver. At December 31, 2018, were in compliance with the covenants of thislitgc While we anticipate maintainir
compliance with these covenants, there can be swrasce that we will be able to do so.

As a condition to closing the merger, we requested the lender on our Revolver agree to modifyaiercovenants related to «
business operations. Our SBIC debentures of $2illidmwere repaid and our 3% cumulative preferstoick of subsidiary with a par value
$3.0 million was redeemed during February 2014 qusimsh on hand and our Revolver. In March 2014exexuted a new term note in
principal amount of $30 million which matures sionths from its effective date at an interest rdteIBOR plus 2.50%. In addition, amo
other things, our Revolver was modified to (1) @ase the credit availability to $25.0 million uritie term note is repaid, (2) eliminate the
worth covenant, (3) permit CIM Urban to continueofierate in a manner consistent with its existipgrations and (4) add a covenant requ
an asset coverage test (eligible loans receivdbie)alances outstanding under the Revolver of 3i®@s. Proceeds from the new term |
were utilized to repay a portion of borrowings éamsling under the Revolver.

In general, if we are unable to make required paysander our borrowings, breach any representatiamarranty of our borrowin
or violate any covenant, our lenders may acceldraematurity of our debt or force us to take othetions. In connection with an even
default under our Revolver, the lender is permittedccelerate repayment of all amounts due amdinete its commitment to lend thereun
Any such event may have a material adverse effeaiuw liquidity, the value of our common shares and ability to pay dividends to ¢
shareholders. In the event of a default on the Revowe will rely on principal payments (includimgepayments), and (if necessary) proc
from asset and loan sales to satisfy our liquitgtyuirements. To the extent we need additionaltaiphere can be no assurance that we v
be able to increase the amount available undarévelver or identify other sources of funds at eceptable cost, if at all.

We rely on Secondary Market Loan Sales to creaddlability and/or repay principal due under our Ber. Once fully funded, v
sell the government guaranteed portion of our SE#&) Program loans pursuant to Secondary Market L®aps. The market demand
Secondary Market Loan Sales may decline or be teaniposuspended. To the extent we are unable ¢gute Secondary Market Loan Sale
the normal course of business, our financial céonlidnd results of operations could be adversdgctdd.

As a REIT we must distribute to our shareholdereast 90% of our REIT taxable income to maintain tax status under the Co
Accordingly, to the extent the sources above repretaxable income, such amounts have historidabn distributed to our shareholders
general, if we receive less cash from our portfofignvestments, we can lower the dividend so d¢moause any material cash shortfall. F
to the completion of the merger, during 2014, wécipate that our cash flow from operations will bglized to fund our expected 2C
dividend distributions and generally will not beadable to fund portfolio growth or for the repaymieof principal due on our debt. Ug
completion of the merger, we expect that funds béllavailable to fund portfolio growth and for tiepayment of principal on debt.
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Uses of Funds

Prior to the completion of the merger, the primasg of our funds is to originate loans and for yepent of the principal and inter
on our debt. Our outstanding commitments to funa eans were $13.6 million at December 31, 2018, rtiajority of which were for prime-
rate based loans to be originated by First Westhengovernment guaranteed portion of which isndéesl to be sold into the secondary ma
Our net working capital outlay would be approxiniate3.4 million related to these SBA 7(a) Prograraris (excluding any premium recei
upon sale); however, the government guaranteedopodf the SBA 7(a) Program loans cannot be soltl uhey are fully fundec
Commitments have fixed expiration dates. Since soamemitments expire without the proposed loan algpstotal committed amounts do
necessarily represent future cash requirementsamieipate that fundings during 2014 will rangenfrd65 million to $85 million.

There may be several months between when thelibalance of an SBA 7(a) Program loan is fundedahdn it is fully funded ar
can be sold pursuant to Secondary Market Loan Saléisese instances, our liquidity is negativeffgeted in the short-term.

We have a liability for borrower advances of $3.@iom at December 31, 2013. In general, as paxdwfmonitoring process to ver
that the borrowerstash equity is utilized for its intended purpose, ceive deposits from our borrowers and releasdsf upon presentati
of appropriate documentation. When distributions aquested and approved, these borrower advaapessent a use of funds which
expect to be paid with cash on hand and/or our Rexo

During 2013, the sources of funds for our dividetistributions of $5.2 million were cash provided bgerating activities of $1
million and principal collections on our loans reedle and borrowings under our Revolver of $3.8iom.

Sources and Uses of Funds Subsequent to Completioithe Merger

As of December 31, 2013, CIM Urban had an unsecreedlving credit facility allowing for maximum bawings of $100.0 millior
Borrowings under the facility are limited by certdiorrowing base calculations. Outstanding advanoegr the facility bear interest at a t
rate, as defined, plus 0.25% to 0.85% or LIBOR dlh25% to 1.85%, depending on the maximum conselitieverage ratio, as defined.
facility matures in February 2016, with a oyear extension option under certain circumstandesof December 31, 2013, $100 million \
outstanding under the facility.

In addition, in August 2013 CIM Urban added a ned2% million unsecured revolving credit facility withe same bank syndicate
February 2014, the facility was increased to $150ian. At December 31, 2013, $64 million was oatsdling under the facility. Borrowin
under the facility will be limited by certain bomwing base calculations. Outstanding advances uhéefacility bear interest at the base rat
defined, plus 0.25% to 0.85% or LIBOR plus 1.25%1t85%, depending on the maximum consolidated égeratio, as defined. T
unsecured revolving credit facility matures six rtienfrom the closing date, as defined, subjecivtothreemonth extension options which
subject to certain conditions. As of December 3113 CIM Urban was in compliance with all of itsdincial covenants under both cr
facilities.

CIM Urban’s liquidity needs for the next twelve months (Blude (i) the special dividend of approximately $&illion which it
payable ten business days after completion of thegen, (ii) funds to pay for capital expenditur@i) funds to pay debts and other obligati
as they become due and (iv) distributions and @& mclude funds for acquisitions, developmentepasitioning of properties. While Cl
Urban expects to meet some of these liquidity néeeeigh cash on hand, cash provided by operatadsborrowings under its existing cre
facility, CIM Urban does not expect that it will V& sufficient funds to cover all of these liquiditgeds. CIM Urban expects to cover
additional liquidity needs through one or more newdit facilities and/or debt issuances. The cotigpleand the costs of any future ¢
transactions will depend primarily upon market dtods. It is CIM Urbans intention to conduct business activities in a mesirwhich wil
allow reasonable access to capital for future itaest activities. However, there can be no asseréimat CIM Urban will be able to enter i
debt transactions.

Available Borrowings, Cash Balances and Capital Resirces

CIM Urban has typically financed its capital ne¢d®ugh investor equity commitments, long-term sedumortgages and a sheetir
line of credit. As of December 2009, all of CIM s investors’'capital commitments were funded. As of DecemberZ113 an
December 31, 2012, CIM Urban had total indebtedo&$895.1 million and $345.6 million, respectivelgcluded in total indebtedness is $
million and $30 million of borrowings under line$ credit with total capacity of $225 million and @1 million at December 31, 2013 ¢
December 31, 2012, respectively.
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SUMMARIZED CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS, COMMITMENTS AND  CONTINGENCIES

The following summarizes our contractual obligasi@ December 31, 2013:

Payments Due by Peric

Less than 1to3 3to5 More than
Contractual Obligation Total 1 year years years 5 years
(In thousands, except footnott

Debt:
SBIC debentures payable | § 27,500 $ - $ 4,000 § - ¢ 23,500
Secured borrowings - government guarante:

loans (2) 37,403 1,139 2,398 2,571 31,295
Revolver 14,400 - 14,400 - -
Junior subordinated debt ( 27,070 - - - 27,070
Preferred stock of subsidiary ( 3,000 - - - 3,000
Interest:
Debt (5) 39,008 3,588 5,955 5,542 23,923
Other Contractual Obligations
Borrower advance 3,578 3,578 - - -
Executive employment agreements 1,676 838 838 - -
Operating lease ( 248 212 36 - -
Total contractual cash obligatio ¢ 153,883 $ 9,355 $ 27,627 $ 8,113 ¢ 108,788

(1)
(2)

(3)
(4)
()

(6)
(7)

Represents contractual maturity dates of debenturewever, these debentures were repaid early ¢withpenalty) using cash
hand and our Revolver during February 20

Principal payments are dependent upon cash flowsived from the underlying loans. Our estimateheirtrepayment is based
scheduled principal payments on the underlying soa@ur estimate will differ from actual amountsth® extent we experier
prepayments and/or loan losses. No payment is ailessi payments are received from the borrowershenunderlying loan
Excludes deferred premiums which do not represemntae outlay of cash since they are amortized ¢ie life of the loan as
reduction to interest expens

The junior subordinated notes may be redeenmedioption, without penalty, and are subordinated®MC Commercia$ existin
debt.

Our $3.0 million of cumulative preferred stock absidiary is valued at $900,000 on our consolidabedance sheet. Durir
February 2014, this preferred stock of subsidiapswedeemed using cash on ha

Calculated using the variable rate in effect at Beber 31, 2013. For our Revolver, assumes curralanioe outstanding throu
maturity date. For the secured borrowings, doesinciude deferred premiums which have no associatedest expens
Represents minimum payments required under exeatiyployment agreemer

Represents future minimum lease payments undespmrating lease for office spac

Our commitments at December 31, 2013 are summaaigdollows:

Amount of Commitment Expiration Per Peri

Total Amounts Less than 1to3 3to5 After 5
Commitments Committed 1 year years years years
(In thousands
Loan commitment § 13,550 § 13,550 $ - § - & -

See Note 19 to the Consolidated Financial Statesrfent detailed discussion of commitments andingetcies.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

In conducting our lending business, we are exptsedange of risks including:

Market risk which is the risk to our earnings or capital raagltfrom adverse changes in the values of assetdtireg frorm
movement in market interest rat

Credit riskwhich is the risk of loss due to an individual lmwver' s unwillingness or inability to pay its obligatigr

Operations riskwhich is the risk of loss resulting from systemdufe, inadequate controls, human error, fraud nsee!
catastrophes

Liquidity risk which is the potential that we would be unable ®etour obligations as they come due because ofadnility to
liquidate assets or obtain funding. Liquidity rialso includes the risk of having to sell asseta &iss to generate liquid fun
which is a function of the relative liquidity (makdepth) of the asset(s) and general market dondj

Compliance riskvhich is the risk of loss, including fines or pered, from failing to comply with Federal, statelocal laws, an
regulations pertaining to lending and licensedvit@s;

Legal riskwhich is the risk of loss, disruption or other nidgmeffect on our operations or condition thaseasi from unenforceal
contracts, lawsuits, adverse judgments, or advgogernmental or regulatory proceedings, or theathifeereof

Real estate riswhich is the risk that the value and liquidity dftcollateral for our loans are diminished or otriee adversel
impacted by market conditions; a

Reputational riskwhich is the risk that negative publicity regardiogr practices whether true or not will cause didedn ou
customer bas¢

Our risk management policies and procedures aebledtied and evaluated under the supervision ofemacutive management. 1
policies and procedures are designed to focus@fottowing:

Identifying, assessing and reporting on corporateexposures and trenc
Establishing, and revising as necessary, poliaiespsocedures
Monitoring and reporting on adherence with riskigiek; anc

Approving new product developments or businesgiives.

We cannot provide assurance that our risk managepnecess or our internal controls will preventeduce the risks to which we

exposed.

DIVIDENDS

During 2013, our dividends were declared as foltows

Amount

Record Dat Date Paic Per Shar
March 28, 201! April 8, 2013 $ 0.125
June 28, 201 July 8, 201z 0.125
September 30, 201 October 7, 201 0.125
December 31, 2013 January 6, 201 0.125
& 0.500

Our shareholders are entitled to receive dividemdsn and as declared by our Board. In determiniuglehd policy, the Board h
historically considered many factors including, bot limited to, expectations for future earninB&IT taxable income (loss) and maintene
of REIT status, the economic environment, our Bbiid obtain leverage, our loan portfolio perforroarand our ability to maintain a sts
dividend considering the foregoing factors. Consedly, the dividend rate on a quarterly basis hatscorrelated directly to any individt

factor.

Our shareholders are entitled to receive dividemtdsen and as declared by the Board. On Februarg@84, the Board declarec
special dividend of $5.50 per common share plusgt@rata portion of our regular quarterly cash dividewdrued through the closing dat
the merger payable ten business days following¢imepletion of the merger.
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Initially, the annual dividend expected to be pagbn completion of the anticipated merger is $0.A€6common share, payable ¢
quarterly basis. Upon completion of the merger, iblers of the convertible preferred shares issoerbnnection with the merger will
entitled to receive cumulative distributions at thée of 3.5% of $35.00 per preferred share per, ygavided, however, that if the convers
date of the preferred shares into common sharag®geeater than six months after the completiothefmerger (which date may be exter
due to certain force majeure events as providedufter the terms of the preferred shares), the fativel dividend shall be reduced :
calculated at the rate of 2.0% of $35.00 per spareyear. The 3.5% yield was based on an as cawvedr common share distribution or
annual basis of $0.175 per common share which isgaivalent dividend to the anticipated dividendtba common shares. Holders of
convertible preferred shares issued in connectiith the merger are entitled to receive dividendsrpio holders of our common shares
there may be insufficient cash to pay dividendsoancommon shares after the payment of dividendsotders of our convertible prefer
shares.

During 2013, due primarily to the payment of sememexpenses and realized losses on our foreclpsaperties, we generate:
taxable loss and all of our dividends were deerodzbtreturns of capital.

TAXABLE INCOME (LOSS)

REIT taxable income (loss) is a financial measti ts presented to assist investors in analyzingperformance and is one of
factors utilized by our Board in determining thedeof dividends to be paid to our shareholdersnd@&AP financial measures have inhe
limitations, are not required to be uniformly appliand are not audited. These ®AAP measures have limitations as analytical t@ole
should not be considered in isolation, or as atfubsfor analyses of results as reported undeABA

The following reconciles net income (loss) to REdXable income (loss):

Years Ended December @

2013 2012 2011
(In thousands
Net income (loss $ 2,067 $ (2,179) $ 3,647
Book/tax differences
Gains related to real este (1,537) - (235)
Strategic alternative - (678) 678
Transaction cosi 2,789 - -
Impairment losse 116 300 804
Severance accrual (paymer (1,806) 1,777 (200)
Amortization and accretio (100) (188) (68)
Loan valuatior (59) 1,403 184
Other, ne 99 157 8
Subtotal 1,569 592 4,918
Adjustment for TRS net income, net of (2,101) (840) (131)
Dividend distribution from TR¢ - - 1,000
REIT taxable income (los: $ (532) $ (248) $ 5,787
Distributions declare $ 5,299 $ 6,353 $ 6,767
Basic weighted average common shares outstal 10,595 10,585 10,570

As a REIT, PMC Commercial generally will not be mdb to corporate level Federal income tax on nebine that is current
distributed to shareholders provided the distritutexceeds 90% of REIT taxable income. We may naakelection under the Code to t
distributions declared in the current year as ithistions of the prior yeas' taxable income. Upon election, the Code provttiag in certai
circumstances, a dividend declared subsequenetoltise of an entity’s taxable year and prior mé¢ktended due date of the enstyax retur
may be considered as having been made in thetpsgrear in satisfaction of income distribution uggments.

To the extent our taxable REIT subsidiaries distebtheir retained earnings through dividends taCP@mmercial, these divider
would be included in REIT taxable income when disited. From 2005 to 2013, approximately $8.5 wiliof taxable earnings we
accumulated. We distributed $2.0 million of earsifigom our taxable REIT subsidiaries to PMC Comra¢iuring 2008, $0.3 million durir
2010 and $1.0 million during 2011.
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Item 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK

Market risk is the exposure to loss resulting fromanges in various market metrics. We are subfeatarket risk including liquidit
risk, real estate risk and interest rate risk asclébed below. Although management believes tleatjttantitative analysis on interest rate
below is indicative of our sensitivity to intereate changes, it does not adjust for other potdmiienges including, among other things, cr
quality, size and composition of our consolidatathhce sheet and other business developments dléd affect our financial condition a
net income (loss). Accordingly, no assurances @ngiben that actual results would not differ madlyi from the potential outcome simula
by these estimates.

LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidity risk is the potential that we would bealle to meet our obligations as they come due Isecatian inability to liquida
assets or obtain funding. We are subject to chaingidx® debt and collateralized mortgage markets.

Our ability to increase our leverage continuesédrbpacted by a number of factors, including, batt Iimited to: (1) the size of o
shareholders’ equity, (2) our non-diversified politi (predominantly limited service hospitality le&) and (3) the longerm maturity of ot
loans receivable. As a result, the asset backadritiezation market that we utilized to grow our tiolio and leverage from 1994 until 200!
no longer a viable alternative for portfolio grovethd leverage.

REAL ESTATE RISK

The value of our commercial mortgage loans andatility to sell such loans, if necessary, are inpddy market conditions tt
affect the properties that are the primary colltéor our loans. Property values and operatingiime from the properties may be affe
adversely by a number of factors, including, butlimited to:

® national, regional and local economic conditic
significant rises in gasoline prices within a shaetiod of time if there is a concurrent decreaskeusiness and leisure trav
local real estate conditions (including an oversypi commercial real estate
natural disasters, including hurricanes and eagtkeg, acts of war and/or terrorism and other evraismay cause performai
declines and/or losses to the owners and operaftdhe real estate securing our loz
changes or continued weakness in the demand faetrservice hospitality propertie
construction quality, construction cost, age arslgie
demographic factor:
amount and timing of required property improvemdaytdranchisors
uninsured losse:
environmental, zoning and other governmental lamgsragulations
increases in operating expenses (such as enertp) tmsthe owners of the property; a
limitations in the availability and cost of lever

In the event property cash flows decrease, a b@ranay have difficulty repaying our loan, which twbuesult in losses to us.
addition, decreases in property values reduce dhgevof the collateral and the potential proceedslable to a borrower to repay our lo¢
which could also cause us to suffer losses. Deesaasproperty values reduce the value of our RE@lwcould cause us to suffer losses.
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INTEREST RATE RISK

Interest rates are highly sensitive to many fagtorsluding governmental monetary and tax policidemestic and internatior
economic and political considerations and othetofac

Since our loans are predominantly variatdée, our operating results will depend in large pa LIBOR and the prime rate. One of
primary determinants of our operating results & difference between the income from our loansardborrowing costs. Most of our deb
based on LIBOR or the prime rate. The objectivehid strategy is to minimize the impact of intenege changes on our net interest income.

VALUATION OF LOANS

Our loans are recorded at cost and adjusted bjoantorigination fees and discounts (which are gaced as adjustments of yi
over the life of the loan) and loan loss reserie®rder to determine the estimated fair value wfloans, we use a present value techniqt
the anticipated future cash flows using certairuagtions including a current discount rate, potmirepayment risks and loan losses. I
were required to sell our loans at a time when welld/ not otherwise do so, there can be no assurdfiatenanagemers’estimates of fe
values would be obtained and losses could be iedurr

At December 31, 2013, our loans were 85% variasile-at spreads over LIBOR or the prime rate. bwes or decreases in inte
rates will generally not have a material impacttbe fair value of our variable-rate loans. We h29456 million of variableate loans
December 31, 2013. The estimated fair value ofvaumiablerate loans ($192.2 million at December 31, 2013)eigendent upon several fac
including changes in interest rate spreads anchtir&et for the type of loans that we have origidate

We had $35.0 million and $42.0 million of fixedte loans at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respbctiVhe estimated fair value
these fixedrate loans approximates their cost and is depengsom several factors including changes in interatgs and the market for
types of loans that we have originated. Since chsuig market interest rates do not affect the @stierates on our fixedhte loans, any chang
in these rates do not have an immediate impactuorinterest income. Our interest rate risk on axed+ate loans is primarily related to Ic
prepayments and maturities.

The average maturity of our loan portfolio is |&san its average contractual terms because of ynmegrats. Assuming market liquidi
the average life of mortgage loans tends to ineredsen the current mortgage rates are substantialyer than rates on existing mortg
loans and, conversely, decrease when the curremtgage rates are substantially lower than ratesexisting mortgage loans (due
refinancings of fixed-rate loans).

INTEREST RATE SENSITIVITY

At December 31, 2013 and 2012, we had $204.6 milind $200.2 million of variablete loans, respectively, and $81.9 million
$80.0 million of variable-rate debt, respective@n the difference between our variable-rate loamtstanding and our variablate det
($122.7 million and $120.2 million at December 3@13 and 2012, respectively) we have interestrisite To the extent variable rates decr
our interest income net of interest expense woalitehse.

The sensitivity of our variableate loans and debt to changes in interest ratesgigarly monitored and analyzed by measuring
characteristics of our assets and liabilities. \&&eas interest rate risk in terms of the poteaffakt on interest income net of interest expen
an effort to ensure that we are insulated from sigpificant adverse effects from changes in interates. As a result of our predomina
variablerate portfolio, our earnings are susceptible ton@peaieduced during periods of lower interest rafgssed on our analysis of -
sensitivity of interest income and interest expeatsBecember 31, 2013 and 2012, if the consolida#daince sheet were to remain constan
no actions were taken to alter the existing inter&® sensitivity, each hypothetical 25 basis pmduction in interest rates would have redi
net income (or increased net loss) by $307,000 $86D,000, respectively, on an annual basis. SifB®R has already been reducet
historically low levels, further significant negadiimpacts from lower LIBOR interest rates are aaticipated. In addition, as a REIT, the
of hedging interest rate risk is typically only pided on debt instruments due to potential REIT plismmce issues. Benefits derived fr
hedging strategies not based on debt instrumargs, (investments) may be deemed bad income for REHlifgcation purposes. The use ¢
hedge strategy (on our debt instruments) wouldofix cost of funds and hedge against rising intera®ts; however, to date we have
employed any hedging strategies.
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DEBT

Our debt was comprised of junior subordinated natesured borrowings government guaranteed loans, SBIC debentures &
Revolver at December 31, 2013. At December 31, 20182012, $27.5 million and $17.2 million of owunsolidated debt had fixed rates
interest and therefore was not affected by chanmgésterest rates. Our fixed-rate debt was comprisESBIC debentures. Our varialykste
debt is based on LIBOR and the prime rate and shibgect to adverse changes in market interest.rAgsiming there were no increase
decreases in the balance outstanding under owablerate debt at December 31, 2013, each hypothet@@lbhsis point increase in intel
rates would increase interest expense and therdémmease net income by approximately $819,000.

The following presents the principal amounts byryafamaturity, weighted average interest rates estimated fair values to evalu
the expected cash flows and sensitivity to interat® changes of our outstanding debt at Decenthe2®.3 and 2012.

Years Ending December & Carrying Fair
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Thereaftel Value Value (1)
(Dollars in thousands
Fixec-rate debt (2 $ © 9 4,000 $ = 9 o g = o 23,500 $ 27,500 $ 25,790
Variable-rate debt (LIBOR and prin
based) (3) (4 1,295 15,735 1,375 1,419 1,464 60,609 81,897 80,024
Totals $ 1,295 $§ 19,735 $ 1,375 < 1,419 $ 1,464 $§ 84,109 ¢ 109,397 ¢ 105,814

(1) The estimated fair value is based on a presentevasdculation based on prices of the same or smiilatruments after considering ri
current interest rates and remaining contractualtonéies.

(2) The weighted average interest rate of our f-rate debt at December 31, 2013 was 3.'

(3) Principal payments on the secured borrowings arpetielent upon cash flows received from the underlioans. Our estimate of th
repayment is based upon scheduled principal paysn@mtthe underlying loans. Our estimate will diffieom actual amounts to the ext
we experience prepayments and/or loan liquidatiemd charg-offs.

(4) The weighted average interest rate of our vari-rate debt at December 31, 2013 was 3.

Years Ending December & Carrying Fair
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 Thereaftel Value Value (1)
(Dollars in thousands
Fixec-rate debt (2 g 4,190 ¢ = g 4,000 ¢ = $ = ¢ 9,000 ¢ 17,190 § 18,027
Variablerate debt (LIBOR and prin
based) (3) (4 1,932 13,173 1,312 1,353 1,397 60,811 79,978 75,499
Totals $ 6,122 § 13,173 ¢ 5,312 g 1,353 ¢ 1,397 § 69811 ¢ 97,168 § 93,526

(1) The estimated fair value is based on a presentevahiculation based on prices of the same or smiilatruments after considering rit
current interest rates and remaining maturiti

(2) The weighted average interest rate of our f-rate debt at December 31, 2012 was 4.

(3) Principal payments on the secured borrowings arpetielent upon cash flows received from the underlioans. Our estimate of th
repayment is based upon scheduled principal paysn@mtthe underlying loans. Our estimate will diffieom actual amounts to the ext
we experience prepayments and/or loan liquidatiamd charg-offs.

(4) The weighted average interest rate of our vari-rate debt at December 31, 2012 was 3.
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tem 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The information required by this Item 8 is herebgdrporated by reference to our Financial Statesneaginning on page F-of this
Form 10-K.

ltem9. CHANGES | N AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.

Item 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

EVALUATION OF DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Under the supervision and with the participatiomof Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financialfioér, management has evaluz:
the effectiveness of our disclosure controls aratg@dures (as defined under rules 13a-15(e) andL3f&)- of the Securities Exchange Ac
1934, as amended (the “Exchange AcH3)of December 31, 2013. Based on that evaluatienChief Executive Officer and Chief Finan
Officer concluded that our disclosure controls gmdcedures were effective in ensuring that infofomatrequired to be disclosed by
Company in the reports that it files or submitshte SEC under the Exchange Act is recorded, predessimmarized and reported within
time periods specified by the SECfules and forms and include controls and pro@sddesigned to ensure the information requirede
disclosed by the Company in such reports is accatadland communicated to management, includingCtief Executive Officer and o
Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allamely decisions regarding required disclosure.

MANAGEMENT'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANC IAL REPORTING

Management is responsible for establishing and taigimg adequate internal control over financiglasing as defined in Rule 13a-15
(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Thmmpanys internal control over financial reporting is dg®d to provide reasona
assurance regarding the reliability of financigbading and the preparation of financial statemdatsexternal purposes in accordance
generally accepted accounting principles. We regikthe results of managementissessment with the Audit Committee of the Boértrus
Managers.

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Cghsgaternal control over financial reporting as add@mber 31, 2013. In maki
this assessment, management used the criteriartiebly the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatiohthe Treadway Commission (COSO
Internal Contro-Integrated Framework (1992) Based on their assessment, management deterrtfiaécas of December 31, 2013,
Company’s internal control over financial reportings effective based on those criteria.

The effectiveness of the Compasyinternal control over financial reporting as otdember 31, 2013 has been auditer
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent regisfaiblic accounting firm as stated in their repduich appears herein.

LIMITATIONS ON THE EFFECTIVENESS OF CONTROLS

Our management, including our Chief Executive @ffiand Chief Financial Officer, does not expect tha disclosure controls or ¢
internal controls will prevent all error and frau&l control system, no matter how well designed apdrated, can provide only reasonable
absolute, assurance that the control systembjectives will be met. Further, the design afoatrol system must reflect the fact that there
resource constraints, and the benefits of contralst be considered relative to their costs. Becafighe inherent limitations in all cont
systems, no evaluation of controls can provide labs@ssurance that all control issues and instaot&aud, if any, have been detected. T
inherent limitations include the realities thatguaents in decision making can be faulty, and theakdowns can occur because of simple
or mistake. Controls can also be circumvented byirldividual acts of some persons, by collusiotwaf or more people, or by managen
override of the controls. The design of any systémmontrols is based in part upon certain assumptabout the likelihood of future events,
there can be no assurance that any design wilkgdcin achieving its stated goals under all padéftture conditions. Over time, controls n
become inadequate because of changes in condibionieterioration in the degree of compliance witlsaiated policies or procedul
Because of the inherent limitations in a cost affieccontrol system, misstatements due to errdramrd may occur and not be detected.
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CHANGES IN INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTIN G

There have been no changes in our internal coot@t financial reporting that occurred during theader ended December 31, 2
that have materially affected, or are reasonaksjyjito materially affect, our internal control avf@ancial reporting.

ltem 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.
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PART IlI

Item 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNA NCE
Trust Managers
As of December 31, 2013, our Board consisted of fiaist managers, each serving a one-year term.

A trust manager on our Board is elected at an drmeating of shareholders and serves for a one tgear, until his or her succes
has been duly elected and qualified, or until tiest of his or her death, resignation or retieain

The following table sets forth the name and ageach of our trust managers as of December 31, 2013.

Name Age Position and Experienci

Nathan G. Cohe 68 Trust Manager, Chairman of Audit Commiti

Mr. Cohen has been a trust manager since May 19d84was the Chi
Financial Officer of Institution Solutions LLC, &itd party administratc
from June 2005 through December 2006. He remaiesid®mt, since Augt
2001, of Consultants Unlimited, a management amahfiial consulting firn
From November 1984 to 2001, he was the ControlferAtzo Rubbe
Products, Inc

Barry A. Imber 67 Trust Manager, Chairman of Nominating and Corporate
Governance Committee

Mr. Imber has been a trust manager since Februad¢.2He was the owr
of Imber and Company, Certified Public Accountards,its predecess:
from 1982 until August 2010 when he sold the actiognpractice. H
currently provides consulting services to Imber &uinpany. Mr. Imber wi
previously a trust manager of PMC Commercial froept8mber 1993
March 1995 and a director of PMC Capital, Inc. (“BMCapital”), out
affiliate that we acquired through a merger in 208dm March 1995 1
February 2004

Martha Rosemore Morrc 62 Trust Manage

Dr. Morrow has been a trust manager since May 1@®6Morrow ha
practiced optometry for 38 years in Russellvillelal®fama and is tl
President of the Alabama Optometric Associationrféation. Dr. Morrow i
the immediate past president of the American OptdmeAssociatiol
Foundation and is currently a Board member of tHabama Board «
Optometry. Dr. Morrow was a director of PMC Capifabm 1984 t
February 2004. Dr. Morrow is the sister of Mr. Lari®. Rosemore, o
previous Chief Executive Officer and Chairman & Board.
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Jan F. Sali 63 Trust Manager, Chairman of the Bo:

Mr. Salit has been our Chief Executive Officer, @man of the Board and Secret
since October 2012 and Treasurer since October, 2088 will be the President ¢
Secretary of PMC Commercial following the mergert. Balit was Chief Operatil
Officer of the Company from October 2008 to OctoBefi2, Executive Vice Presid
of the Company from June 1993 to October 2012, @hif Investment Officer ai
Assistant Secretary from January 1994 to Octobd226le was also Executive V
President of PMC Capital from May 1993 to Februag04 and Chief Investme
Officer and Assistant Secretary of PMC Capital frivarch 1994 to February 20t
From 1979 to 1992, Mr. Salit was employed by Gldnfénancial Corporation and
predecessor company Armco Financial Corporatiompmmercial finance compai
holding various positions including Executive Vid&resident and Chief Financ
Officer. Mr. Salit received his BA from Michigan &é University and his MBA fro
New York University.

On June 17, 2013, Irving Munn, a trust managehefGompany, resigned his position as a trust mainaffective on that date. Pr
to Mr. Munn’s resignation from our Board, he was a member @fAhdit Committee and Nominating and Corporate Gaaece Committe
and the Chairman of the Compensation Committee.MMinn’s resignation from the Board was not tendered inneotion with an
disagreement with the Company on any matter rgJatrthe Company’s operations, policies or prastice

Set forth below is a summary description of theegigmce, qualifications, attributes and skills tieat the Nominating and Corpor
Governance Committee to the conclusion that each parson is qualified to serve as a trust manageur Board.

Nathan G. Coherhas held various executive positions and respditibifor over 30 years. Mr. Cohen is proficientgreparing ar
analyzing financial information and working with d@pendent accountants. Mr. Cohen is experiencefinance and establishing ¢
maintaining banking relationships and credit féieii. He has been a trust manager for 19 yearbaméxtensive knowledge of the Company’
business and operations. Mr. Cohen has also hetéraus leadership positions with various civic aigations and has served on the boar
directors or executive committees and as presidéseveral other professional and community orgatioms. Currently, he is also able
devote substantial time and focus to the mattesiriag the attention of the lead independent traahager and in such capacity has comn
significant time and effort to the oversight of timernal control and financial disclosure respbilisies of the Board and serving as prim
liaison between management and the independent exerobthe Board.

Barry A. Imberis a Certified Public Accountant whetired in 2010 from an accounting and advisoryctica that he owned a
operated since 1982. In addition, from 2007 to 2009 performed trustee responsibilities includingrsight of the operation of an a
dealership in South Florida. In addition to possgsthe skills required to own and operate busiegskis qualifications include an exten:
understanding of the preparation and analysisnafitial statements. In addition, Mr. Imber hasxereive background in advising client:
the areas of accounting and financial services.liviber has also served as president and on the$oadirectors of various professional
community organizations. He is a member of the Acaer Institute of Certified Public Accountants ahd Florida Institute of Certified Pub
Accountants. Mr. Imber’s experience has led ourrBdea determine that he is an “audit committeeritial expert’as that term is defined
SEC rules.

Martha Rosemore Morrowhas owned and operated three professional optanafices since 1975, which has given her extel
experience in executive and employee managementaawdriety of other skills necessary to own andrafgea business. In additi
Dr. Morrow brings significant leadership skills fnobeing a managing partner of a company that pesvikrvices to over 120 nursing hor
As a founder in 1979 and board member of the Copigaurior investment manager from 1984 to 2004 anal tagst manager of the Compi
since May 1996, Dr. Morrow also brings extensivewledge of the Company’s business and operations.

Jan F. Salit, our President and Chief Executive Officer, carmes the strategic plans and policies establishedheyBoard an
provides direction and leadership toward the aar®nt of our goals and objectives. Mr. Salit hasestas our President and Chief Exect
Officer since October 26, 2012. In addition, durinig tenure, he also has had oversight resporgifdr business development, hur
resources, quality assurance,
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regulatory compliance, corporate compliance andipublations. Mr. Salit's experience has given himdepth knowledge of our operatic
and significant experience in financial and examtimanagement, strategic planning, business irttegrand in dealing with the ma
regulatory aspects of our business.

Executive Officers
The following table sets forth the name, age arsitipm of our executive officers as of December Z113:

Name Age Position and Experienci
Jan F. Salit 63 President, Chief Executive Officer, Secretary amgaSurer For Mr. Salg’
business experience, < Trust Managel” above.

Barry N. Berlin 53 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offiddr. Berlin has bee
Executive Vice President since October 2008 andiChinancial Officer sinc
June 1993, and will be Executive Vice PresidenPBFC Commercial followin
the merger. Mr. Berlin was also Chief Financiali€df of PMC Capital, Inc. fro
November 1992 to February 2004. From August 1986lasember 1992, M
Berlin was an audit manager with Imber and Compa@grtified Publi
Accountants. Mr. Berlin is a certified public acotant.

Executive Officers and Board of PMC Commercial Afte the Merger

The following is a list of the persons who are @iptited to be PMC Commerciglexecutive officers and Trust Managers followihe
merger and their ages and anticipated positiohewiolg the merger.

Name Age Position

Jan F. Salit 63 President and Secretary

David Thompsot 50 Chief Financial Office

Richard Ressle 55 Trust Manager and Chairman of the Bo
Avraham Shemes 52 Trust Manage

Shaul Kube 51 Trust Manage

Kelly Eppich 57 Trust Manage

Douglas Bect 68 Trust Manager (independet

Robert Cresc 70 Trust Manager (independet

Frank Golay 66 Trust Manager (independet

For the business experience, qualifications anltssii Mr. Jan F. Salit see “Trust Managers” andéEutive Officers” above.

David Thompsorwill be the Chief Financial Officer of PMC Commaeatifollowing the merger. Mr. Thompson is a Prind¢jpg@hiet
Financial Officer of CIM Group. He joined CIM Group 2009. Prior to joining CIM Group in 2009, Mrh@mpson spent fifteen years w
Hilton Hotels Corporation, most recently as Seniare President and Controller, where he was redptanfor worldwide financial reportin
financial planning and analysis, internal contnatldechnical accounting compliance. Mr. ThompsaXperience includes billions of dollar:
real estate acquisitions and dispositions in thephality sector, as well as significant capitalrkeds experience. He began his career
certified public accountant in the Los Angelesadfof Arthur Andersen & Co.

Richard Ressleiis the founder and President of Orchard Capitap@ation (“Orchard Capital”)a firm that provides consulting a
advisory services to companies (including CIM Groimpwhich Orchard Capital or its affiliates investe has been President of Orct
Capital since 1994. Through his affiliation withdbard Capital, Mr. Ressler serves in various serapacities with, among others, CIM Gr
and Orchard First Source Asset Management (togeitfthrits affiliates, “OFSAM”),an investment adviser focusing on middle market
investments. Both OFSAM and its wholiywned subsidiary, OFS Capital Management, LLC, ragistered with the SEC as registe
investment advisers. Mr. Ressler serves as a boardber for various public and private companiewtiich Orchard Capital or its affiliat
invest, including j2 Global, Inc. (NASDAQ: “JCOMTpr which he has bee@hairman of the Board of Directors and a directbj20Globa
since 1997, and also served as j2 Glab&hief Executive Officer from 1997 to 2000 (in lkeawf these capacities pursuant to a const
agreement between j2 Global and Orchard Capitat).Rdssler has in-depth knowledge of CIM Urlsabusiness and operations and
extensive experience with, and knowledge of, bissimeanagement and finance as a result of his experiwith CIM Group, including as Co-
Founder thereof.
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Avi Shemesh Co-Founder and a Principal of CIM Group, has baemctive real estate investor for over 23 ye@irsce cofounding
CIM Group in 1994, Mr. Shemesh has been instrunhémtauilding the firms real estate and infrastructure platforms. Asiaciral and hee
of the firm’s Investments Group, he is actively involved initheestment process and provides guidance on trexsdi investment ideas act
CIM Group’s platforms. He serves on the fisrihvestment and Asset Management Committees. iaddity, Mr. Shemesh is responsible
the day-today operations of CIM Group, including strategittiiives, property management and leasing andstaveaelations. Prior to Cl
Group, Mr. Shemesh was involved in a number of essftl entrepreneurial real estate activities,uidicly cofounding Dekel Developmel
which developed a variety of commercial and muttifig properties in Los Angeles. Mr. Shemesh haslépth knowledge of CIM Urbas’
business and operations and has significant experieith the real estate investment process aatkgic planning as a result of his experit
with CIM Group, including as Co-Founder thereof.

Shaul Kuba, Co-Founder and a Principal of CIM Group, has baemctive real estate investor for over 23 yeairsce cofounding
the firm in 1994, Mr. Kuba has been an integratlt mdirbuilding CIM Group’s investment platforms. AsPrincipal and head of the firs’
development group, he is actively involved in thevelopment, redevelopment and repositioning of GHbup’s real estate investme
including notable projects such as 432 Park Averidditionally, Mr. Kuba is instrumental in sourcingew investment transactions
establishing and maintaining relationships withioral and regional retailers, hospitality brandsl aestaurateurs. He serves on the fam’
Investment and Asset Management Committees andde@®guidance on the diverse investment ideas a€&td Groups platforms. Prior 1
CIM Group, Mr. Kuba was involved in a number of sessful entrepreneurial real estate activitiesuisiclg cofounding Dekel Developmel
which developed a variety of commercial and muttifig properties in Los Angeles. Mr. Kuba has in-ttegnowledge of CIM Urbar’
business and operations and has significant experiwith the real estate development process amtiag new investment transactions .
result of his experience with CIM Group, includiag Co-Founder thereof.

Kelly Eppichis a Principal, Investments of CIM Group. He join@dM Group in 2002. Prior to joining CIM Group, MEppich serve
as the Chief Financial Officer of the Decurion Gmngtion/Pacific Theatres. In that capacity, he wesponsible for all areas of finan
accounting, treasury, risk management and infoonagystems development of the firm. From 1989 t@020e was Vice President Finan
Controller and then Vice President of Business Dmpraent, Finance and Administration for the Intéiozal Recreation Enterprises Divis
of Warner Bros., which was responsible for the &itjan, development and operations of theme parndmultiplex theater real estate proj
outside of the United States. Prior to joining WarBros., Mr. Eppich served as an Assistant Viasigent and Assistant Corporate Contr
for Maxicare Health Plans Inc. (1986 —1989) andka&drfor Ernst & Young (1979 — 1986). Mr. Eppich liaslepth knowledge of CIM Urbas’
business and operations and has significant expgerien the preparation and analysis of financialeshents, strategic planning and finar
management.

Douglas Bechhas served as founder and Chief Executive OffiééRaintree Resorts International and its predegesgRaintree’)
since August 1997. Raintree owns and operates l@pgaaation ownership resorts in Mexico, the Uni&tdtes and Canada. Prior to foun:
Raintree, Mr. Bech practiced securities and cotediinance law from 1970 until 1997. Mr. Bech alsas served as a director of j2 Global s
November 2000. From August 1988 through Novemb@028e served as a director of eFax.com, a coma®obal acquired in Novemk
2000. Mr. Bech also serves as lead director of#fotintier Corporation, which was the result of agee of Frontier Oil Corporation and Ha
Corporation in July 2011 and had previously serasda director of Frontier Oil Corporation since 398r. Bechs previous work as
securities and corporate finance lawyer, as a tirexf two other public companies, and his curexjerience as a chief executive officer
private enterprise engaged in marketing, managemettconsumer finance in three different countnwed, provide expertise on corpor:
governance, legal matters and finance, as wellggaral business management perspective to thel Bbarust Managers.

Robert J. Creschas been a Managing Director of Pecks Managemetrid?a Ltd., an investment management firm, sirf@@01 He
currently serves on the boards of j2 Global, Lumi@®rporation and OFS Capital Corporation. Mr. €rgseviously served on the boarc
Continucare Corporation until 2011 and the boar&epracor, Inc. until 2009. Mr. Crexiextensive knowledge of investment manage
and accounting from his experience with Pecks Mamamnt Partners and his experience serving on giligdic company boards of direct
will provide expertise regarding investment stréegaccounting issues and public company matters.

Frank Golay has been associated with Sullivan & Cromwell LLRcsi September 1977. From 1977 to 1985 he was awiats
located in the firm’s New York and London officégom 1985 to 1988 he was a partner in the firldew York office, and from 1988 to 2C
he served as a partner in the firm’s Los AngeléisafMr.
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Golay retired at the end of 2008 and has since bé@wounsel to the firm. Mr. Golag’practice has included numerous securities ofie
including REIT offerings, merger and acquisitioartsactions and general corporate advice. He hassesied both issuers and underwri
companies and their financial advisors. Prior te hétirement, Mr. Golag clients included Orchard Capital, j2 Global aniMGGroup
Mr. Golay is a member of the New York and Califarfiars, and is a past chair of the Business angoCations Law Section of the L
Angeles County Bar Association. Mr. Golayéxtensive legal experience in the securitiesgarerand acquisitions, and general corporate
will provide the Board of Trust Managers with aosiy resource on a variety of important strategittens

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compdince

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act 0f412® amended, requires our trust managers andtaseeofficers and persons w
own more than 10% of a registered class of ourtedgcurities, to file reports of holdings and sactions in our securities with the S
Executive officers, trust managers and greater i beneficial owners are required by applicabgulations to furnish us with copies of
Section 16(a) forms they file with the SEC.

Based solely upon a review of these reports, duthe fiscal year ended December 31, 2013, we hkelat all SEC filin
requirements applicable to our trust managers,uixecofficers and beneficial owner of more tha¥d6f the common shares were satisfie
a timely basis in 2013.

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

The Board has adopted a Code of Business CondddEthics that applies to all trust managers, officnd employees, including
Companys principal executive officer and principal finamiciand accounting officer and a Code of Ethical diant for Senior Financi
Officers (collectively, the “Codes of Conduct”). &lpurposes of the Codes of Conduct are to:

. promote honest and ethical conduct, including theal handling of actual or apparent conflictdrdgérest between perso
and professional relationshig

* promote full, fair, accurate, timely and underselé disclosure in periodic reports required tdileel by the Company
. promote compliance with all applicable rules argliations that apply to the Company and its officand trust managel

. promote internal reporting of violations of the @sdf Conduct to an appropriate person or perstergified in the Codes
Conduct; anc

. accountability for adherence to the Codes of Coti

If the Board amends any provisions of either Cad€anduct that applies to the CompasZhief Executive Officer or senior financ
officers or grants a waiver in favor of any suchspas, the Company intends to satisfy its discl®saguirements by promptly publishing
text of the amendment or the specifics of the wadreits website at www.pmctrust.com.

The Company intends to continue to act promptlyntmorporate not only the actual requirements oésuhdopted with respect
corporate governance matters but also additionhintary measures it deems appropriate. The CodeSoofluct may be viewed on
Company'’s website at www.pmctrust.com under therf@oate Governancesection. In addition, the Company will mail copadshe Codes «
Conduct to shareholders upon their written requgsareholders may request a free copy of the Cafd@snduct from:

PMC Commercial Trust
Attention: Investor Relations
17950 Preston Road, Suite 600
Dallas, Texas 75252

(972) 349-3235

No Change in Nominating Procedures

There were no changes made during 2013 to the guoes by which our shareholders may recommend ressito our Board.
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Audit Committee, Audit Committee Financial Expert

The Company has a standing Audit Committee thatrsaes the accounting and financial reporting pseesas well as leg
compliance and risk management matters. The Audihi@ittee consists of Mr. Nathan G. Cohen (chairmang Mr. Barry A. Imber. Tt
Audit Committee is comprised entirely of trust mges who meet the independence and financial diyeraquirements of the exchange u
which the Company’s common shares are traded, ¥®ENMKT, as well as the standards established utideSarbane®xley Act of 200z
See Item 13. of this Annual Report, “Trust Manalgetlependence.” In addition, the Board has deterdhthat Mr. Imber qualifies as amudit
committee financial expert” as defined in SEC rules

The Audit Committees responsibilities include providing assistancethte Board in fulfilling its responsibilities withespect t
oversight of the integrity of the Company’s finaaicstatements, the Compaaytompliance with legal and regulatory requiremeits
independent registered public accounting firm'slifjeations, performance and independence, andpéréormance of the Comparsyinterna
audit function. In accordance with its Audit Comi@é& Charter, the Audit Committee has sole authdoitgppoint and replace the indepen
registered public accounting firm, who report dihedo the Committee, approve the engagement fethefindependent registered pu
accounting firm and pre-approve the audit servemesg any permitted noaudit services they may provide to the Companyaddition, th
Audit Committee reviews the scope of audits as asglthe annual audit plan and evaluates matteanglto the audit and internal controls
the Company. A copy of the Audit Committee Chaiteravailable on the Company’s website at www.pnattoom under theCorporat
Governance’section. In addition, the Company will mail cop@ghe Audit Committee Charter to shareholders ugvair written request. Tl
Audit Committee holds separate executive sessmutsjde the presence of executive management,thatiCompanys independent registel
public accounting firm.

Three of our four currently serving trust managegesnonmanagement trust managers, and two of these tiausagers are independ
under the NYSE MKT listing standards. By letterathfuly 17, 2013, NYSE MKT notified us that we aat in compliance with certain listi
standards as a result of the resignation of Mr.M@mom the Company’s Board. Following Mr. Musntesignation, a majority of t
Company’s trust managers are not independent twdyof four are independent) and the Compamtidit Committee is comprised of t
independent trust managers rather than the regulsiee independent trust managers. The Companyrtdshe earlier of its next annt
shareholdersineeting or one year from the occurrence of the tetrat caused the failure to comply with the boemdependence and at
committee compensation requirements; provided; lrewéf the annual shareholderseeting occurs no later than 180 days followingethen
that caused the failure to comply with this requiemt, we shall instead have 180 days from suchteweeregain compliance. The merge
anticipated to be completed no later than March2814. The Company anticipates that upon compleifdhe merger it will be in complian
with applicable listing standards.

Audit Committee Report

The Audit Committee operates under a written chatiopted by the Board. The Audit Committee reviewd assesses the adequac
its charter on an annual basis. The Audit Commitiearter is available on the corporate governaectian of the Compang’ website ¢
www.pmctrust.com.

During 2013, at each of its regularly scheduled tings, the Audit Committee met with the senior menshof the Companyg’financia
management team. Additionally, the Audit Committeigher through separate private sessions or dutsnggularly scheduled meetings v
the independent registered public accounting firnd ¢he manager of internal control testing, hadd@hrdiscussions regarding financ
management, legal, accounting, auditing and intexorarol issues.

The Audit Committee has been provided with quayteddates on management’s process to assess tngaagieof the Compang’'syster
of internal control over financial reporting, theuework used to make the assessment and managemmemtlusions on the effectivenes
the Companys internal control over financial reporting. Thedages include discussions with the independenstergid public accounting fii
about the Company’s internal control assessmermtegmand the independent registered public acemufitim’s evaluation of the Comparsy’
system of internal control over financial reporting

The Audit Committee reviewed with executive managetnand the manager of internal control testiay tlife Company policies an
procedures with respect to risk assessment andmikagement and (2) the overall adequacy and i#eess of the Comparg/legal
regulatory and ethical compliance programs, inelgdhe Codes of Conduct.

The Audit Committee recommended to the Board thgagement of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as the émdiemt registered pub
accounting firm for the year ended December 3132@hd reviewed with senior members of the Compafigancial management team
the independent registered public accounting fitme, overall audit scope and plans, the results@rimal and external audit examinatic
evaluations by management and the independenteegispublic accounting firm of the Compasyhternal controls over financial report
and the quality of the Comparmsyfinancial reporting. The Audit Committee has sioée authority to appoint the independent registgnablic
accounting firm.

The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussedtigéted financial statements in this Annual ReporfForm 10K with managemel
including a discussion of the accounting principlé® reasonableness of significant accountingetgs and estimates, and the clarit
disclosures in the financial statements.

The Audit Committee also discussed with the inddpen registered public accounting firm, who is eyeghto audit and report on
consolidated financial statements of the Company subsidiaries and the effectiveness of the Conigaimiernal control over financ
reporting, those matters required to be discusgatidauditors with the Audit Committee in accorcamvith the Public Company Account
Oversight Board (PCAOB) AU Section 380, Communimativith Audit Committees, as currently in effechelTAudit Committee has recei\



the written disclosures and the letter from theepehdent accountant required by the applicableneagents of the PCAOB regarding
independent accountaat’‘communications with the Audit Committee concegnindependence, and has discussed with the indepi
accountant the independent accountant’s indepeeden013.

In performing all of these functions, the Audit Qmittee acts in an oversight capacity. The Audit Gottee reviews the Compary’
quarterly and annual reports on Form 10-Q and Fd#{ prior to filing with the SEC. In its oversightle the Audit Committee relies on -
work and assurances of the Compangianagement, which has the primary responsibiityestablishing and maintaining adequate inte
control over financial reporting and for preparthg financial statements, and other reports.

In reliance on these reviews and discussions, la@ddports of the independent registered publiowtting firm, the Audit Committe
has recommended to the Board, and the Board haswagap that the audited financial statements bkidted in this Annual Report on Form 10-
K for the year ended December 31, 2013, for filivith the SEC.

This report is submitted by the following membefshe Audit Committee:

Nathan G. Cohen (Chair)
Barry A. Imber

ltem 11. EXECUTIVE C OMPENSATION
Compensation Committee

The Company has a standing Compensation Commlittgeotersees the annual performance evaluatioheo€bmpanys Chairma
and Chief Executive Officer and other executiveicgifs. The Compensation Committee consists of MrnBA. Imber (chairman) ai
Mr. Nathan G. Cohen. The Compensation Committemisprised entirely of trust managers who meet tidlependence requirements of
NYSE MKT listing standards. The Compensation Corta¥e’s responsibilities include:

. establishing the Compa’s general compensation philosop
. overseeing the Compa’'s compensation programs and practices, includiognitive and equi-based compensation pla
. reviewing and approving executive compensationglanight of corporate goals and objectiv

. evaluating the performance of the Chief Executiiicer in light of these criteria and establishitttge Chief Executiv
Officer's compensation level based on such evalus

. evaluating the performance of the other executflieers and their salaries, bonus and incentiveequity compensatiol
. administration of the Compa’s equity and benefit plan
. reviewing the adequacy of the Comp’s succession planning and organizational effecégsnant

. reviewing and making recommendations concerningpgsals by management regarding compensation, bg
employment agreements and other benefits and esligith respect to such matters for employeeseoCthmpany
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The Compensation Committee has the authority &irretounsel and other experts or consultants iimfuthe sole authority to sels
and retain a compensation consultant and to appghaviees and other retention terms of any consulta

Compensation Discussion and Analysis
General

For 2013, the Compensation Committeghilosophy for compensating named executive @ffiovas that a compensation sys
reflecting the Company’ financial performance and shareholder return emeburaging ownership of our shares by the namedutixe
officers would best align the interests of our ndnexecutive officers with the objectives of the Qmamy and our shareholders. -
Compensation Committee designed the Compangmpensation program to meet our objective ofardimg performance measured by
creation of value for shareholders. In accordandd whis philosophy, the Compensation Committeersees the implementation of
compensation system designed to promote the Corrpdimancial and operational success by attractingtivating and assisting in t
retention of key employees who demonstrate thedsiglevels of ability and talent by making a partiaf an executive offices’ compensatic
dependent upon the Company’s and such executiwf®rmance. The Compargyexecutive compensation program includes theiatig
compensation elements:

. Base salary. The salaries for the named executive officersdatermined following an assessment of each exexstieve
of responsibility and experience, individual perfi@nce and contributions to the Compe

®*  Annual Cash Bonus IncentivesAnnual incentives are determined by the performanfcéhe executive, the executige’
department, as applicable, and the financial perdoice of the Company as a whole based on profitabitd balance she
metrics and in relation to its pee

. Long-Term Equity Incentives. Grants of restricted shares are designed to atetiindividuals to enhance the lotagsr
profitability of the Company and the value of ownumon shares. Awards of longrm incentive compensation require
executives to focus on the Company’s ldegn strategic growth and prospects, as well asdaire the executives to sh
the risk of poor performance with our sharehold

The Compensation Committee does not allocate al fpercentage to each of these elements, but hdssdevith management
design an overall compensation structure to besteseur goals and to appropriately motivate ourcexges to provide outstanding servic
the Company. In addition, even though a portiontled executive’s compensation is influenced by them@anys performance, tl
Compensation Committee has a general philosoplprafiding some consistency in amounts of compensagirovided by each of the th
elements. This philosophy results in less signifidacreases or decreases in the amount of comi@mgmid from year-torear and lessens |
immediate effect of the Company’s performance oacafve compensation from yearyear. In addition, the Compensation Comm
assessed the reasonableness of the compensatikageats a whole provided to each named executfieegfand considered whether
amount of total compensation is excessive giverCiidpany’s performance and current economic trends.

In 2013, the Compensation Committee evaluated ohgpensation of Messrs. Berlin and Salit, and adstenéd all employee bene
plans established by the Company. In 2013, the @osgtion Committee recommended and approved the $mlary of Mr. Salit ar
recommended to the Board the compensation of MiirBerhe Board made all final compensation decisioegarding Mr. Berlin, aft
receiving the Compensation Committee’s recommeaodsti

Identification of Named Executive Officer
The Company’s named executive officers for whom pgensation information is disclosed are Jan F. SalitBarry N. Berlin.

Effective October 26, 2012, Jan F. Salit becameXha&irman of the Board, Chief Executive Officerefident and Secretary. Mr. S
has been the Treasurer since 2008. Mr. Salit wathief Operating Officer, Chief Investment OfficExecutive Vice President and Assis
Secretary from October 2008 to October 2012. Mlit &responsible for the overall direction andmagement of the Company. Mr. Sait’
areas of responsibility include the development arecution of both tactical and strategic plansessary to maintain profitability for t
Company. Mr. Salit's areas of responsibility alsmlide oversight of our day-way operations including the supervision of ourdits
marketing, legal and human resources functions.Sdlit's responsibilities also include being the chairmfour Disclosure Committee a
the liaison between our Sarbanes-Oxley manager

68



Table of Contents

of compliance and the Audit Committee. In additialong with Mr. Berlin (our Chief Financial OfficgrMr. Salit is responsible for obtaini
leverage for the Company upon attractive terms.ggecific major accomplishments during 2013 incl¢@tlecontinued penetration in the S
7(a) market, (2) performance of the increased mesipdities of Chief Executive Officer in an exerapf manner and (3) execution of a me
agreement with CIM REIT.

Barry N. Berlin is the Chief Financial Officer, Exgive Vice President and Assistant Secretary. Bérlin’s primary areas
responsibility include oversight and primary resgibility for all aspects of financial reporting af8EC reporting, including our system
internal controls and cash management, and fostipervision of our financial reporting, accountisgyvicing, information technology a
insurance functions. In addition, along with MrliGavr. Berlin is responsible for obtaining levgm for the Company upon attractive ter
His specific major accomplishments during 2013udel (1) successfully managing the Compatriiyiancial reporting process, internal conti
information technology and insurance coveragepé&jormance of the increased responsibilities ofeChRinancial Officer in an exemple
manner and (3) pursuant to the execution of a megeement with CIM REIT, significant efforts asdpport related to the due diligence
completion and filing with the SEC of the Compangi®xy Statement/Prospectus on Form S-4.

Role of Management in the Compensat-Setting Process

Certain of the Company’s named executive officdes/ @ role in the compensati@etting process. In 2013, our Chief Exect
Officer, Jan F. Salit, made recommendations toGbmpensation Committee concerning the compensafidfr. Berlin. The Chief Executi
Officer's recommendations to the Compensation Catemiinfluence the base salary, potential annualboand the granting of longsnr
equity incentive compensation to Mr. Berlin. Whilee Compensation Committee gave much weight taChief Executive Officels opinion
the Compensation Committee made its own recommiemdir each element of Mr. Berlig’compensation. The final decision for all elem
of the Companys compensation to Mr. Berlin is ultimately made ttye Board based upon the recommendations of thep€osatio
Committee. The Compensation Committee was resplernfsibapproving all compensation to Mr. Salit.

In 2013, the Compensation Committee also constittedChief Financial Officer as to his judgment lo¢ tCompanys financial statt
as a whole before making final decisions concersialgry and longerm equity incentive awards. Both the Chief ExamuDfficer and th
Chief Financial Officer provided input to the Compation Committee regarding the Companfyjhancial status prior to the establishmet
the aggregate cash bonus pool.

On an informal basis, the Compensation Committe@ested that each named executive officer distwsgob performance of t
other named executive officers.

Chief Executive Officer Compensation

Mr. Salit's current annual salary, pursuant to his employragréement, was set by the Compensation Commits€58,000 effectiv
as of December 16, 2013. Also, during 2013 he wasded cash bonuses totaling $150,000.

Use of Independent Consultants

The Compensation Committee reviews the overall @rsation program to assure that it is reasonalilgiarconsideration of all tl
facts, adequately recognizes performance tieddaticrg shareholder value and meets overall Compampensation and business objecti
The Compensation Committee has historically ndizetl the services of an independent advisor oerotompensation consultant wl
determining the appropriate compensation packagethé Company named executive officers. If the Compensation Qdtaee determine
that using an independent consultant in the fusidesirable, however, the Compensation Commét&éiarter does allow for the use of su
consultant and the Compensation Committee is emmirte contract this work to an appropriate thiadtp.

Process for Determining, and Elements of, Executi@empensatior
Base Salary

The Compensation Committee typically meets in Ddammmto review the base salary and |ldagn incentives provided to our nan
executive officers for the next year. At that megtihe Compensation Committee typically reviews, dodhe extent deemed appropriate,
change the base salary of all or some of our naredutive officers for the upcoming twelve monthipe beginning January 1.

The predominant factors considered by the Compiems@obmmittee in recommending base salaries foafiicable named execut
officers are: (1) the performance of the Compangasured by both financial and nfinancial objectives, (2) individual accomplishmg
(3) the responsibilities of the officer and anyrpiad
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change of responsibilities for the forthcoming yeenrd (4) the salary required to retain the namescative officer. The Compensat
Committee also considers the proposed base sakatyve to that of the Comparsybther executive officer. Base salaries paid larmar yee
2013 are quantified below in the Summary Compeosdkable.

The Compensation Committee met in December 2018.0dmpensation Committee discussed each of ourdhanecutive officers’
performance during 2013 including major accomplishta and achievement of goals. The Compensatiom@bee also discussed the cur
economic conditions, the Compasyperformance, and whether given the general econountiook, any raise in salary was appropriatetfa
named executive officers. At the December 2013 imgethe Compensation Committee approved an inergabase salary from $425,00(
$450,000 for Mr. Salit and from $350,000 to $379,66r Mr. Berlin. In addition, during 2013, empl@yealaries were increased up to
based on performance factors. The Compensation Giteenbelieved it was appropriate to approve thesscutive increases in base sé
effective December 16, 2013. The base salary iserdar Mr. Salit was 6% and the increase for MrliBewas 7%. The reasons for
increases were the positive performance relatedetimew responsibilities that were assumed by e&dlr. Salit and Mr. Berlin, the effort |
each of Mr. Salit and Mr. Berlin related to the gegrand continued exemplary performance of thepaasibilities.

Annual Management Cash Bonus Incentive

The Compensation Committee administers the Compaaghual cash bonus arrangements which are destgneampensate k
management personnel for reaching certain perfacmanilestones and to aid the Company in attractie@ining and motivating person
required for the Company’s continued performandee Tompensation Committsegeneral philosophy of providing some consisteim
compensation amounts, and avoiding significant ghann the amount of compensation paid from yeametwr, results in less signific:
increases or decreases in the amount of cash bothee might otherwise be paid and has the effectamerating the extent to which -
annual cash bonus is tied to the Compamerformance. In December 2013, bonuses of $1@5:¥e approved for the named exect
officers, Messrs. Salit and Berlin. The aggregdtthe bonus approved for these officers in 2012 $&H80,000 and in 2011 was $129,00(
light of current economic conditions and the perfance of the Company, the Compensation Committesrrdmed that the total amount
annual bonuses to be earned by Messrs. Salit arith Be2013 should increase from the amount eaine2D12, based on the factors set f
below and the total compensation earned by eacltethawecutive officer. Therefore, for 2013, the Cenmgation Committee approved
annual cash bonus of $100,000 for Mr. Salit and@IGfor Mr. Berlin, which were approved by the Bhan addition to an annual cash bol
each of our named executive officers received atiome special bonus of $50,000 during July 2013tfair work with respect to additior
responsibilities performed since the departurdvef@ompany’s prior Chief Executive Officer.

The bonus arrangements for all other employeegrdiff that the Compensation Committee only apprdlkesaggregate amount
bonuses payable to all other employees. The aggregaount approved with respect to the bonus aeraegt for all other employees s tl
approved by the Chief Executive Officer.

Annual cash bonus incentives are earned and pdhd respect to the calendar year. Therefore, the pgosation Committee
historically met in the last quarter of each yearréview the performance of each of our named dakexwfficers for the year and t
performance of the Company in the preceding threstgrs (and the Compasyanticipated performance in the fourth quartethefyear). |
general, at the Compensation Committee’s Decemiamting the members of the Committee will deterniiase salary, lonterm incentive
and the amount of annual bonuses to be recommeadkd Board. The annual bonuses for our nameduixemfficers approved by the Boi
are paid in either December of the year approvedaouary of the following year at the discretiontled named executive officer. Ann
bonuses paid with respect to calendar years 2@iP, and 2013 are quantified below in the Summamn@nsation Table.

Bonuses are discretionary. To the extent paid, emdor our named executive officers are primdodged upon a review of 1
performance of the Company, individual accomplishtagresponsibilities of the officer, dividendsgashare price and the annual bonus
to the named executive officer for the prior ydaraddition, changes in responsibilities of the ednexecutive officer, if any, factor into
determination of bonus for the named executiveceffiThe Chief Executive Officer may also recommandncrease or decrease to the ar
bonus for each named executive officer based upempérformance of the executive and the Companingliine calendar year and, to sc
extent, the relative performance of the Companypamed to its peers.

Long-term Equity Incentives

The Compensation Committee is responsible for atnation of our 2005 Equity Incentive Plan, andabfishes the number
options granted and restricted shares awardedpiitpose of the 2005 Equity Incentive Plan is tooemmage and enable our named exec
officers, employees and namployee Board members to acquire a proprietamrast in the Company, thus furthering their inteiia
stimulating the growth and prosperity
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of the Company. In keeping with the Compensatiom@ittee’s philosophy to provide lortgrm equity incentives to our named exect
officers and other key employees, it is anticipateat restricted share awards and share optiondbevijranted to our named executive offi
and other key employees on a periodic basis.

The number of shares available under the 2005 ¥tuientive Plan was initially 500,000, though thismber is subject to adjustm
upon the occurrence of corporate transactions ascrecapitalizations or share splits. As of Decarlie 2013, there were 224,584 sh
available for grant under the 2005 Equity IncentRlan. The Compensation Committee has the authturigelect the eligible recipients,
number of shares to be granted, to modify an avrard time to time, and to set the rules and gurdsiof administration for the 2005 Eqt
Incentive Plan. The Compensation Committee also thassole discretion to impose forfeiture provisiompon certain terminations,
accelerated vesting upon a change in control.

The Compensation Committee reviewed the long-teeritives held by the Compasyiamed executive officers and determine:
terms of new londgerm equity incentives to be awarded to executvethe Company at its March 2013 meeting. The awavdre the
presented to the Board for approval.

In 2013, when determining the number of restricébdres to be granted to each of Messrs. Salit artinBthe Compensatis
Committee was primarily influenced by its objectifiee the grant date fair value of the restrictedrghawards to be equal to a fixed dc
amount. This objective results in more shares bgmagted when the Compasyshare price is relatively low, and fewer shargisdp grante
when the Compang’ share price is relatively high. The CompensaG@ommittee does not use the number of restrictedeshgranted as
incentive in itself, but views the granting of efyuas an incentive for our named executive offidersnanage the Company such that its ¢
price will appreciate, thereby benefiting all oEt€ompany’s shareholders. The Compensation Conantitis established a twear vestin
period for the restricted shares because it bedi¢hvat the restricted shares provide an incentiveofir named executive officers to maxin
the Company’s financial performance over the lagt

During 2013, Messrs. Salit and Berlin received 3,88stricted shares each with a grant date of Madcl2013. The terms of the
awards are described in greater detail in the tieeréollowing the Grants of PlaBased Awards in 2013 table. Individual grants waeae b
the Compensation Committee based upon the Compemsaammittee’s own deliberations as to the indinlls overall level of compensatic

The Company has generally granted equity awardsutonamed executive officers in the form of resécshares, instead of sh
options. This practice was adopted in part becéusgned the Company with its peers, and in fp@tause restricted shares result in e
ownership by the named executive officer, therdignang the executives’ interest with the Compangther shareholders, instead of sin
giving the executives an interest in share prigaegation, which may result from granting of shapgions.

Severance and Change in Control Agreements

The Compensation Committee believes that severandein select circumstances, change in contralngements, are necessar
attract and retain the talent necessary for oug-term success. However, the Compensation Commities dot view severance programs
named executive officers as an additional elemértompensation. Rather, the Compensation Commiitieves that severance progri
allow the Company named executive officers to focus on duties attend provide security should their employmentdsminated throuc
no fault of their own. Currently, our current nanesckcutive officers are covered by severance pangsn their employment agreements.

Each of our named executive officers has enteréo &m agreement with the Company (which is disaisseder Executive
Compensation—Employment Agreementgiirsuant to which he is granted enhanced severbenefits. The Compensation Commi
believes that these arrangements are appropridtearsistent with similar provisions agreed upotwieen comparable sized public compa
and their executive officers. The employment age®s are discussed in greater detail below in teetian entitled Executive
Compensation—Potential Payments Upon Terminatid@hamge in Control.”

Other Compensation Plans

The Company maintains a profit sharing plan theluides a defined contribution plan (the “401(k)rPJaand a discretionary plan (1
“Profit Sharing Plan”)that is intended to satisfy the tax qualificatiegquirements of Section 401(a) of the Internal ReeeQode. Th
Companys full time employees, including our named exeutbificers, are eligible to participate in the 491Plan and are permitted
contribute a portion of their eligible compensation purposes of the 401(k) plan (subject to thpliapble statutory limits of $17,500,
$23,000 for eligible participants over the age @f i calendar year 2013). All amounts deferredlparticipant under the 401(k) Plarsalar
reduction feature vest immediately in the partinifgaccount. While the Company may (but is noures to) make “matching contributions”
under the 401(k) Plan, none were made during fi26aB. In lieu of 401(k) “matching contributiongrsuant to the Profit Sharing Plan,
Board elected to make a discretionary
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contribution of $235,000 during the plan year enBedember 31, 2013, $247,000 during the plan yede@ December 31, 2012 and $234
during the plan year ended December 31, 2011. Dotibns to the Profit Sharing Plan are availalolall full-time employees who meet-
eligibility requirements of the plan. In genera¢sting in the Profit Sharing Plan occurs ratablydeen years two to six of employment.

Indemnification Agreements

We have entered into an indemnification agreemetit @ach of our trust managers and named execaffieers. These agreeme
provide for the Company to, among other thingsemdify such persons against certain liabilities thay arise by reason of their statu
service as trust managers or named executive offite advance their expenses incurred as a resalfproceeding as to which they may
indemnified and to cover such person under any managers’ and officerdiability insurance policy the Company choosesitsndiscretior
to maintain. These indemnification agreements atended to provide indemnification rights to thélefst extent permitted under applice
indemnification rights statutes in the State of d&®and shall be in addition to any other rightsititvidual may have under the Company’
Declaration of Trust, Bylaws and applicable law.rdgement believes these indemnification agreenmamtiance the Comparsyability tc
attract and retain knowledgeable and experiencedutives and independent, non-management trustgaea

Tax Considerations

Code Section 162(m) places a limit of $1,000,00@henamount of compensation that the Company mdyaldor federal income ti
purposes in any one year with respect to the Cogipa@hief Executive Officer, and the next three hihgaid executives. Howev
performanceésased compensation that meets certain requiremeptsluded from the $1,000,000 limitation. The Qemsation Committee
aware of this tax law, but believes that none efeRecutive officers currently receives compensagibor near the $1,000,000 maximum.
Compensation Committee will continue to keep thisvsion in mind for future compensation decisiossd will take measures to preserve
deductibility of compensation payments and benédithe extent reasonably practicable and to thengéxonsistent with its other compenss
objectives.

Executive Compensatio
Summary Compensation Table

The table below sets forth information concernimgnpensation earned for services rendered to thep@oynby each of our nam
executive officers for the three calendar yearsednBecember 31, 2013. The Company has enterecemfoyment agreements with
current named executive officers, which are desdritelow under “Employment Agreements.”

All Other
Name and Share Compensation
Principal Awards Option
Position Year Salary (1) Bonus (1) (2) (3) Awards (4) Total
Jan F. Salit 2013 $ 425,000 $ 150,000 $ 24,064 $ = $ 51,66: $ 650,72t
Chief Executive Officer 2012 328,750 55,000 24,231 - 46,44¢ 454,43(
2011 307,525 64,500 29,064 - 44,88 445,97
Barry N. Berlin 2013 $ 350,000 $ 125,000 $ 24,064 $ - $ 48,70¢  $ 547,77(
Chief Financial Officer 2012 325,625 55,000 24,231 - 46,44¢ 451,30!
2011 307,525 64,500 29,064 - 45,54¢ 446,63!

(1) During 2013, salary and bonus as a percentage taf thmpensation was approximately 88% for Mr. tSaiid 87% for Mr. Berlin

(2) As described in the CD&A, the Compensation Comengtants share and option awards on a discretiortzagis. The terms of the share awards provide ifiddeinds o
nor-vested restricted shares to be paid to the ho

(3) Represents the grant date fair value of stock awéwd the applicable fiscal year in accordance wittcounting Standards Codificatio“ASC”) Topic 718, Compensation
Stock Compensation. See the “Grants of Plan-Baseatds in 2013"table for information on awards made in 2013. Thas®unts do not correspond to the actual value
will be recognized as compensation by the namecliéixe officers

(4) See table below for a breakdown of all other corspan. The Company has determined that the amafrgserequisites and other personal benefits gai@ach of th
named executive officers does not exceed $1C
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All other compensation consisted of the followingr 2013:

Tax Qualified
Unused Deferred
Vacation Compensation
Car
Name Pay Plan Allowance Other Total
Jan F. Sali $ 20,433 % 24629 $ 6,600 $ > $ 51,662
Barry N. Berlin 16,827 24,629 6,600 649 48,706

Grants of Plan-Based Awards in 2013

The following table provides information concerniegch grant of restricted shares and each grasttase options made to our nar
executive officers pursuant to our 2005 Equity hioe Plan during 2013.

All Other Share All Other Option Exercise or Grant Date
Awards: Awards: Number Base Price Fair Value of
Number of of Securities of Option Share and
Grant Shares or Underlying Awards Option
Name Date Units (#) (1) Options (#) ($/SH) Awards ($) (2)
Jan F. Sali 3/14/1% 3,333 $ = $ > $ 24,064
Barry N. Berlin 3/14/13 3,333 - - 24,064

(1) Represents a grant of restricted shares to the daexecutive officers in the amount specified. Bnms of these restricted share awards are descrif@ow in the sectic
entitled” Equity Incentive Plan Compensati”

(2) Represents the grant date fair value of the restdcshares or share options, as the case may bgufposes of ASC Topic 718, Compensi-Stock Compensation. 1
grant date fair value of the restricted sharesasdéd on the per share closing price of our comnhames on March 14, 2013, which was $7.

Employment Agreements

We have entered into employment agreements with ehour named executive officers, dated Decembte2012, for employme
terms that extend until the earlier of (1) the ndregecutive officer's 70th birthday, or (2) DecemBg, 2015 (the “Term”)The Term of th
employment agreements are automatically extendedoiosecutive one-year periods unless either gadyides written notice of norenewa
at least sixty (60) days prior to the end of thenT.eUpon notice of non-renewal, the executive ie doe yeas base salary at the minimum |
of base pay provided for in the contract, paid updgher the Company providing notice of namewal or the next anniversary date of
contract. Each of these employment agreementdbitantially similar and provides for at least arimeaiews by the Board of the base sal:
contained therein, with a minimum annual base galBine minimum annual base salaries are $425,0606860,000 for the Chief Execut
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, respectively.addition to base salary, the employment agreésrovide for the following:

. the opportunity to earn annual cash bonuses in atadihat may vary from year to year and that arsethaupon ot
performance and the performance of the executiweh) bonuses to be awarded at the B's discretion; an

. the same benefits and perquisites that our ottieeof and employees are entitled to rece

The employment agreements authorize Messrs. SaiBarlin to incur reasonable expenses for the ptam of our business. We w
reimburse the executives for all such reasonahpereses incurred upon the presentation by each txectrom time to time, of an itemiz
account of such expenditures. The executives aiteeinto such additional and other fringe beneéitsthe Board shall from time to ti
authorize, including but not limited to health irsnce coverage for the executive and the execstispouse and dependent children, &
monthly automotive allowance of $550, which theative is to use to obtain an automobile to belabéé for business purposes as nee
All operating expenses related to the automobilthsas maintenance, insurance and fuel (excludiedfor businesselated travel) are tl
responsibility and expense of the executive.

Each employment agreement also contains severaagisipns, which are discussed below in the seatittitied ‘Potential Paymen
Upon Termination or Change in Controllhe employment agreements further provide thaCibpany will indemnify and hold the execut
harmless from any loss for any corporate undertpkiis contemplated by the employment agreementiebhe claim, allegation or cause
action shall be made against the executive in teopmance of his contractual duties except forlfwlilillegal misconduct. Suc
indemnification shall include but not be limitedreasonable costs incurred in defending the exeirihis faithful performance of contract
duties.
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In July 2013, following the execution of the merggreement, CIM REIT proposed to each of Messi&. &al Berlin that the terms
their employment agreements then in effect be aeebrid incentivize them to remain with the Companljofving consummation of tl
merger. Following negotiations, Messrs. Salit amtliB entered into amended and restated executiyayment agreements (th&éstate
Executive Employment Agreementsiyhich will become effective upon consummation o timerger and replace their existing execi
employment agreements.

Under the Restated Executive Employment Agreemeyatsh of Messrs. Salit and Berlin is entitled tomi@imum annual salary
$425,000 and $350,000, respectively. The annuahsalrrently being paid to Messrs. Salit and Beidi $450,000 and $375,000, respecti\
The Board of Trust Managers may, in its discretinorease the annual base salary and may alsodesriginus compensation.

Under the Restated Executive Employment Agreemdr(tk) in the case of Mr. Salit, the executive walarily resigns his employme
no earlier than 12 months following the effectiveelof the agreement but no later than Decembe2@l5 or, in the case of Mr. Berlin, -
executive voluntarily resigns his employment onbefore December 31, 2015 or (2) the Company teri@énthe executive’ employmer
without Cause on or before December 31, 2015, xbewtive will be entitled to receive compensationa to 2.99 times the average of the
three yearstcompensation calculated as of the termination deteed on the calculation methodology set forthundefinitive proxy stateme
for our 2013 annual meeting; provided, howevert tha amount of any annual equity awards includgeduch calculation shall be cappe
$25,000 per annum.

For purposes of the Restated Executive Employmemnedments, “Causaheans (1) the intentional, unapproved material s&so
corporate funds, (2) professional incompetence3yaéts or omissions constituting gross negligeocevillful misconduct of executive’
obligations or otherwise relating to the busindsBMC Commercial.

In addition, to the extent an executive is emplopgdthe Company on January 1, 2016 and such execiginot entitled to ai
disability, death or severance payments under thstaRed Executive Employment Agreement, the exeeuwtiould receive, in the case
Mr. Salit, 300,000 restricted share awards (asédfin our 2005 Equity Incentive Plan) and in taeecof Mr. Berlin, 225,000 restricted st
awards. Such restricted share awards would vesedrately upon grant.

Equity Incentive Plan Compensation

The restricted share awards made to our named &xeafficers on March 14, 2013 were granted unal@r 2005 Equity Incenti\
Plan. Under the terms of the restricted share asy&@®66 restricted awards as detailed in Gran®BlaiBased Awards in 2013 table w
granted to our named executive officers on March2043. One-third of the restricted shares weréedesn the date of grant, otteird of the
restricted shares will vest on March 14, 2014 dved remaining onéhird of the restricted shares will vest on Mareh 2015 provided tf
recipient continues his employment with us throtigg applicable vesting dates. Our 2005 Equity IticerPlan provides for the accelere
vesting of equity awards such as the restrictedesa@ards in the event of a change in control. Agdiogly, any unvested restricted shares
vest upon completion of the merger. These acc@argrovisions are described below in the sectibthis proxy entitled Potential Paymen
Upon Termination or Change in ControDividends are payable on the restricted shardseasame rate and at the same time that divider
paid to our shareholders.

Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year End

The following table provides information on the standing share option and restricted share awaglis by our named executi
officers as of December 31, 2013. Each equity geashown separately for each named executiveearffic

Option Awards Share Award:
Number of Number of
Securities Shares or Market Value of
Underlying Units of Stock Shares or Units of
Unexercised Option Option That Have Stock That
Options Exercise Expiration Not Have Not
Name Exercisable Price Date Vested Vested (3)
Jan F. Sali - - - 1,111 (2) $ 9,55t
2,222 (2) 19,10¢
Barry N. Berlin - - - 1,111 (1) 9,55¢
2,222 (2) 19,10¢

(1) Represents awards of restricted shares made to efattte named executive officers indicated abovilarch 14, 2012 which will vest on March 14, 20fryvided the name
executive officer is still employed with us on ttlate. The vesting of these restricted shares reagcbelerated as described in thedtential Payments Upon Terminatior
Change in Contr" section below
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(2) Represents awards of restricted shares made to ehtfe named executive officers indicated abovéarch 14, 2013. The vesting dates of these awareslescribe
above in the narrative entitle* Equity Incentive Plan Compensati”

(3) Based on the per share closing market price of8f6our common shares on December 31, 2013. Tisgef these restricted shares may be accelerasedescribed
the* Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change imt@#” section below

Option Exercises and Shares Vested in 2013

The following table sets forth, for each of our rivexecutive officers, information regarding théueaof restricted share awards
vested during the fiscal year ended December 313.20

Share Award:
Number of Share Value Realized o
Name Acquired on Vesting (#)(1 Vesting (3$) (2)
Jan F. Sali 3,333 $ 23,98¢€
Barry N. Berlin 3,333 23,986

@

)

Based on the following awards: (a) 1,111tniesed shares granted on March 14, 2011 which eesin March 14, 2013, (b) 1,111 restricted shanestgd ot
March 9, 2012 which vested on March 9, 2013 and (t)1 restricted shares granted March 14, 2013Wiviested immediately. The per share market pifitke
restricted shares were $7.15 on March 9, 2013 ah@%on March 14, 2013.

Calculated as the aggregate market valugtendate of vesting of the restricted shares wibpect to which restrictions lapsed (or restricgthres becan
vested) during 2013 (calculated before paymenngfapplicable withholding or other income taxes).

Pension Benefits

We do not sponsor or maintain any plans that pevalr specified retirement payments or benefitghsas taxgualified define
benefit plans or supplemental executive retirenpéants, for our named executive officers.

Non-qualified Deferred Compensation

We do not have any non-qualified deferred compémsg@ians or arrangements in which our named ekexofficers participate.

Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change in Catrol

The Company has entered into employment agreeméifit®ach of our named executive officers that aomthe following terms ar

provisions:

Cause.The Company cannot terminate the employment agnesmexcept for: (1) the intentional, unapproved emal
misuse of corporate funds; (2) professional incaepee or (3) willful neglect of duties or respoirildiles in either case n
otherwise related to or triggered by the occurresfcany event or events described in the other eympént agreement itei
detailed in this sectiol

Death. If the named executive officer dies during the tefemployment and has not attained the age ofrdgwears, th
Company or any third person insurance providedheyGompany, through a coordination of benefits|l gfay the estate
the named executive officer a death benefit equalb times the named executive offieecurrent annual base salary al
time of death. In the event the named executivieaft estate receives death benefits payable undegranyp life insuranc
policy issued to the Company, the Compankability will be reduced by the amount of theatie benefit paid under st
policy, so amounts actually paid could be less timse shown in the table below. The Company giilany remainir
death benefits to the estate of the named execaffieer over the course of 12 months in the sanammer and under t
same terms as the named executive officer would baen paid if he had still been working for ther(any. In addition, r
later than one month from the date of death, thate®f the named executive officer will be pai¢ ascumulated vacatir

pay.

Disability . If unable to perform services for the Company bgson of illness or total incapacity, based on sieshlsimila
to those utilized by the U.S. Social Security Adistirmtion, the named executive officer shall reeehis total annu
compensation for one year of total incapacity tigftoaoordination of benefits with any existing didiéfoinsurance prograi
provided by the Company (a reduction in salaryiat amount paid by any Company provided insurar&@juld the name
executive officer be totally incapacitated beyondreeyear period, so that he is not able to devote fiutle to his
employment with the Company, then the employmergement shall terminat
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. Constructive Dischargt. The named executive officers will incur a constiwetdischarge upon the occurrence of any o
following: (1) a named executive officer’'s baseasglis reduced below the “Minimum Rate” (as defiiedhe ‘Employmen
Agreement” section above), (2) a material reductiona named executive officer'job function, authority, duties
responsibilities, or other similar change detetioma the executives working conditions that violates the spirit ofe
employment agreement, (3) a required relocatioa tocation more than 35 miles from the named exeeudfficer’s jok
location at the time of the employment agreemesiscution, or excessive travel in comparison t@o#xecutives in simil
situations or (4) any breach of the employment exgient that is not cured within 14 days followingvatten notice to th
Company describing the situation. If the named etiee officer’s job responsibilities are substantially modifisdearesult ¢
one of the previous conditions, the named execuifieer could resign and be entitled to be pail @onstructive Dischar
Settlement in an amount equal to 2.99 times theageeof the last three years compensation. All artsopayable due tc
constructive discharge shall be paid to the nanxedugive officer in a lump sum cash payment in adance with the tern
of the employment agreeme

. Change in Control.If (1) there is a Change in Control (hereinaftefirti) during a named executigeémployment perio
and within 12 months following the Change in Cohttbe Company (or its successor) terminates theedaexecutives
employment without Cause as described above om#med executive terminates his employment due tostDactive
Discharge as described above, (2) the Company nietes the named executiseémployment without Cause while
Company is negotiating a transaction that reasgnedalld result in a Change in Control or (3) thenany terminates tl
named executive’employment without Cause and a Change in Coatwirs within three (3) months following the date
named executive is terminated, the named execslial be entitled to receive compensation equal®8 times the avera
of the last three year€ompensation paid. All amounts payable due to an@&an Control shall be paid to the nar
executive officer in a lump sum cash payment iroad@nce with the terms of the employment agreen

A change in control (a “Change in Control”) would éeemed to occur as a result of:

* the ownership or acquisition (whether by a mergemwotherwise) by any “Personag defined in the employmt
agreement), in a single transaction or a serieglated or unrelated transactions, of beneficiahewhip of more th¢
fifty percent (50%) of the Compa’s then outstanding voting securiti

* the merger or consolidation of the Company withnto any other Person, if, immediately followingethffectivenes
of such merger or consolidation, Person(s) whondidbeneficially own then outstanding voting setbesiimmediatel
before the effectiveness of such merger or conatitid directly or indirectly beneficially own motkan fifty percer
(50%) of the outstanding shares of voting stocthefsurviving entity of such merger or consolidafi

® any one or a series of related sales or conveydoaasy Person(s) (including a liquidation) of @llsubstantially all ¢
the assets of the Compai

* the complete liquidation or dissolution of the Canp; or

® Incumbent Trust Managers cease to be a majdrityeomembers of the Board where an “Incumbent fTMenager”is
(1) an individual who is a member of the Board loa date of the employment agreement or (2) anytngst manage
whose appointment by the Board was approved by jrityaof the persons who were already incumbenst
managers at the time of such appointment, electicapproval, other than any individual who assuwféise initially
as a result of an actual or threatened electiotesbmvith respect to the election or removal oftmmanagers or ott
actual or threatened solicitation of proxies orsmnts by or on behalf of a Person other than treedor as a result
an agreement to avoid or settle such a contestlicitation.
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Each of the employment agreements also contaims\aspn governing the disclosure of informatiorheTnamed executive office
are prevented, both during and following the terfnthe employment agreement, from disclosing infafomaon the operating procedures
service techniques of the Company, the Compamyistomer lists, or similar valuable and uniquen@any information. The breach
threatened breach by the named executive officéniefobligation will result in the Company beingtiled to an injunction restraining st
breach, and the Company may also seek the recofeiamages from the named executive officer.

The equity awards that are granted to each of aovedl executive officers are not governed by thel@ymnpent agreements, but rat
through our 2005 Equity Incentive Plan and the agmanying award agreements for each grant. Our Bty Incentive Plan provides tl
upon either (1) the dissolution or liquidation b&tCompany; (2) a sale of the Compangssets; (3) a merger, consolidation or reorgtaoi
where the outstanding shares are converted inexananged for a different kind of securities of fuecessor entity and the holders ol
Companys outstanding voting power immediately prior to tsuansaction do not own a majority of the outstagdvoting power of th
successor entity immediately upon completion ohsansaction, or (4) the sale of all the Comparsfiares to an unrelated party, all unve
share options and restricted shares shall recenslerated vesting. Each of the current named ¢ixecofficers held unvested restricted sh
at December 31, 2013. Accordingly, any unvestedrictsd shares will vest upon completion of the geer The value of these unves
restricted shares is included in the table belavte acceleration of equity awards.

The following table sets forth the amount of thempanys payment obligation if each of our named executiffeeers incurred
termination on December 31, 2013 as a result ohfi@icable scenario. All vacation days are assutadthve been taken, and all reasor
business expenses are assumed to have been phevaodbursed for purposes of the following taliach of the amounts in the table is
Companys best estimate of the amounts that our executinegd receive upon a termination or a change inrobnbut the precise amot
would not be determinable until an actual termipratbccurred.

Change in
Control/
Constructive Employment
Name Death (1) Disability (2) Discharge (3) _Agreement (4
Jan F. Sali $ 900,001 $ 651,000 $ 1,546,000 ¢ 1,574,001
Barry N. Berlin 750,000 548,000 1,441,00C 1,470,00C

(1) Amounts in this column approximate two times theuahbase salary of each of the current named diexofficers effective as of January 1, 2C

(2) Amounts in this column approximate the amount riggbabove in th¢ Total’ column of the* Summary Compensation Tg” with respect to the year ended Decembe
2013.

(3) The amounts shown in this column are based tip@mproduct of the thregear average total annual compensation and 2.9%alTamnual compensation with respect to
calendar years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 ahdl 2@ reported above in ti* Total’ column of the¢* Summary Compensation Tal”

(4) Includes the compensation due for Constructive liisge plus the accelerated vesting of the 3,332 sted restricted shares held by each of Messr#. &l Berlin as ¢
December 31, 2013 pursuant to the 2005 Equity fineriPlan upon a change in control transaction. 3 were calculated based on a per share closindeharice o
$8.60 on December 31, 20!

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Paitiation

The Compensation Committee consists of memberfi@Board who are neither former nor current oficer employees of tl
Company or any of its subsidiaries. The Compensaommittee of the Board for 2013 consisted of Barry A. Imber (chairman) a
Mr. Nathan G. Cohen.

No member of the Compensation Committee has amylawking relationship with any other company theduires disclosure unc
this heading. No executive officer of the Compaesved as a director or member of the compensatiomdttee of any entity that has one
more executive officers serving as a member ofxbmpany’s Board or of the Compensation Committee.

Compensation Committee Report

The Compensation Committee has reviewed and disduse Compensation Discussion and Analysis withagament. Based ug
that review and discussion, the Compensation Cotaeitecommended to our Board that the Compens&tiscussion and Analysis
included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Compensation Committee
Barry A. Imber, Chair
Nathan G. Cohen
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Compensation Policies and Practices In Relation tRisk Management

Each year, the Compensation Committee conductsnalysss of the Compang’ compensation practices and policies to detel
whether such policies and practices encourage idgmturisk taking by our executive officers and eogpks in an effort to maximize th
compensation. In 2013, the Compensation Commitegerohined that the Comparssytompensation policies and practices do not eage
improper risk taking. In making such determinatite committee considered:

. A portion of the Company’s annual incentive comgagion is equity-based lorigrm compensation that vests over a pe
of two years. This vesting period encourages affide focus on sustaining our lotgrm performance. These grants
made annually, so officers always have unvesteddsvenat could decrease significantly in value uf dusiness is n
managed for the loi-term.

. The Company does not offer significant shertn incentives to its officers or employees thaghmhincentivize excessi
risk taking at the expense of lotgrm company value. While commissions are paidutobmsiness development officers
part of their compensation packages, payment offtlecommission is contingent upon certain cridebeing satisfie:
Management believes that these commissions areaadswaller percentage of total compensation thamussions paid k
certain other lender

. As discussed above, the Compensation Comnsttgeheral philosophy is based on consistency, wheshits in les
significant increases or decreases in the amouobmmpensation paid from yearyear and lessens the immediate effe
the Company’s performance on executive compensafiom year-to-year, which encourages |degn sustaine
performance and does not encourage excessiveakisigtmotivated by shc-term performance

The Companys compensation policies and practices have beeluatgd to make sure they do not encourage ouresffi@an
employees to take risks that are not in our l@rga best interest. Based upon this review, the @&rsation Committee believes tha
compensation policies and practices achieve a balletween compensating the Compamnyfficers and employees for their performe
while minimizing excessive risk taking.

Trust Manager Compensation

The Company uses a combination of cash and diwsed compensation to attract and retain qualiféediidates to serve on the Bo
In setting Board compensation, the Board considarsyng other things, the substantial time commitnoenthe part of trust managers
fulfilling their duties as well as the skill levilrequires of trust managers. In addition, the-earployee trust managers are reimbursed &
Company for their expenses related to attendingcbomcommittee meetings.

As of December 31, 2013, our non-employee trustagars were compensated according to the followchgdule:

Annual Board retaine $ 35,00
Fee for each quarterly Board meeting atter 1,50C
Fee for each other Board meeting atter 1,00¢
Annual audit committee chairman retail 8,00(
Annual compensation committee and nominating cotemithairman retaint 3,00(
Annual audit committee member retail 4,80(
Fee for each committee meeting atten 1,00(¢
Fee for each special committee meeting atte! 2,50(
Special committee chairman retail 5,00(
Fee for each independent trust manager meetingdeit 1,00¢

During 2013, the annual Board retainer, annualtazmimittee chairman retainer and annual audit ciiienmember retainer we
paid quarterly.

In addition, our 2005 Equity Incentive Plan allofes the issuance of share awards at the discrefiothe Compensation Committee
accordance with the plan. All share awards gratii¢de non-employee trust managers vested immdyliate
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Compensation for the non-employee trust managethéoyear ended December 31, 2013 was as follows:

Fees Earned or Paid

Name in Cash Share Awards Total

Nathan G. Cohen $ 63,05( - $ 63,05(
Barry A. Imber * 61,050 - 61,050
Martha Rosemore Morro! 41,250 - 41,250
Irving Munn * (1) 14,400 - 14,400

*  Independent Director

(1) Resigned effective June 17, 2!

ltem 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICI AL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
SHAREHOLDER MATTERS

Shares That May Be Issued Under Existing Equity Comensation Plans

The following table provides information at DecemB&, 2013 with respect to our common shares, edp#ons or restricted shar
that may be issued under existing equity compemsatiians, all of which have been approved by siddelns.

(@) (b) (©)

Number of common
shares remaining available

Number of common for future issuances under
shares to be issued up equity compensation plai
Weighted average
Plan exercise of outstanding exercise price of (excluding shares reflect:
Category options outstanding optior in column (a))
Equity incentive plan 98,500 $8.29 224,584

Trust Managers and Executive Officers

The following table sets forth certain informatigegarding the beneficial ownership of our commoareh as of February 15, 2014
(1) all current trust managers, (2) each curremhath executive officer and (3) all current trust mgers and current executive officers
group. Unless otherwise indicated, the common shigsid in the table are owned directly by theviial, or by both the individual and 1
individual's spouse. Except as otherwise noted, the individadlsole voting and investment power as commorestghown or, the votil
power is shared with the individual’s spouse. Atlividuals set forth below have the same principaliness address as the Company.
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Common Shares Own Percent of Common Shar
Name Beneficially Owned Beneficiall
Jan F. Salit (1 34,336 *
Barry N. Berlin (2) 37,710 *
Martha Rosemore Morrow (: 360,377 3.4%
Barry A. Imber (4) 33,580 *
Nathan G. Cohen (¢t 15,770 &
Trust Managers and Executive Officers as a groype(Sons 481,773 4.5%

*  Less than 1%.

(1) Includes 612 common shares held in an IRA38d3 restricted shares.

(2) Includes 211 common shares held in the namieisothild and 6,823 common shares held jointlyhwits spouse and 3,3
restricted shares.

(3) Includes 77,495 common shares held in an [RAX71 common shares held in a trust for the beoéfDr. Morrow and 16,9C
common shares held beneficially. All remaining camrmshares are held by a partnership of which Drridw is the sole manage

(4) Includes 3,274 common shares held in an IRA®benefit of his child and 1,202 common shaedd in an IRA.

(5) Includes 1,700 common shares held in the nafrhés spouse

Owners of More than 5% of Our Common Shares

The following table sets forth certain informatioegarding the beneficial ownership of our SharesfaBebruary 15, 2014 by e
person known by us to own beneficially more thand%ur outstanding Shares.

Common Shares Ownec Percent of Common Share
Name and Address
Beneficial Owne Beneficially Owned Beneficiall
REIT Redux LP (1 581,140 5.5(%
14901 Quorum Drive Suite 9(
Dallas, Texas 7525
Hoak Public Equities, L.P. (- 776,357 7.3%%

3963 Maple Avenue Suite 4!
Dallas, Texas 7521

(1) On April 1, 2013, REIT Redux LP filed a Sthe 13D reporting beneficial ownership as of Ma&#®) 2013, of 582,085 Shares. On February 11, 2RE]
Redux LP filed Amendment No. 5 to Schedule 13Drtiepdeneficial ownership as of January 29, 201481,140 Shares. The securities reported on Ameni
No. 5 to Schedule 13D are beneficially owned byteigporting persons. According to Amendment Nt Schedule 13D, there are agreements betwee
reporting persons, legal or otherwise, concernihg woting or dispositive power at this time betw&abert J. Stetson and REIT Redux LP as statedvi
According to Amendment No. 5 to Schedule 13D, ditiad to their respective direct holdings, RobértStetson may be deemed to beneficially own tAg3t
Shares held by REIT Redux LP by virtue of his jpos#és President of REIT Redux LLC, the generatrgarof REIT Redux LP, that has the power to void
dispose of such shares; Lonnie B. Whatley Ill maydeemed to beneficially own the 65,418 Shares InelB.T. Interest, Ltd. and the 39,212 Shares bg
Lonnie & Rosalie Whatley Family LLC as a resulhisf power to vote and dispose of such Shares; anddDNest may be deemed to beneficially own tHzh€
Shares held by West Partners L.P. and the 22,887eSlheld by the David Martin West Asset Trust essalt of his power to vote and dispose of sucresh

(2) On April 16, 2013, Hoak Public Equities, Lfired a Schedule 13D reporting beneficial owngrsiis of April 12, 2013, of 545,000 Shares. On Eaby 5, 2014
Hoak Public Equities, L.P., fled Amendment Noo4Sthedule 13D reporting beneficial ownership ad-elbruary 4, 2014 of 776,357 Shares. The secL
reported on Amendment No. 4 to Schedule 13D arefio@ily owned by six reporting persons. AccordiogAmendment No. 4 to Schedule 13D, the repc
persons have shared voting and dispositive powér mispect to 580,000 Shares. One reporting pefrsmn sole voting and dispositive power with respge
196,357 Shares. According to Amendment No. 4 tedsdd 13D, J. Hale Hoak, together with Hoak Pulluities, L.P., Hoak Income Opportunity Fund, L
Hoak Fund Management, L.P, Hoak & Co. and James$ibhik, has shared voting and dispositive power wapect to 580,000 Shares; James M. Hoak he
sole voting and dispositive power with respect36,357 Shares
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Change in Control

As discussed in Item 1. Business, above, we hatereshinto a merger agreement with CIM REIT. We eztphe merger to |
completed prior to March 31, 2014. The consummatiothe merger will result in a change of contrbtiee Company.

Item 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS, DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

Transactions with Related Persons

During 2013, pursuant to a separation agreemeittvileaentered into during the fourth quarter of 2002 paid $1,744,197

severance to our former Chief Executive Officerné& B. Rosemore, who is the brother of one of austtmanagers, Dr. Martha Rosern

Morrow.

Review, Approval and Ratification of Transactions vith Related Persons

The Board has adopted the following written relgiedson transaction policy:

A “Related Person Transactiofis a transaction, arrangement or relationship (or series of similar transactions, arrangemen
relationships) in which the Company (including ariyts subsidiaries) was, is or will be a participand the amount involved exceeds $5,
and in which a related person had, has or will lead&ect or indirect material interest.

A “Related Person” is:

Any person who was in any of the following categsriluring the applicable period:

a trust manager or nominee for trust mana

any executive officer; c

any immediate family member of a trust managerxecative officer, or of any nominee for trust maeagvhich means al
child, stepchild, parent, stepparent, spouse,ngjblinother-in-law, father-in-law, son-in-law, datghin-law, brother-inaw,
or sister-inlaw of the trust manager, executive officer, or nm® for trust manager and any person (other th@mant o
employee) sharing the household of such securitjeinc

Any person who was in any of the following categenivhen a transaction in which such person hadeatdir indirect material intere
occurred or existed:

any person who is known to the Company to be tinefical owner of more than 5% of the Shares;

any immediate family member of any such securitidéig which means any child, stepchild, parentpsdeent, spous
sibling, mother-in-law, father-in-law, son-in-ladaughter-in-law, brother-in-law, or sisterdaw of such security holder a
any person (other than a tenant or employee) shémmhousehold of such security holc

A person who has a position or relationship withifirm, corporation or other entity that engages imansaction with the Compe
will not be deemed to have an “indirect materiérast” within the meaning of “Related Person Teation” when:

The interest arises only:

from such persc's position as a director of another corporationrganization that is a party to the transactior

from the direct or indirect ownership by suchgoer and all other persons specified in the definitf “Related Persont
the aggregate of less than 10% equity intereshatheer person (other than a partnership) whichgarsy to the transactic
or

from both such position and ownership;

from such persos’position as a limited partner in a partnershipvirich the person and all other persons specifiethé
definition of “Related Persortiave an interest of less than 10%, and the pesspatia general partner of and does not
another position in the partnersh

Each of the Company’s executive officers is encgedato help identify any potential Related Perscam$action.
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As part of the Company’s efforts to identify poiahtRelated Person Transactions, the Company’'somesty Trust Managersinc
Executive Officers’Questionnaires will request information regardiragetial Related Person Transactions, and thewvigllp information t
identify affiliations of such persons:

a list of entities for which the trust managerroist manager nominee is an employee, director ecwgive officer;
a list of entities for which the executive offidera director
each entity where an immediate family member oftthst manager, the trust manager nominee or acuéixe officer is a
executive officer

. each firm, corporation or other entity in which tinest manager, trust manager nominee or an imreetiaily member ¢
the trust manager or trust manager nominee istagyaor principal or in a similar position or in igh such person has a !
or greater beneficial ownership intere

. each firm, corporation or other entity in which #veecutive officer or an immediate family membeaipartner or princip
or in a similar position or in which such persors beb% or greater beneficial ownership intet

. each charitable or ngorofit organization where the trust manager, traahager nominee or an immediate family memb
the trust manager or trust manager nominee is guogne, executive officer, director or trustee; .

. each charitable or nagorofit organization where the executive officer ar immediate family member is an emplo
executive officer, director or truste

If a new Related Person Transaction is identifiedjll initially be brought to the attention of ¢hChief Financial Officer, who will the
prepare a recommendation to the Board and/or a dibeenthereof regarding whether the proposed t@imsais reasonable and fair to
Company.

A committee comprised solely of independent truahagers, who are also independent of the RelatesdbiP&ransaction in questis
will determine whether to approve a Related Perfmnsaction. In general, the committee will onlypagve or ratify a Related Pers
Transaction if it determines that the Related PerSmnsaction is reasonable and fair to the Companymaking its determination, t
committee may consider, among other things, theom@gendation of the individuals directly involved the transaction and t
recommendation of the Chief Financial Officer.

Independence of Trust Managers

Pursuant to the ComparsyCorporate Governance Guidelines, which requia¢ shmajority of our trust managers be indeper
within the meaning of the NYSE MKT corporate gowaroe standards, the Board undertook a review ointtependence of the Compasy’
trust managers. In making independence determimgtine Board observes all criteria for independesstablished by the SEC, the N
MKT and other governing laws and regulations. Dgrthis review, the Board considered transactions raationships between each t
manager or any member of his or her immediate famild the Company, including (if applicable) thosported under Related Persc
Transactions.’As provided in the Corporate Governance Guidelittes purpose of this review was to determine whredlhg such relationshi
or transactions were inconsistent with a deternonahat the trust manager is independent.

As a result of this review, the Board affirmativelgtermined that all of the trust managers (inelgdrving Munn, who resigned
June 17, 2013) are independent of the Companytanddanagement with the exception of the managementber of the Board, Mr. Jan
Salit and Dr. Martha Rosemore Morrow, sister of t@aB. Rosemore, the Company’s former Chief ExeeuBficer.
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Item 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES
Principal Accounting Firm Fees

Aggregate fees billed to the Company for the yesmded December 31, 2013 and 2012 by the Compamiricipal accounting firr
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, were as follows:

2013 2012
Audit fees (1) $ 943,320 $ 657,500
Non-Audit Related Fees (: 143,000 513,000
Tax Fees (3 93,800 85,400
All Other Fees 2,000 2,000
Total $ 1,182,12C $ 1,257,900

(1) Audit fees consisted of professional services pmedd in connection with (i) the audit of the Comy's annual financial statements and internal contgkl
financial reporting, (ii) the review of financiatatements included in its quarterly reports on Fat€-Q and (iii) procedures related to consents andstasice wit
and review of documents filed with the S

(2) During 2013, consisted of due diligence fees inetiiin connection with the Compis evaluation of the potential merger with CIM RHEDLiring 2012, consisted
due diligence fees incurred in connection with@wenpan’s evaluation of strategic alternative

(3) Tax fees consisted principally of assistance wiliens related to tax compliance, tax planning, éaivice and the performance of a transfer pricinglgsis.

Pre-Approval Policies

The Company’s Audit Committee, pursuant to its egile authority, has reviewed and approved the Gmyip engagement
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as its independentteegis public accounting firm, and the incurrencealbfof the fees described above,
2013. The Audit Committee has adopted Rpproval Policies for all other services PricewhterseCoopers LLP may perform for
Company. The Pre-Approval Policies detail with sfigity the services that are authorized within leaxf the abovelescribed categories
services and provide for aggregate maximum doli@ounts for such prapproved services. Any additional services not iilesd or otherwis
exceeding the maximum dollar amounts prescribedhbyPreApproval Policies will require the further advaneview and approval of tl
Audit Committee. For each proposed service, theepeddent registered public accounting firm is regplito provide detailed baakz
documentation at the time of approval to permit Auelit Committee to make a determination whether phovision of such services wo
impair the independent registered public accountiimy’s independence. The Audit Committee has delegaeduthority to grant any st
additional required approval to its Chairman betweeeetings of the Audit Committee, provided tha @hairman reports the details of
exercise of any such delegated authority at thé meeting of the Audit Committee.
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PART IV

Item 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(@) Documents filed as part of this rep

(1) Financial Statements -
See index to Financial Statement$astt on page F-1 of this Form 10-K.

(2) Financial Statement Schedule -
Schedule IV - Mortgage Loans on ResthEe

(3) Exhibits -
See Exhibit Index beginning on pagé &-this Form 10-K.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regyigthas duly caused this report tc
signed on our behalf by the undersigned, hereuntoalithorized.

PMC Commercial Trus
By: /s/Jan F. Salit
Jan F. SalitPresident

Dated March 10, 2014

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed béipwhe following persons in t
capacities and on the dates indicated.

Name Title Date
/s/ JAN F. SALIT Chairman of the Board of Tru March 10, 201«
Jan F. Sali Managers, President, Chi

Executive Officer an
Secretary (Principz
Executive Officer,

[s/ BARRY N. BERLIN Chief Financial Officer an March 10, 201«
Barry N. Berlin Executive Vice Presidel

(Principal Financial an

Principal Accounting Officer

/s NATHAN COHEN Trust Manage March 10, 201«
Nathan Cohel

/s DR. MARTHA ROSEMORE MORROV Trust Manage March 10, 201«
Dr. Martha Rosemore Morro

[s/ BARRY A. IMBER Trust Manage March 10, 201«
Barry A. Imber
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Report of Independent Registered Public AccountiRigm

To the Shareholders and Board of Trust Managers of
PMC Commercial Trust:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated badasheets and the related consolidated statemfeintsome, comprehensive income, eqt
and cash flows present fairly, in all material s, the financial position of PMC Commercial Tr(the “Company”and its subsidiaries
December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the results of thmérations and their cash flows for each of thee¢ years in the period en
December 31, 2013 in conformity with accountingipiples generally accepted in the United StateSnoérica. In addition, in our opinion, t
financial statement schedule listed in the indepeaping under Item 15(a)(2) presents fairly, innadlterial respects, the information set f
therein when read in conjunction with the relatedsolidated financial statements. Also in our aminithe Company maintained, in all mate
respects, effective internal control over finandi@porting as of December 31, 2013, based on ieitestablished innternal Control -
Integrated Framework (199: issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatimithe Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company
management is responsible for these financial rtés and financial statement schedule, for maiimgi effective internal control ov
financial reporting and for its assessment of tiieciveness of internal control over financial ogjing, included in “Managemermt’Report o
Internal Control over Financial Reportingppearing under Item 9A. Our responsibility is xpress opinions on these financial statement
the financial statement schedule, and on the Cogpanternal control over financial reporting basedawr integrated audits. We conduc
our audits in accordance with the standards oPititdic Company Accounting Oversight Board (Unitedt&s). Those standards require the
plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonalderasce about whether the financial statementfreeeof material misstatement and whe
effective internal control over financial reportingas maintained in all material respects. Our audit the financial statements inclu
examining, on a test basis, evidence supportingtheunts and disclosures in the financial statesyassessing the accounting principles
and significant estimates made by management, ealdating the overall financial statement preséotatOur audit of internal control o\
financial reporting included obtaining an undersdiag of internal control over financial reportingssessing the risk that a material weak
exists, and testing and evaluating the design pedabting effectiveness of internal control basedhenassessed risk. Our audits also incl
performing such other procedures as we considezeessary in the circumstances. We believe thahadits provide a reasonable basis fol
opinions.

A companys internal control over financial reporting is @ess designed to provide reasonable assuranaeliregthe reliability of financie
reporting and the preparation of financial statetmdor external purposes in accordance with gelyemicepted accounting principles
companys internal control over financial reporting inclgddnose policies and procedures that (i) pertaithéomaintenance of records tha
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleet ttansactions and dispositions of the assetseotdmpany; (ii) provide reasonable assur
that transactions are recorded as necessary toitpgraparation of financial statements in accor@amdgth generally accepted accoun
principles, and that receipts and expenditureshef dompany are being made only in accordance withoasizations of management :
directors of the company; and (iii) provide readsleaassurance regarding prevention or timely deteaf unauthorized acquisition, use
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzaneterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢taisstatements. Also, projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods atgexct to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, o
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Dallas, Texas
March 10, 2014
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PMC COMMERCIAL TRUST AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except share data)

December 31,

2013 2012
ASSETS
Loans receivable, ne
Commercial mortgage loans receiva $ 116,175 $ 125,515
SBIC commercial mortgage loans receive 52,515 47,153
SBA 7(a) loans receivable, subject to secured bongs 37,839 38,349
SBA 7(a) loans receivab 30,060 27,974
Loans receivable, ni 236,589 238,991
Cash and cash equivalel 7,981 1,230
Other asset 8,840 7,486
Total assets $ 253,410 § 247,707
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities:
Debt:
Secured borrowing- government guaranteed loe $ 40,427 $ 41,008
SBIC debentures payalk 27,500 17,190
Junior subordinated not 27,070 27,070
Revolving credit facility 14,400 11,900
Debt 109,397 97,168
Borrower advance 3,578 5,942
Accounts payable and accrued expet 3,036 4,078
Dividends payabli 1,347 1,293
Total liabilities 117,358 108,481
Commitments and contingenc
Beneficiaries equity:
Common shares of beneficial interest; authorize#}d@,000 shares of $0.01 par value; 11,132,549 ¢
11,125,883 shares issued at December 31, 201304 22spectively; 10,596,220 and 10,589,554
shares outstanding at December 31, 2013 and 2€84j2ectively 111 111
Additional paic-in capital 153,121 153,072
Net unrealized appreciation of retained interastsansferred asse 287 278
Cumulative net incom 175,984 173,917
Cumulative dividend (189,450) (184,151)
Beneficiaries’ equity before treasury stock 140,053 143,227
Less: Treasury stock; at cost, 536,329 shares @rbiger 31, 2013 and 20 (4,901) (4,901)
Total beneficiaries’ equity 135,152 138,326
Noncontrolling interest- cumulative preferred stock of subsidic 900 900
Total equity 136,052 139,226
Total liabilities and equity $ 253,410 § 247,707

The accompanying notes are an integral part of teesonsolidated financial statements.
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PMC COMMERCIAL TRUST AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME (LOSS)
(In thousands, except per share data)

Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Revenues:
Interest incom $ 14,045 $ 13896 ¢ 13,571
Premium incom 2,468 1,889 1,450
Other income 1,392 1,280 1,055
Total revenue: 17,905 17,065 16,076
Expenses:
Salaries and related bene 4,300 4,273 4,329
Interest 3,350 3,538 3,693
Transaction cost 2,789 - -
General and administrati\ 2,603 2,127 2,010
Provision for loan losses, n 1,237 1,934 460
Strategic alternative - 3,870 778
Severance and related bene - 2,114 -
Total expense 14,279 17,856 11,270
Income (loss) before income tax provision and disotinued operations, net of tax 3,626 (791) 4,806
Income tax provisiol (1,212) (565) (114)
Income (loss) from continuing operations 2,414 (1,356) 4,692
Discontinued operations, net of ta; (347) (823) (1,045)
Net income (loss $ 2,067 $ (2,179) $ 3,647
Weighted average shares outstandir
Basic 10,595 10,585 10,570
Diluted 10,597 10,585 10,584
Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per shal
Income (loss) from continuing operatic $ 023 $ (0.13) % 0.44
Discontinued operations, net of t (0.03) (0.08) (0.10)
Net income (loss $ 020 $ (0.21) % 0.34

The accompanying notes are an integral part of teesonsolidated financial statements.

F-4



Table of Contents
PMC COMMERCIAL TRUST AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LO SS)
(In thousands)

Years Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
Net income (loss $ 2,067 $ (2,179) % 3,647
Change in unrealized appreciation of retained @#tsrin transferred asse
Net unrealized appreciation (depreciation) ariglngng perioc 109 (5) 223
Realized gains included in net income (Ic (100) (111) (105)
Change in net unrealized appreciation of retaingetésts in transferred ass 9 (116) 118
Comprehensive income (loss $ 2,076 % (2,295) ¢ 3,765

The accompanying notes are an integral part of teesonsolidated financial statements.
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Balances, January 1, 201

Net unrealized appreciatic
Shar-based compensation expel
Dividends ($0.64 per shar

Net income

Balances, December 31, 20!

Net unrealized depreciatic
Shar-based compensation expel
Dividends ($0.60 per shar

Net loss

Balances, December 31, 20!

Net unrealized appreciatic
Shar-based compensation expel
Dividends ($0.50 per shar

Net income

Balances, December 31, 20:

PMC COMMERCIAL TRUST AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013, 2012 AND 201

(In thousands, except share and per share data)

Net
Unrealized
Appreciation
Common Cumulative
Shares of Additional  of Retained
Beneficial Interests in ~ Cumulative Cumulative Treasury  Preferred
Interest Par Paid-in Transferred Net Stock of Total
Outstanding Value Capital Assets Income Dividends Stock Subsidiary Equity
10,559,554 $ 111 $152,756  $ 276 $ 172,449  $(171,031) $(4,901) $ 900 ¢ 150,560
- - - 118 - - - - 118
15,000 - 178 - - - - - 178
- - - - - (6,767) - - (6,767)
- - - - 3,647 - - - 3,647
10,574,554 111 152,934 394 176,096 (177,798) (4,901) 900 147,736
- - - (116) - - - - (116)
15,000 - 138 - - - - - 138
- - - - - (6,353) - - (6,353)
- - - - (2,179) - - - (2,179)
10,589,554 111 153,072 278 173,917 (184,151) (4,901) 900 139,226
- - - 9 - - - - 9
6,666 - 49 - - - - - 49
_ - - - - (5,299) - - (5,299)
- - - - 2,067 - - - 2,067
10,596,220 $ 111 $153,121 $ 287 $ 175,984 $(189,450) $(4,901) $ 900 $ 136,052

The accompanying notes are an integral part of teesonsolidated financial statements.
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PMC COMMERCIAL TRUST AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)

Years Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income (loss $ 2,067 & (2,179) % 3,647
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to @eshcprovided by (used in) operating activit
Impairment losse 135 341 887
Net losses (gains) on sales of real es 16 19 (532)
Deferred income taxe 155 (218) (369)
Provision for loan losses, n 1,237 1,934 460
Allowance for accounts receivak 29 170 -
Unrealized premium adjustme 1,071 1,431 1,441
Amortization and accretion, n (360) (153) (135)
Share-based compensatic 49 138 178
Capitalized loan origination cos (264) (348 (260)
Loans funded, held for sa (24,722) (26,125) (26,350)
Proceeds from sale of guaranteed Ic 23,687 18,473 15,774
Principal collected on loar 2,049 740 1,812
Loan fees remitted, ni (62) (73) (81)
Change in operating assets and liabilit
Borrower advance (2,364) 2,079 401
Accounts payable and accrued expel (1,012) 1,982 (639)
Other asset (284) 14 (296)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 1,427 (1,775) (4,062)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Loans fundec (31,409) (28,036) (12,002)
Principal collected on loans receiva 26,512 27,822 19,661
Principal collected on retained interests in trarmsfd assel 88 107 132
Purchase of furniture, fixtures, and equipmr (10) (33) (31)
Proceeds from sales of real estate owned 1,736 716 415
Proceeds from unconsolidated subsid - - 1,373
Release of restricted cash and cash equivalerit - 2,233 3,553
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (3,083) 2,809 13,101
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from (repayment of) revolving credit faginet 2,500 (5,900) 4,000
Proceeds from issuance of SBIC debent 14,500 4,000 5,000
Payment of principal on SBIC debentures and stradtnotes payab (4,190) (5,265 (16,893)
Proceeds from secured borrowir- government guaranteed loe 3,293 8,498 11,639
Payment of principal on secured borrowil- government guaranteed loz (2,049) (740) (1,812)
Payment of borrowing cos (402) (247) (326)
Payment of dividend (5,245) (6,752) (6,787)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activitie 8,407 (6,306) (5,179)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivake 6,751 (5,272) 3,860
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 1,230 6,502 2,642
Cash and cash equivalents, end of ye: $ 7,981 & 1,230 $ 6,502

The accompanying notes are an integral part of teesonsolidated financial statements.
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PMC COMMERCIAL TRUST AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

Business

PMC Commercial Trust (“PMC Commercial” or togethath its wholly-owned subsidiaries, “we,” “us” oplr”) was organized in 1993 a
Texas real estate investment trust (“REIT”). Oumamon shares of beneficial interest (*Common Sharas2 traded on the NYSE Mk
(symbol “PCC”).We primarily obtain income from the yield and othelated fee income earned on our investments oniending activitie:
These investments have principally been in the itedgp industry.

Principles of Consolidatior

The accompanying consolidated financial statemles®e been prepared by management in accordanc&v@ttgenerally accepted accoun
principles (“GAAP”). We consolidate entities thatewcontrol as well as variable interest entities |EY’) for which we are the prima
beneficiary. A VIE is an entity for which contrd achieved through means other than voting rigktisentity should consolidate a VIE if
entity will absorb a majority of the VIE's expectkabses, receive a majority of the V#Eexpected residual returns, or both. To the extendc
not have a majority voting interest, we use theitgguethod to account for investments for which nae/e the ability to exercise signific.
influence over operating and financial policiesn€alidated net income includes our share of theeagtings of any VIE for which we are
the primary beneficiary. All material intercompaglances and transactions have been eliminated.

During 2005, PMC Commercial issued notes payable ‘lunior Subordinated Notegij $27,070,000 due March 30, 2035 to a special gas
subsidiary deemed to be a VIE and recorded oursinvent in the VIE of $820,000. As a result, ourasyre related to the Junior Subordin
Notes is $26,250,000. The Junior Subordinated Natetuded in our consolidated balance sheetssabordinated to PMC Commerc's
existing debt. Since PMC Commercial is not consdeto be the primary beneficiary, the VIE is nohsalidated in PMC Commercial’
financial statements and the equity method is ts@tcount for our investment in the VIE.

Loans Receivable, ne

We primarily originate loans to small businessebateralized by first liens on the real estate loé related business. Loans receivable
carried at their unamortized principal balance lessloan origination fees, discounts and loan leserves. For loans originated under
Small Business Administration’s (“SBA”) 7(a) Guateed Loan Program (“SBA 7(a) Progranif)on sale of the SBA guaranteed portion o
loans which are accounted for as sales, the ungiesme portion of the loan retained by us is valord fair value basis and a discount
“Retained Loan Discount”) is recorded as a reduciiobasis of the retained portion of the loan.

We have a quarterly review process to identify emdluate potential exposure to loan losses. Ldaisrequire specific identification revi
are identified based on one or more negative cheriatics including, but not limited to, nggayment or lack of timely payment of princi
and/or interest, nopayment or lack of timely payment of property tak@san extended period of time, deteriorationhs physical proper
(our collateral), insurance defaults and/or frasetdefaults. The specific identification evaluati@yins with an evaluation of the estimated
value of the loan. In determining estimated failuea management utilizes the present value of xpeeed future cash flows discounted a
loan’s effective interest rate and/or an estimation rdeaulying collateral values using appraisals, brgkgce opinions, tax assessed va
and/or revenue analysis. Management uses appraisdtols in conjunction with other determinantscofiateral value to estimate collate
values, not as the sole determinant of value. Thpgrty valuation takes into consideration curtiefrmation on property values in gene
and value changes in commercial real estate amd/gpitality properties. The probability of liquidat is then determined. These probahb
determinations include macroeconomic factors, tlvation of the property and economic environmengngtthe property is located, indut
specific factors relating primarily to the hospitalindustry, our historical experience with similaorrowers and/or individual borrower
collateral characteristics, and in certain circlanses, the strength of the guarantors. The ligidairobability is then applied to the identif
loss exposure to determine the general or spaeiierve for that loan and the ultimate determimadi® to whether it is considered impaired.

The general loan loss reserve is established whaitable information indicates that it is probalbléoss has occurred in the portfolio and
amount of the loss can be reasonably estimatedifi8ant judgment is required in determining thengeml loan loss reserve, includ
estimates of the likelihood of default and theraatied fair value of the collateral. The generahlt@ss reserve includes those loans which
have negative characteristics which have not yebine known to us. In addition to the reserves éstedal on loans not considered impa
that have
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PMC COMMERCIAL TRUST AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

been evaluated under a specific evaluation, thergéfoan loss reserve uses a consistent methogdotogetermine a loss percentage ti
applied to outstanding loan balances. These losspiges are based on many factors, primarily tative and recent loss history, gen
economic conditions and more specifically curreands in the limited service hospitality industry.

Real Estate Owned'REQ”")

REO consists of properties acquired by forecloguygartial or total satisfaction of ngrerforming loans. REO acquired in satisfaction tfar
is recorded at estimated fair value less estimetsts to sell the property at the date of foreals@iny excess of the carrying value of the
over the estimated fair value of the property lessmated costs to sell is chargeffl-to the loan loss reserve when title to the prop is
obtained. Any excess of the estimated fair valuthefproperty less estimated costs to sell anddhsying value of the loan is recorded as
on foreclosure within discontinued operations wkitta to the property is obtained. Subsequent tedlmsure, REO is valued at the lowe
cost or market. We have a quarterly review protesdentify and evaluate potential exposure to impant losses on our REO. This evalua
uses management’s judgment of the estimated faievaf our REO. Adjustments to the carrying value generally based on management
assessment of the appraised value of the propmwgrating statistics to the extent available andiscussions with potential purchasers
third-party brokers and are recorded as impairment lassdiscontinued operations on our consolidatetesiants of income (loss). REC
included in other assets on our consolidated belaheets.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

We generally consider all highly liquid investmemsrchased with an original maturity of three maentir less to be cash equivale
Generally, we maintain cash and cash equivalentcaounts in excess of federally insured limitshwat financial institution. We regula
monitor the financial institution and do not beke& significant credit risk is associated with degosits in excess of federally insured amount:

Deferred Borrowing Cost:
Costs incurred in connection with the issuanceetftire capitalized and are being amortized toresgoever the life of the related obliga
using the effective interest method. Deferred baimg costs are included in other assets on ouratimiaged balance sheets.

Borrower Advance:

In general, as part of the monitoring process tifywéhat the borrowerstash equity is utilized for its intended purpose, neceive depos
from our borrowers and release funds upon presentaf appropriate documentation. Funds held oralfedf borrowers are included a
liability on the consolidated balance sheets.

Revenue Recognition Policie

Interest Income

Interest income includes interest earned on loadsoar shorterm investments and the amortization of net lodgiration fees and discour
Interest income on loans is accrued as earnedthatlaccrual of interest suspended when the relasdbecomes a naaccrual loan. A loe
receivable is generally classified as non-accragNpon-Accrual Loan”)if (1) it is past due as to payment of principalmerest for a period
60 days or more, (2) any portion of the loan issiffed as doubtful or is chargedf or (3) if the repayment in full of the principand/o
interest is in doubt. Generally, loans are chamgfédvhen management determines that we will be lenbcollect any remaining amounts
under the loan agreement, either through liquidatibcollateral or other means. Interest incomea donAccrual Loan is recognized on eit
the cash basis or the cost recovery basis.

Origination fees and direct loan origination costst, are deferred and recognized as an adjustafeyield over the life of the related lo
receivable using the effective interest methode&lirorigination costs include broker fees paidarif/, and capitalization of allocated pay
costs in originating the loan.

For loans recorded with a Retained Loan Discourgsé discounts are recognized as an adjustmengldf gver the life of the related lo
receivable using the effective interest method.
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PMC COMMERCIAL TRUST AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Premium Income

We sell the government guaranteed portion of oul SB) Program loans to investors (“Secondary Matl@an Sales”)These governme
guaranteed portions may be sold for (1) a cash iprarand the minimum 1% SBA required servicing sgr€d) future servicing spread gre:
than 1% and no cash premium or (3) future servisimgead greater than 1% and a 10% cash premiumgd¥ernment guaranteed portior
loans sold for a cash premium and the minimum 198 $&juired servicing spread are recorded as gakswe record premium incom
Premium income represents the difference betweenfain value attributable to the sale of the gowsent guaranteed portion of a I
originated under the SBA 7(a) Program for a cagimum and the SBA required 1% servicing spreadthagrincipal balance (cost) alloca
to the loan.

Other Income

Other income consists primarily of servicing incomeepayment fees, income from retained interestsansferred assets and other loan re
income. Servicing income represents the fees weivedor servicing the sold portion of our SBA 7@)ogram loans and is recognizes
revenue when the services are performed. Prepayieestare recognized as revenue when loans araigrapd the fee is received. Incc
from retained interests in transferred assets sepis the accretion (recognized using the effeétiterest method) on our retained inter
which is determined based on estimates of futush dlows. Other loan related fees, including latesf are recognized as revenue \
chargeable, assuming collectibility is reasonalslsuaed.

Advertising Cost:
We expense advertising costs as incurred. Advegtisxpense, included in general and administragigenses on our consolidated inci
statements, was $145,000, $136,000 and $85,000¢d26i13, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Income Taxes

We have elected to be taxed as a REIT under thésmwas of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, asraied (the “Code”)To the extent w
qualify for taxation as a REIT, we generally withtrbe subject to a Federal corporate income taausriaxable income that is distributed to
shareholders. We may, however, be subject to ceRatleral excise taxes and state and local taxesuoiincome and property. If PN
Commercial fails to qualify as a REIT in any tax@alkar, it will be subject to Federal income taaesegular corporate rates (including
applicable alternative minimum tax) and will notdde to qualify as a REIT for four subsequent dgears. In order to remain qualified
REIT under the Code, we must satisfy various regoénts in each taxable year, including, among sthienitations on share ownership, a
diversification, sources of income, and the disttitin of at least 90% of our taxable income wittlie specified time in accordance with
Code.

PMC Commercial has wholly-owned taxable REIT suidsids (“TRS’s”) which are subject to Federal income taxes. Thenirecgenerate
from the taxable REIT subsidiaries is taxed at redroorporate rates. Deferred tax assets and liailare recognized for the future
consequences attributable to differences betweefiirthncial statement carrying amounts of existisgets and liabilities and their respec
tax bases.

We have established a policy on classificationafgities and interest related to audits of our Fdd state income tax returns. If incur
our policy for recording interest and penaltiesoagsed with audits will be to record such itemsaamponent of income (loss) before inc
tax provision and discontinued operations. Persliifeincurred, will be recorded in general and adstrative expense and interest pai
received will be recorded in interest expense tarést income, respectively, in the consolidatatestents of income (loss).

Secondary Market Loan Sale

For loans originated under the SBA 7(a) Programnugale of the SBA guaranteed portion of the loahglwvare accounted for as sales,
future servicing fees to be earned and the Retalrmath Discount are initially valued on a fair valbasis. A servicing asset is recort
included in other assets in our consolidated ba&aheets, representing the valuation of the futereicing fees. The initial fair value of «
servicing asset and Retained Loan Discount is ohéted based on estimates of the present valuetwfeficash flows. This determination L
assumptions including the weighted average lifehefunderlying loan and a current discount rate discount rates used ranged from 11
to 12.4% during 2013 and from 11.6% to 12.1% du8d2. The weighted average life of the loan isdgity assumed to be five years.
credit losses are assumed since the SBA has geadhtite principal on these loans.

We are required to permanently treat certain ofpgtaceeds received from legally sold portions @hle (those loans sold solely for ext
spread and those sold for a cash premium and espesad) as secured borrowings (a liability oneansolidated balance sheet) for the lif
the loan. To the extent secured borrowings inckalkh premiums, these premiums are amortized aduatien to interest expense over the
of the loan using the effective interest method amy remaining balance is fully amortized whenltan is repaid in full.
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For cash flow presentation purposes, proceeds frasales of the government guaranteed portiormioSBA 7(a) Program loans for ci
premiums and the minimum 1% SBA required servigpgead are treated as operating activities. Pracketh the sales of the governmr
guaranteed portions of our SBA 7(a) Program loamsfdture servicing spreads greater than 1% andash premium or future servici
spreads greater than 1% and a 10% cash premiutreated as financing activities.

Earnings (Loss) per Share'EPS”)
EPS is computed by dividing net income (loss) e/ weightedaverage number of shares outstanding. Diluted BEI8des the dilutive effe
if any, of share-based compensation awards.

Distributions to Shareholder:
Distributions to shareholders are recorded on xheiddend date.

Share-Based Compensation Plans
We have options outstanding and issue restrictadeshunder shatgased compensation plans described more fully ite N6. We use fe
value recognition provisions to account for all asgagranted, modified or settled.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confoyniith GAAP requires us to make estimates and rapsions that affect the repor
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosumatingent assets and liabilities at the datdeffinancial statements and the reported am
of revenues and expenses during the reporting gheAatual results could differ from our estimat€ur most sensitive estimates invc
determination of loan loss reserves and valuatfaruoreal estate owned.

Note 2. Reclassifications:

Certain prior period amounts have been reclasstfiedonform with the current period presentatiohede reclassifications had no effec
previously reported net income (loss) or cash flows

Note 3. Merger:

On July 8, 2013, PMC Commercial entered into a meagreement with CIM Urban REIT, LLC (“CIM REIT'and subsidiaries of t
respective parties. CIM REIT is a private commdr&8l&IT. The merger and other transactions were umasly approved by both PN
Commercial’'s Board of Trust Managers and CIM REIDisector.

On February 11, 2014, PMC Commercial shareholdppoaed certain transactions contemplated by thegeneagreement. The merge
anticipated to be completed no later than March2B14 based upon the satisfaction or waiver otafiditions to the merger. Subsequer
completion of the merger, our Common Shares wilireded on the NASDAQ Global Market (symbol “PMCT")

Pursuant to the merger agreement, an affiliatelbf REIT will receive approximately 22.0 million néyvissued PMC Commercial Commr
Shares and approximately 65.0 million newdgued PMC Commercial preferred shares of bentficiarest. Each preferred share will
convertible into seven Common Shares, resultintpénissuance of an aggregate of approximately 4nildn Common Shares in the mer
and other transactions after the conversion reptiegpapproximately 97.8% of PMC Commercial’s oatgting shares.

All Common Shares that were outstanding immediagelpr to the transactions will remain outstandiajowing the merger and relat
transactions. In addition, PMC Commercial sharetisldf record at the close of the business day poithe closing of the transactions
receive a special cash dividend of $5.50 per Com8tmare plus that prta portion of our regular quarterly cash dividedrued through fl
closing date of the merger payable ten business féipwing the completion of the merger.
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Note 4. Loans Receivable, net:
Loans receivable, net, consisted of the following:

December 31

2013 2012
(In thousands

Commercial mortgage loal $ 119,030 $ 128,401
SBIC commercial mortgage loa 52,848 47,621
SBA 7(a) loans, subject to secured borrowi 37,403 37,909
SBA 7(a) loan: 30,325 28,196

Total loans receivabl 239,606 242,127
Add/(deduct):

Deferred capitalized costs, r 267 277

Loan loss reserve (3,284) (3,413)
Loans receivable, ni $ 236,589 $ 238,991

Commercial mortgage loans
Represents the loans held by the parent compang, €@dmmercial Trust.

SBIC commercial mortgage loans
Represents loans of our Small Business Investmemip@ny (“SBIC”) subsidiaries.

SBA 7(a) loans, subject to secured borrowings

Represents the government guaranteed portion ofsleghich were sold with the proceeds received fitwn sale reflected as sect
borrowings —government guaranteed loans (a liability on oursetidated balance sheet). There is no credit rsso@iated with these loz
since the SBA has guaranteed payment of the pahdiperefore, no loan loss reserves are recordeth® $37.4 million and $37.9 millic
respectively, of government guaranteed portiorth@$e SBA 7(a) loans included in loans receivab@ezember 31, 2013 and 2012.

SBA 7(a) loans

Represents the nagwvernment guaranteed retained portion of loangiraied under the SBA 7(a) Program and the govemhimearantee
portion of loans that have not yet been fully futhde sold. The balance is net of Retained Loansdists of $2.7 million and $2.1 million
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Concentration Risks

We have certain concentrations of investments. taabally all of our revenue is generated from lo@ollateralized by hospitality properti
At December 31, 2013, our loans were 95% concettriat the hospitality industry. Any economic fasttihat negatively impact the hospita
industry,including recessions, depressed commercial reafleestarkets, travel restrictions, bankruptciestbeiopolitical or geopolitical even
could have a material adverse effect on our fir@re@indition and results of operations.

At December 31, 2013 and 2012, 13% and 15%, resp8ctof our loans were collateralized by propestin Texas. No other state he
concentration of 10% or greater of our loans reslglier at December 31, 2013 or 2012. A decline imenoc conditions in any state in wh
we have a concentration of investments could hawetarial adverse effect on our financial conditioa results of operations.

Aging

The following tables represent an aging of our lo&eceivable Subject To Credit Risk (loans recdévddss SBA 7(a) loans, subject
secured borrowings, as the SBA has guaranteed payohgrincipal on these loans). Balances are pigoloan loss reserves and defe
capitalized costs, net.
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December 31, 201

Commercial
Mortgage SBA 7(a)
Category Totals Loans Loans
(Dollars in thousands
Current (1) $ 199,307 98.5% $§ 169,570 98.6% $§ 29,737 98.1%
Between 29 and 59 days delinquent 1,556 0.8% 968 0.6% 588 1.9%
Between 60 and 89 days delinqu - - - - - -
Over 89 days delinquent ( 1,340 0.7% 1,340 0.8% - -
$ 202,203 100.0% $ 171,878 100.0% $ 30,325 100.0%

(1) Includes $5.8 million of commercial mortgage loaassified as troubled debt restructurings whicle aurrent at December 31, 2(
based on revised note terr

(2) Includes a $1.0 million loan classified as a traedbldebt restructuring

(3) Loan is classified as a troubled debt restructuri

December 31, 201

Commercial
Mortgage SBA 7(a)
Category Totals Loans Loans
(Dollars in thousands
Current (1) $ 198,282 97.1% $ 170,429 96.8% ¢ 27,853 98.8%
Between 29 and 59 days delinqu 2,824 1.4% 2,482 1.4% 342 1.2%
Between 60 and 89 days delinqu 1 - - - 1 -
Over 89 days delinquent ( 3,111 1.5% 3,111 1.8% - -

§ 204,218 100.0% $§ 176,022 100.0% § 28,196 100.0%

(1) Includes $7.6 million of commercial mortgage loatessified as troubled debt restructurings whichreveurrent at December 31, 2C
based on revised note terr

(2) Includes $2.3 million of loans classified as traaddebt restructuring:

(3) Loans were classified as troubled debt restrucysi

Loan Loss Reservi

Management closely monitors our loans which regewaluation for loan loss reserves based on speidéntification metrics which a
classified into three categories: Doubtful, Subdsad and Other Assets Especially Mentioned (“OAENt9gether Specific Identificatio
Loans”).Loans classified as Doubtful are generally loangiare not complying with their contractual terrtiee collection of the balance
the principal is considered impaired and on whiah fair value of the collateral is less than theaming unamortized principal balance. Tt
loans are typically placed on nawgcrual status and are generally in the forecloptoeess. Loans classified as Substandard areajlgniiose
loans that are either not complying or had previonst complied with their contractual terms and/iéather credit weaknesses which |
make payment default or principal exposure likaly fot yet certain. Loans classified as OAEM anmaegelly loans for which the credit qua
of the borrowers has temporarily deteriorated. Eglhy the borrowers are current on their paymendsyever, they may be delinquent on t
property taxes, insurance, or franchise fees or loeaynder agreements which provide for interest paiyments during a short period of time.
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Management has classified our Loans Receivableetuibp Credit Risk as follows (balances representimvestment in the loans prior to I¢
loss reserves and deferred capitalized costs, net):

December 31, 201

Commercie
Mortgage SBA 7(a)
Totals % Loans % Loans %

(Dollars in thousands
Satisfactory $ 190,245 94.1% $ 161,424 93.9% ¢ 28,821 95.0%
OAEM 4,144 2.0% 3,862 2.2% 282 0.9%
Substandar 5,484 2.7% 4,284 2.5% 1,200 4.0%
Doubtful 2,330 1.2% 2,308 1.4% 22 0.1%

$ 202,203 100.0% $171,878 100.0% ¢ 30,325 100.0%

December 31, 201

Commercie
Mortgage SBA 7(a)
Totals % Loans % Loans %

(Dollars in thousands
Satisfactory $ 187,749 92.0%  $ 159,994 90.9% ¢ 27,755 98.5%
OAEM 81 - - - 81 0.3%
Substandar 13,043 6.4% 12,917 7.3% 126 0.4%
Doubtful 3,345 1.6% 3,111 1.8% 234 0.8%

$ 204,218 100.0% $ 176,022 100.0% ¢ 28,196 100.0%

Our provision for loan losses (excluding reductiamsl recoveries of loan losses) as a percentagerofveighted average Loans Receiv
Subject To Credit Risk was 0.83% and 1.25% duri@g32and 2012, respectively. Whenever our borrowg&perience significant operati
difficulties and we are forced to liquidate thelatdral underlying the loan, future losses mayuiestantial.

During the fiveyear period ended December 31, 2013, our aggregatesion for loan losses, net, was approximaté&yd3$nillion or 53 bas
points per year based on the fiyear average of our Loans Receivable Subject TdiCRisk. Our total loan loss reserves as a peaggnb
our weighted average Loans Receivable Subject ®diCRisk were 1.62% at December 31, 2013.

The activity in our loan loss reserves was as fazsto

Year Ended December 31, 2C
Commercic

Mortgage SBA 7(a

Total Loans Loans

(In thousands
Balance, beginning of ye. $ 3,413 $ 2,850 $ 563
Provision for loan losse 1,679 1,365 314
Reduction of loan losst¢ (442) (438) (4)
Principal balances writt-off, net (1,366) (1,247) (219)
Balance, end of ye: $ 3,284 $ 2,630 $ 654
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Balance, beginning of ye
Provision for loan losse
Reduction of loan losse
Recoveries

Principal balances writt-off

Balance, end of ye:

Recoveries represent cash proceeds from collectiongersonal loan guarantees to the extent theaedeficiency after foreclosure of the |
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Year Ended December 31, 20

Commercial
Mortgage SBA 7(a)
Total Loans Loans

(In thousands

$ 1,812 $ 1,329 $ 483

2,505 2,219 286

(104) (70) (34)

(467) (467) -
(333) (161) (172)
$ 3,413 $ 2,850 $ 563

property collateral and to the extent cash recedlaabs not exceed realized losses taken on thenyope

Balance, beginning of ye
Provision for loan losse
Reduction of loan losse
Principal balances writt-off

Balance, end of ye

Year Ended December 31, 2C

Commercial
Mortgage SBA 7(a)
Total Loans Loans
(In thousands
$ 1,609 $ 1,303 $ 306
826 429 397
(366) (342) (24)
(257) (61) (196)
$ 1,812 $ 1,329 $ 483
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Impaired Loan Dat:

Information on those loans considered to be impaivas as follows:

At December 31, 201

Commercial
Mortgage SBA 7(a)
Total Loans Loans
(In thousands
Impaired loans requiring reserves $ 3,748 $ 3,725 $ 23
Impaired loans expected to be fully recoverable 4,340 4,340 -
Total impaired loans (2 $ 8,088 $ 8,065 $ 23
Loan loss reserve $ 1,406 $ 1,385 $ 21

At December 31, 201

Commercial
Mortgage SBA 7(a)
Total Loans Loans
(In thousands
Impaired loans requiring reserves $ 10,927 $ 10,049 $ 878
Impaired loans expected to be fully recoverable 2,244 2,123 121
Total impaired loans (Z $ 13,171 $ 12,172 $ 999
Loan loss reserve $ 1,535 $ 1,382 $ 153
At December 31, 201
Commercial
Mortgage SBA 7(a)
Total Loans Loans
(In thousands
Impaired loans requiring reserves $ 7,411 $ 7,027 $ 384
Impaired loans expected to be fully recoverable 846 689 157
Total impaired loans (¢ $ 8,257 $ 7,716 $ 541
Loan loss reserve $ 563 $ 372 $ 191

(1) Balances represent our recorded investment inclytbans classified as troubled debt restructurir

(2) The unpaid principal balance of our impaired comaigr mortgage loans was $8,534,000 at Decembe2813. The unpaid princip
balance of our impaired SBA 7(a) loans (excludimg government guaranteed portion) was $150,000eseihber 31, 201

(3) The unpaid principal balance of our impaired comaigr mortgage loans was $12,704,000 at Decembe2812. The unpaid princip
balance of our impaired SBA 7(a) loans (excludimg government guaranteed portion) was $362,000egeihber 31, 201

(4) The unpaid principal balance of our impaired comaigr mortgage loans was $7,940,000 at Decembe2B1,l. The unpaid princip
balance of our impaired SBA 7(a) loans (excludimg government guaranteed portion) was $593,000ezieihber 31, 201
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Year Ended December 31, 20

Commercial
Mortgage SBA 7(a)
Total Loans Loans
(In thousands
Average impaired loar $ 11,121 $ 10,042 $ 1,079
Interest income on impaired loa $ 388 $ 348 $ 40

Year Ended December 31, 2C

Commercial
Mortgage SBA 7(a)
Total Loans Loans
(In thousands
Average impaired loar $ 9,895 $ 9,116 $ 779
Interest income on impaired loa $ 372 $ 359 § 13

Year Ended December 31, 2C

Commercial
Mortgage SBA 7(a)
Total Loans Loans
(In thousands
Average impaired loar $ 8,176 $ 7,610 $ 566
Interest income on impaired loa $ 290 $ 271 $ 19

Our recorded investment in Na@kecrual Loans at December 31, 2013 of $1,336,008 ecamprised of one commercial mortgage loan.
recorded investment in Nokecrual Loans at December 31, 2012 of $5,768,008 ezanprised of an $855,000 SBA 7(a) Program loal
$4,913,000 of commercial mortgage loans. Includétimthe nonaccrual SBA 7(a) Program loan at December 31, 2042 the governme
guaranteed portion of $634,000 (i.e., the loan aawlated secured borrowing as it was sold as aid)ybn which we had no credit Ic
exposure. We did not have any loans receivablecass®0 days or more which were accruing intereBeaember 31, 2013 or 2012.
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Detailed information on our troubled debt restruictys was as follows at December 31, 2013 and 2012:

December 31, 201
Commercial Mortgage Loar

Unpaid
Recorded Principal
Investmen Balance
(In thousands
Troubled debt restructurings requiring resel $ 3,716 $ 4,148
Troubled debt restructurings without reser 4,334 4,386
Total troubled debt restructurin $ 8,050 $ 8,534
Number of loan: 6
Loan loss reserve $ 1,385

December 31, 201

Commercial Mortgage Loar SBA 7(a) Loar
Unpaid Unpaid
Recorded Principal Recorded Principal
Investmen Balance Investmer Balance
(In thousands
Troubled debt restructurings requiring reserves $ 10,049 $ 10,531 $ 854 $ 846
Troubled debt restructurings without reser 2,123 2,172 - -
Total troubled debt restructurin $ 12,172 $ 12,703 $ 854 $ 846
Number of loan: 8 1
Loan loss reserve $ 1,382 $ 130

(1) The SBA 7(a) loan recorded investment and unparttipal balance included the government guaranteedion of $634,000 on which

had no credit loss exposure. This loan was no loogmplying with its modified terms, including laakrequired payment:

Our troubled debt restructurings include loans wathrecorded investment at December 31, 2013 of #8lHon which were modifie
voluntarily under agreements to allow extendedregeonly periods instead of the principal andriege payments required by the notes
addition, loans with a recorded investment at D31, 2013 of $2.7 million were modified involarity through Chapter 11 bankrup
proceedings. The bankruptcy plans were confirmetth wiodified terms including interest only and armation periods or modification
timing of payments combined with interest rate atipents. Of our troubled debt restructurings, loaith a recorded investment of $
million are no longer complying with their modifigdrms, including lack of required payments at Delger 31, 2013. A payment defaul
defined as a payment that becomes at least 30 mhstsdue after the date the loan was restructundébanonpayment or lack of time

payment of other loan related obligations sucheatestate taxes.
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Note 5. Other Assets:
Other assets consisted of the following:

December 31

2013 2012
(In thousands
Servicing asset, ni $ 1,559 $ 1,261
Deferred borrowing costs, n 1,526 1,218
Deferred tax asset, n 1,471 1,626
Real estate owne 1,446 739
Investment in VIE 820 820
Interest receivabl 718 620
Retained interests in transferred as 694 773
Prepaid expenses and depo 287 330
Other 319 99

$ 8,840 $ 7,486

Note 6. Debt:
Information on our debt was as follows:

Weighted Average
Coupon Rate at
At December 31 December 31
2013 2012 2013 2012
(Dollars in thousands, except footnot

Secured borrowings - government
guaranteed loans
Loans sold for a premium and excess sp

- principal $ 31695 % 32,062 4.03% 4.09%
Loans sold for a premium and excess sp
- deferred premium 3,024 3,099 - -
Loans sold for excess spre 5,708 5,847 1.58% 1.58%
40,427 41,008
Junior subordinated not 27,070 27,070 3.50% 3.61%
Debentures payab 27,500 17,190 3.87% 4.47%
Revolving credit facility (1 14,400 11,900 2.75% 2.30%
Debt $ 109,397 % 97,168

(1) Proceeds on the revolving credit facility were $0m,000, $48,300,000 and $41,800,000 during thesyeaded December 31, 2013, 2
and 2011, respectively. Repayments on the revobriegjt facility were $67,700,000, $54,200,000 &3d,800,000 during the years en
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respecti

Secured borrowings — government guaranteed loans

Secured borrowings government guaranteed loans represents sold SBA7ggram loans which are treated as secured buorgsvif the loan
were sold solely for excess spread or if the loaase sold for excess spread and a cash premiurd%f To the extent secured borrowi
include cash premiums, these premiums are incliedcured borrowings and amortized as a reduttionterest expense over the life of
loan using the effective interest method and faliyortized when the loan is repaid in full.
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Junior subordinated note
The Junior Subordinated Notes bear interest abatifig rate which resets on a quarterly basis @t9thday LIBOR plus 3.25%. The Jun
Subordinated Notes may be redeemed at par at sionomterest payments are due on a quarterlysbasi

Debentures payabl

Debentures represent amounts due to the SBA areldeamiannual interest only payments until maturity. OB1G subsidiaries issued a tc
of $6.0 million of debentures in March 2013 at aterest rate of 2.35% plus an annual fee of 0.5&660a total of $8.5 million of debenture:
August 2013 at an interest rate of 3.64% plus aruahfee of 0.76%. We repaid $4.2 million of delees which matured on Septembe
2013. The debentures originally matured in 10 yaadsrequired send@nnual interest only payments until maturity. Oebentures were repi
during February 2014 using cash on hand and owfvieng credit facility.

Revolving credit facility and new term ne

PMC Commercial has a revolving credit facility withedit availability up to $40 million which matwen June 30, 2015. We are cha
interest on the balance outstanding under the vangkredit facility at our election of either tipeime rate of the lender less 50 basis poin
the 30day LIBOR plus 2%. In addition, we are charged ansed fee equal to 37.5 basis points computed asedr daily available balan
The credit facility requires us to meet certain@mants. We have a minimum net worth covenant (818@lion) within our credit facility the
may limit our ability to pay dividends. At Decemi&k, 2013, we were in compliance with the covenahthis facility.

In March 2014, we executed a new term note in ttirecipal amount of $30 million which matures six mlos from its effective date at
interest rate of LIBOR plus 2.50%. In addition, amoother things, our revolving credit facility wasodified to (1) decrease the cre
availability to $25.0 million until the term note irepaid, (2) eliminate the net worth covenant,p@mit CIM Urban Partners, L.P.,
operating subsidiary of CIM REIT, to continue tceogte in a manner consistent with its existing afiens, and (4) add a covenant requirin
asset coverage test (eligible loans receivablebdtances outstanding under the revolving creditifia of 3.00 times.

Principal payments on, and estimated amortizatfpouwr debt at December 31, 2013 was as follows:

Secured Borrowing

Years Ending Deferred All Other
December 31 Total Principal (1) Premiums (2 Debt (3)
(In thousands

2014 $ 1295 ¢ 1,139 $ 156 ¢ =
2015 19,735 1,179 156 18,400
2016 1,375 1,219 156 -
2017 1,419 1,263 156 -
2018 1,464 1,308 156 -
Thereaftel 84,109 31,295 2,244 50,570
$ 109,397 $ 37,403 § 3,024 & 68,970

(1) Principal payments are generally dependepbru cash flows received from the underlying loaDsr estimate of the
repayment is based on scheduled principal paymamtthe underlying loans. Our estimate will diffesrh actual amounts
the extent we experience prepayments and/or lggdiations or chargeffs. No payment is due unless payments are rel
from the borrowers on the underlying loans.

(2) Represents cash premiums collected on lsaits for excess spread and a cash premium of 10%hwadre amortized as
reduction to interest expense over the life oflttam. Our estimate of their amortization will difffom actual amounts to t
extent we experience prepayments and/or loan lajigds or charge-offs.

(3) Includes the revolving credit facility, jumisubordinated notes and debentures payable. Repts maturity dates of this ot
debt; however, the $27.5 million of debentures wepaid early (without penalty) using cash on hamdl our revolving crec
facility.

During 2013, 2012 and 2011 interest paid was $308) $3,495,000, and $3,733,000, respectively.
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Note 7. Cumulative Preferred Stock of Subsidiary:

One of our SBICs has outstanding 30,000 shared@® $ar value, 3% cumulative preferred stock (B8 ‘Preferred Stockeld by the SB/
Our SBIC is entitled to redeem, in whole or parg 8% Preferred Stock by paying the par value (88ldon) of these securities plus dividel
accumulated and unpaid on the date of redemptiba.3P%6 Preferred Stock was valued at $900,000 wheauid in 2004. During Februs
2014, this 3% Preferred Stock was redeemed atgdae wsing cash on hand and we recognized a |d&2. bimillion.

Dividends of $90,000 were recorded on the 3% PredeBtock during 2013, 2012 and 2011 and are tefleio our consolidated statement
income as interest expense.

Note 8. EPS:

The computations of basic EPS are based on ourhtegigaverage shares outstanding. The weighted geveramber of Common Sha
outstanding was 10,595,000, 10,585,000 and 10,80 the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012ahd, respectively. For purpose:
calculating diluted earnings per share, the wemjtateerage shares outstanding were increased b 200 14,000 shares during 2013
2011, respectively, for the dilutive effect of shamptions. No shares were added to the weighterhg@eshares outstanding for purpose
calculating diluted earnings per share during 284 ?ptions were anti-dilutive.

Not included in the computation of diluted earnipgs share were outstanding options to purchag#®68112,500 and 81,000 Common Sh
during 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively, becéeseptions’ exercise prices were greater thantkeage market price of the shares.

Note 9. Dividends Paid and Declared:

During 2013, our dividends were declared as foltows

Amount
Record Datce Date Paic Per Share
March 28, 201! April 8, 2013 $ 0.125
June 28, 201 July 8, 201z 0.125
September 30, 201 October 7, 201 0.125
December 31, 201 January 6, 201 0.125
$ 0.500

During 2013, due primarily to payment of severaekpenses and realized losses on our foreclosupegi®s, we had a taxable loss. Thus
dividends were deemed returns of capital.

We have a covenant within our revolving credit licithat requires us to maintain a minimum net thiasf $132 million which may limit ot
ability to pay out returns of capital as dividendsis restriction has not historically limited ttemount of dividends we have paid
management does not believe that it will restiittife dividend payments.
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Note 10. Other Income:

Other income consisted of the following:

Years Ended December ¢

2013 2012 2011
(In thousands
Servicing income § 547 $ 499 § 399
Prepayment fee 418 279 118
Loan related incom 165 221 196
Income from retained interests in transferred a 162 189 215
Other 100 92 127

§ 1,392 § 1,280 § 1,055

Note 11. Severance and Related Benefits:

During 2012, we entered into a mutual separatioreagent with our former Chief Executive Officer. Wexorded severance and rel;
benefits expense of $2,114,000 during 2012 in cctiore with this separation agreement. The severamcerelated benefits were fully p
during 2013.

Note 12. Income Taxes:

PMC Commercial has elected to be taxed as a REHeruthe Code. To qualify as a REIT, PMC Commerai@ist meet a number
organizational and operational requirements, iriolyich requirement that we distribute at least 960%uw taxable income to our sharehold
As a REIT, PMC Commercial generally will not be jdb to corporate level Federal income tax on nebiine that is currently distributed
shareholders.
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The following reconciles net income (loss) to REdXable income (loss):

Years Ended December <

2013 2012 2011
(In thousands
Net income (loss ¢ 2,067 ¢ (2,179 $ 3,647
Book/tax differences

Gains related to real est: (1,537) - (235)
Strategic alternative - (678) 678
Impairment losse 116 300 804

Transaction cosi 2,789 - -
Severance accrual (paymer (1,806) 1,777 (100)
Amortization and accretio (100) (188) (68)
Loan valuatior (59) 1,403 184
Other, ne 99 157 8
Subtotal 1,569 592 4,918
Adjustment for TRS net income, net of 1 (2,101) (840) (131)
Dividend distribution from TR¢ - - 1,000
REIT taxable income (los: ¢ (5632) ¢ (248) $ 5,787
Distributions declare § 5,299 $§ 6,353 $ 6,767
Basic weighted average common shares outstal 10,595 10,585 10,570

Dividends per share for dividend reporting purposeee as follows:

Years Ended December ¢

2013 2012 2011
Amount Amount Amount
Per Shart Percen Per Shart Percen Per Shart Percen
Nor-qualified dividends ¢ - - ¢ = - § 0477 74.53%
Quialified dividends - - - - 0.095 14.78%
Non-taxable return of capiti 0.500 100.00% 0.600 100.00% 0.068 10.69%

§ 0.500 100.00% ¢ 0.600 100.00% ¢ 0.640 100.00%

During 2012 and 2013, due primarily to deductibtpenses related to exploration of strategic altéres and payment of severance costs
had taxable losses. Thus, all dividends were ded¢mbd non-taxable returns of capital.

In general, in order to meet our taxable incomdriBigtion requirements, we may make an electioneartle Code to treat a portion of
distributions declared and paid in the current yesadistributions of the prior year's taxable in@om

PMC Commercial has wholly-owned TRS’s which arejscito Federal income taxes. The income genefebat the TRSS is taxed at norm
corporate rates.

We calculate our current and deferred tax provisibased on estimates and assumptions that codid ffibm the actual results reflectec
income tax returns filed during the subsequent.y&djustments based on the final tax returns aregsly recorded in the period when
returns are filed.
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Income tax provision related to the TRS’s consistethe following:

Years Ended December :
2013 2012 2011
(In thousands

Federal.
Current provisior $ 1,041 % 821 $ 483
Deferred provision (benefi 171 (256) (369)
Income tax provisiol $ 1,212 $ 565 $ 114

In addition, income tax benefit of $31,000 and $0086 for 2013 and 2012, respectively, is includedliscontinued operations basec
operating losses of the REO of our TRS’s.

The provision for income taxes results in effectize rates that differ from Federal statutory rate84%. The reconciliation of TRS income
attributable to income (loss) from continuing opienras computed at Federal statutory rates to incame@rovision was as follows:

Years Ended December
2013 2012 2011
(In thousands

Income (loss) from continuing operations beforome taxes for TR's $§ 3,373 $§ 1628 ¢ 245

Expected Federal income tax provis $ 1,147 ¢ 553 % 83
Preferred dividend of subsidia 31 31 31
Change in valuation allowan: 28 - -

6 (29) -

Other adjustment

Income tax provisiol $ 1212 & 565 § 114

We have identified our Federal tax returns andstate returns in Texas as “majaaXx jurisdictions. The periods subject to examorafior ou
Federal tax returns and state returns in Texathar2010 through 2012 tax years. We believe than@me tax filing positions and deductit
will be sustained on audit and do not anticipatg adjustments that will result in a material chamngeur financial position. Therefore,

reserves for uncertain tax positions have beerrdeco
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The components of our net deferred tax asset veefalaws:

December 31
2013 2012
(In thousands

Deferred tax asset

Secured borrowing- government guaranteed loz ¢ 1028 $ 1,054
Retained interests in transferred as 359 387
Servicing asse 247 268
Net operating losse 28 25
Other 84 69
Total gross deferred tax ass 1,746 1,803
Valuation allowanct 28 -
1,718 1,803
Deferred tax liabilities

Loans receivabl 247 177
Total gross deferred tax liabilitie 247 177
Deferred tax asset, n § 1471 $ 1,626

The net operating loss carryforwards at DecembePB13 were generated by a TRS and are availabdéfdet future taxable income of t
TRS. The net operating loss carryforwards expoenf2027 to 2032.

We paid $976,000, $617,000 and $612,000 in inc@xestduring 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
Note 13. Discontinued Operations, Net of Tax:

Our discontinued operations consisted of the falhgw

Years Ended December &
2013 2012 2011
(In thousands
Net gains (losses) on sales of reale ¢ (16) $ (15) ¢ 532

Net operating losse (227) (582) (690)
Impairment losse (135) (341) (887)
Income tax benefi 31 115 -

Discontinued operations, net of t $ (347) § (823) ¢  (1,045)

Net gains (losses) on sales of real estate gepaepresents gains (losses) on the sale of pregeand income recognition of previot
unamortized gains.

Net operating losses relate to the operations afdirny costs of our REO included in discontinue@mgpions

Impairment losses represent declines in the estundir value of our REO subsequent to initial atilon. Impairment losses during 2(
primarily relate to a retail establishment acquiredhe third quarter of 2009 which experiencedlides in its value. The property was s
during 2013. During 2011, our impairment lossespaimarily related to a full service hospitalitygmerty which was sold during 2013.

Note 14. Dividend Reinvestment and Cash Purchased?l:

We have a dividend reinvestment and cash purchase(ihe “Plan”).Participants in the Plan have the option to reihadisor a portion ¢
dividends received. The purchase price of the ComBiwares is 100% of the average of the closingmidhe Common Shares as publis
for the five trading days immediately prior to tdevidend record date or prior to the optional caslyment purchase date, whicheve
applicable. Our transfer agent, on our behalf, tisesopen market to purchase Common Shares wittepds from the dividend reinvestrr
portion of the Plan.
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Note 15. Profit Sharing Plan:

We have a profit sharing plan available to our-fitie employees after one year of employment. Vgsiicreases ratably to 100% after
sixth year of employment. Pursuant to our profdrstg plan, approximately $235,000, $247,000 ar@#¥X00 was expensed during 2013, -
and 2011, respectively. Contributions to the praifiaring plan are at the discretion of our Boardirot Managers.

Note 16. Share-Based Compensation Plans:

At December 31, 2013, we had options outstandirtpusharesased compensation plans. The 2005 Equity Incelime was approved by ¢
shareholders on June 11, 2005 and permits the gfations to our employees, executive officerd Board of Trust Managers and restrit
shares to our executive officers and Board of Thiahagers for up to 500,000 Common Shares. Weuegetteat these awards better align
interests of our employees, executive officers Badrd of Trust Managers with those of our sharedrsld

Option awards are granted with an exercise priceleg the market price of our Common Shares atlittie of grant and vest immediately u
grant with fiveyear contractual terms. A summary of the statugunfshare options as of December 31, 2013, 2012ahd and the chanc
during the years ended on those dates are as ®llow

2013 2012 2011
Number o Number o Number o
Weighte( Weighte( Weightec
Shares Shares Shares
Underlying Average Underlying Average Underlying Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise
Options Prices Options Prices Options Prices
Outstanding, January 1 112,500 $8.21 94,750 $9.09 90,750 $10.11
Grantec - - 30,000 $7.80 27,000 $8.75
Expired (14,000) $7.65 (12,250) $14.01 (23,000) $12.72
Outstanding and exercisable, Decembe 98,500 $8.29 112,500 $8.21 94,750 $9.09
Weighted-average fair value per share of stockooptgranted
during the yea N/A $0.40 $1.10

The market price of our Common Shares at Decembe?@®L3 is greater than certain of our share opgixercise prices (71,500 shares).
intrinsic value of these share options outstanding) exercisable at December 31, 2013 was approedyrd4,000.

Upon notification of intent to exercise stock opsgour policy is to first verify that the optioase exercisable, then to contact our transfer
instructing them to issue new shares and thenlteatdhe cash proceeds.
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The fair value of each share option granted isveggd on the date of grant using the Black-Schop¢®n{pricing model with the followin
weighted-average assumptions:

Years Ended December @

2012 2011
Assumption:
Expected Term (year: 3.C 3.C
Risk-Free Interest Rai 0.39% 0.71%
Expected Dividend Yieli 8.21% 7.31%
Expected Volatility 21.12% 33.58%
Forfeiture Rate 1.00% 2.00%

The expected term of the options represents thegef time that the options are expected to bstantling and was determined based ol
historical data. The risk-free rate was based en3fear U.S. Treasury rate corresponding to the ergetdrm of the options. We u:
historical information to determine our expectedatitity and forfeiture rates. We recorded compeéiasaexpense of $12,000 and $30,
during 2012 and 2011, respectively, related todlmstion grants.

The following table summarizes information abourehoptions outstanding at December 31, 2013:

Options Outstanding and Exercisa

Weighted
Average Weighted
Remaining
Contract Life Average
Range of Number Exercise
Exercise Prices Qutstanding (in years) Price
$7.80 30,00( 3.44 $7.80
$8.35t0 $8.7! 68,50( 1.62 $8.51
$7.80 to $8.7" 98,50( 2.17 $8.29

A summary of our restricted shares as of DecembefB13, 2012 and 2011 and the changes during éhesyended on those dates ai
follows:

2013 2012 2011
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Gran Average Gran Average Gran

Number o Date Fair Valu Number o Date Fair Valu Number o Date Fair Valu

Shares Per Shart Shares Per Shart Shares Per Shart
Balance, January 1 6,666 $7.75 11,031 $8.57 12,066 $8.35
Grantec 6,666 $7.06 15,000 $7.45 15,000 $8.73
Vested (6,666 $7.74 (19,365) $7.98 (16,035) $8.55
Forfeited - - - - - -
Balance, December : 6,666 $7.13 6,666 $7.75 11,031 $8.57

The restricted share awards generally vest basevoryears of continuous service with aiérd of the shares vesting immediately u
issuance of the shares and dhied vesting at the end of each of the next twargeRestricted share awards provide for accelnssting i
there is a change in control (as defined in tha@)pl&ompensation expense related to the restratiades is being recognized over the ve
periods. We recorded compensation expense of $39%126,000 and $148,000 during 2013, 2012 and ,2fEspectively, related to ¢
restricted share issuances. At December 31, 20&8; tvas $13,000 of total unrecognized compensatipense related to the restricted st
which will be recognized over the next two yearse Bstimated fair value of restricted shares vedteithg 2013 was $48,000.
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Note 17. Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Infaration:

Our non-cash activities were as follows:

Years Ended December ¢

2013 2012 2011
(In thousands
Reclassification from loans receivable to real testavnec § 3641 $ 1481 ¢ 409
Loans receivable originated to facilitate saleseal estate owne § 975 $ 1225 § 1,172
Reclassification from secured borrowings to loatzivable, ne § 1749 % - 3 >

Note 18. Fair Values of Financial Instruments:

For impaired loans measured at fair value on aemnring basis, the following table provides theneated fair value of the related individ
assets. We used Level 3 inputs to determine tlima&std fair value of our impaired loans as follows:

December 31

2013 2012
(In thousands
Impaired loans (1 $ 6,682 $ 11,637

(1) Represents carrying value determined based on nemag's assessment of the estimated fair value of tHateml based on numera
factors including operating statistics to the extamailable, appraised value of the collateral, ssessed value and market environrr

Our retained interests in transferred assets (1Redanterests”pre recorded at estimated fair value measuredreouairing basis using Leve
inputs. In determining the estimated fair valueoof Retained Interests, we use a present valuaitpedh with assumptions of prepaymr
tendencies and a current discount rate. The prepatyrate used was 15% at both December 31, 2012@h2l The discount rate used
11.7% at both December 31, 2013 and 2012. No cles#ies were assumed for our Retained Intereste she SBA has guaranteed
principal on these loans. The estimated fair valti®ur Retained Interests at December 31, 2013 201® was $694,000 and $773,(
respectively.

For REO, our carrying value approximates the eg@chair value at the time of foreclosure and thedr of cost or market thereafter. We
Level 3 inputs to determine the estimated fair gadfi our REO. The carrying value of our REO is lelished at the time of foreclosure ba
upon managemerst’assessment of its fair value based on numeratrfdaincluding operating statistics to the extavailable, the apprais
value of the collateral, tax assessed value andehanvironment. The estimated fair value of outCR& December 31, 2013 and 2012
$1,443,000 and $739,000, respectively.
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The following is the activity for our REO:

Years Ended
December 31

2013 2012
(In thousands
Value- beginning of yea $ 739 % 1,259
Foreclosure: 3,641 1,481
Cost of sale: (2,799) (1,660)
Impairment losse (135) (341)
Value- end of yea $ 1,446 % 739

The estimated fair values of those financial insieats which are not recorded at fair value on omsolidated balance sheets were as follows

December 31

2013 2012
Estimated Estimated
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value Level
(In thousands
Assets:
Loans Receivable Subject To Credit R ¢ 198,750 ¢ 184,453 ¢ 200,642 ¢ 181,112 3
SBA 7(a) loans receivable, subject to secured bongs 37,839 42,490 38,349 43,096 3
Liabilities:
SBIC debentures payak 27,500 25,790 17,190 18,027 3
Secured borrowing- government guaranteed loc 40,427 40,427 41,008 41,008 3
Revolving credit facility 14,400 14,400 11,900 11,900 3
Junior Subordinated Not 27,070 25,197 27,070 22,592 3

Managemens estimation of the fair value of our financialtmsnents is based on a Level 3 valuation in thevialue hierarchy established
disclosure of how a company values its financiatruiments. In general, quoted market prices frotiveenarkets for the identical financ
instrument (Level 1 inputs), if available, should bsed to value a financial instrument. If quotedgs are not available for the ident
financial instrument, then a determination shouddrbade if Level 2 inputs are available. Level 2utspinclude quoted prices for simi
financial instruments in active markets for ideatior similar financial instruments in markets tha¢ not active {.e., markets in which the
are few transactions for the financial instrumetits, prices are not current, price quotations wafystantially, or in which little information
released publicly). There is limited reliable markdormation for our financial instruments and wilize other methodologies to value th
since there are no Level 1 or Level 2 determinatiavailable. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inghas are used to measure fair value v
observable inputs are not available.

In general, estimates of fair value may differ frima carrying amounts of the financial assets aiiilities primarily as a result of the effects
discounting future cash flows. Considerable judgniemequired to interpret market data and develsiimates of fair value. Accordingly,
estimates presented may not be indicative of theuas we could realize in a current market exchange

Loans Receivable Subject To Credit ROur loans receivable are recorded at cost and tedjus/ net loan origination fees and discount
order to determine the estimated fair value ofloans receivable, we use a present value techrigqube anticipated future cash flows us
certain assumptions including a discount rate baseclirrent market interest rates, prepayment teside and potential loan losses. Signifi
increases (decreases) in any of these inputs latimo would result in a significantly lower (highefair value measurement. Reserves
established
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based on numerous factors including, but not lichte the creditos payment history, collateral value, guarantor sup@xpected future ca
flows and other factors. In the absence of a rgaitertainable market value, the estimated valuioloans receivable may differ from
values that would be placed on the portfolio ifady market for the loans receivable existed.

SBA 7(a) loans receivable, subject to secured lvanmgs: Represents the government guaranteed portion ofladiich were sold with tl
proceeds received from the sale reflected as sedmeowings — government guaranteed loans (alitigloin our consolidated balance sheet
see below). There is no credit risk associated Wiélse loans since the SBA has guaranteed payrhém principal. In order to determine
estimated fair value of our loans receivable, we agpresent value technique for the anticipateagréutash flows using certain assumpt
including a discount rate based on current marketést rates taking into account the lack of ¢nésk and prepayment tendencies.

SBIC debentures payable and Junior Subordinate@d\dhe estimated fair value is based on a presenewadiculation based on prices of
same or similar instruments after considering miatik&s, current interest rates and remaining emtral maturities.

Secured borrowings — government guaranteed lo@hs: estimated fair value approximates cost asritezast rate on these secured borrow
approximates current market interest rates. Inculde unamortized deferred cash premiums collemteithie sale of the government guaran
portions of the loans.

Revolving credit facilityThe carrying amount is a reasonable estimatiomiofvhlue as the interest rate on this instrumenariable and is a
current market interest rate.

Note 19. Commitments and Contingencies:

Loan Commitment

Commitments to extend credit are agreements totlermdcustomer provided the terms establisheddrctmtract are met. Our outstanding
commitments and approvals to fund new loans wepecasimately $13.6 million at December 31, 2013, mhajority of which were for prime-
based loans to be originated under the SBA 7(ayrBro, the government guaranteed portion of whicimtiesnded to be sold. Commitme
generally have fixed expiration dates. Since soamemitments are expected to expire without beingvdrapon, total commitment amounts
not necessarily represent future cash requirements.

Operating Lease

We lease office space in Dallas, Texas under & ledsch expires in February 2015. Future minimuasépayments under this lease a
follows:

Years Ending

December 31, Total
(In thousands
2014 $ 217
2015 36
$ 253

Rent expense amounted to $185,000, $187,000 argj(fi¥during 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Employment Agreemer

We have employment agreements with our two exeeutiVicers. Effective with the closing of the mergeur two executive officers w
become parties to amended and restated employrgesgraents which will amend and restate their exgsémployment agreements. Ur
certain circumstances, as defined within the ageses) the agreements provide for (1) severance ensgtion or change in control paymi
to the executive officer in an amount equal to 2i8fs the average of the last three years anmumapensation paid to the executive officer
(2) death and disability payments in an amount etpuivo times and one time, respectively, the atmompensation paid to the execu
officer.
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Pursuant to the amended and restated employmesgtragnts (effective with the closing of the mergerthe extent the executive is emplo
by the Company on January 1, 2016 and such execigiviot entitled to any disability, death or sewee payments, the executive wc
receive restricted share awards as a retentionsbehich would vest immediately upon grant. In agate, our two executive officers wo
receive 525,000 share awards.

Litigation

REIT Redux, L.P. et al v. PMC Commercial Trustale. On October 9, 2013, a putative class action advative lawsuit was filed in tl
Dallas County Court at Law No. 5 in Dallas Counfgxas against and purportedly on behalf of PMC Cencial. The complaint named
defendants PMC Commercial, members of the Boaruét Managers and executive officers of PMC Conmaéand CIM Urban REIT. Tt
plaintiffs asserted the action as a direct actianell as a derivative action and alleged, amdhgrdhings, that the Board of Trust Manay
breached the PMC Commercial Declaration of Trust emnspired to deprive the plaintiffs and the claksheir right to vote to approve
decline the merger, to approve or decline of thHe saPMC Commercial and to approve or declineahthorization of the PMC Commerc
common shares necessary to support the convergjbts rof the PMC Commercial preferred shares tasseed pursuant to the mer
agreement. The plaintiffs alleged, among othergsijrthat the Board of Trust Managers breachedidiscifary duties by approving a
recommending the transactions to the shareholdérouwt due regard for the fairness of the transactfailing to maximize value for t
shareholders, engaging in bad faith and detiling by preferring transactions that furtherighred the trust managers at the expense (
shareholders, and conspiring to deprive the shadef®of their voting power and prerogatives. Thenplaint alleged that CIM Urban RE
aided, abetted and induced those breaches of éiduduty. The complaint further alleged that theses of action were aggravated by g
negligence and intentional and malicious wrongdoifige complaint sought an order enjoining a votdhentransactions contemplated by
merger agreement, an order certifying the mattea atass action for damages, damages for lost Isblaler value, exemplary damag
attorneys fees and costs, appointment of a receiver, ficiso demands, in order to preserve and maxistizeeholder value, and all ot
such relief as the court may find reasonable awessary to which plaintiffs may be entitled. Weiddrall of the allegations in the complaint.

As of January 28, 2014, we entered into settleragnéements with the plaintiffs subject to courtrappl. Under the terms of a class

derivative settlement agreement, CIM Service PrwitlLC (“Manager”), a subsidiary of CIM Group, LLébntrolled by CIM Group, LLG
three founders, Richard Ressler, Avi Shemesh amdlStuba, agreed to purchase up to 2.75 million @o@m Shares of PMC Commercia
market prices of up to $5.00 per share under a-10t&ding plan. The trading plan will generally gepon the date that 2.75 million P}
Commercial Common Shares have been purchased arsAli§, 2014, whichever is earlier. Also, pursuard separate settlement agreen
Manager agreed to purchase up to 500,000 PMC Cooeh&ommon Shares owned by REIT Redux, L.P. atigemf $5.00 per share,
requested by REIT Redux, L.P. and its other “repgrpersons’to do so at any time between July 10, 2014 and g, 2014. In additio
PMC Commercial has agreed to pay reasonable ajtsrfems and expenses of plaintiftsunsel, as may be awarded by the court, of $70z

We are self-insured for the deductible amounts viode director and officerdiability insurance policy. The deductible undee thitigatior
described above is $250,000; thus, a portion ottsts related to this litigation may be reimburbgdnsurance.

In the normal course of business we are periodigltty to certain legal actions and proceedingslinng matters that are generally incide
to our business i(e., collection of loans receivable). In managemempinion, the resolution of these legal actiond proceedings will n
have a material adverse effect on our consoliditedcial statements.

Merger Relate(
Up to approximately $3.8 million of transaction $eeelated to the potential merger are contingenhugmnsummation of the merger.
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SBA Related

If the SBA establishes that a loss on an SBA guaesghloan is attributable to significant technideficiencies in the manner in which the |
was originated, funded or serviced by our SBLC,3BA may seek recovery of the principal loss relatethe deficiency from us. With resp
to the guaranteed portion of SBA loans that havenlsold, the SBA will first honor its guarantee @hdn seek compensation from us in
event that a loss is deemed to be attributabledbriical deficiencies. Based on historical expeeemve do not expect that this contingent
probable to be asserted. However, if asserteduitddoe material to the financial statements.

In certain instances, including liquidation or aoff of an SBA guaranteed loan, we may have aivable for the SBAS guaranteed porti
of legal fees, operating expenses, property tagds, etc. related to the loan or the collateralofuforeclosure). While we believe exper
incurred were justified and necessary for the eauek preservation of the collateral and within teablished rules of the SBA, there can b
assurance that the SBA will reimburse us. In addjtreimbursement from the SBA is a time consunaind lengthy process and the SBA |
seek compensation from us related to reimbursewfestpenses which it does not believe were necgdsathe care and preservation of
loan or its collateral. Although the SBA has negleclined to reimburse us for its portion of mategigpenses, no assurance can be givel
the SBA would not do so in the future. We have eatdd our SBA receivables and believe that oumfife statements fairly reflect the
receivables at their appropriate net realizablee/al

Pursuant to SBA rules and regulations, distribigifmom our SBLC and SBICs are limited. In orderofgerate as a small business len
company, a licensee is required to maintain a minminmet worth (as defined by SBA regulations) of ghneater of (1) 10% of the outstanc
loans receivable of our SBLC or (2) $1.0 milliors well as certain other regulatory restrictionshsas change in control provisions.
December 31, 2013, approximately $2.1 million weailable for payment of dividends from our SBLC.
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PMC COMMERCIAL TRUST AND SUBSIDIARIES
MORTGAGE LOANS ON REAL ESTATE
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2013
(Dollars in thousands, except footnotes)

Conventional Loans - States 2% or greater (1):

Geographic Number Final Carrying
Dispersion of of Size of Loans Interest Rate Maturity Amount of
Mortgages
Collateral Loans  From To Variable (2) Fixed Date (3

Texas(4) 17 $0  $3,00( 3.00% to 7.25¢ - 1/21/1%--8/16/31  $ 19,587
Texas 1C $0  $2,00( - 7.00% to 10.78¢  4/23/1¢--11/18/30 6,08(
Arizona 6 $0  $5,000 3.25% to 7.50¢ - 2/10/2%--9/14/31 10,71¢
Arizona 7 $0  $3,00( - 7.50% to 10.00¢ 1/1/1¢--5/2/33 6,741
North Caroling 6 $0  $2,000 3.75% to 6.25¢ - 6/11/21--12/27/33 6,18t
North Caroling 4 $0  $3,00( - 7.50% to 9.85%  12/20/1t--5/22/32 4,447
Virginia 7 $0 $6,000  3.25% to 7.00¢ - 1/30/2%--7/22/33 17,45:
Virginia 2 $0 $1,00( - 7.50% to 8.50% 6/1/17--8/21/27 1,18¢
Ohio 6 $0 $3,000  3.25% to 4.25¢ - 10/27/2%--4/21/28 10,66:
Michigan 6 $0 $4,000  3.12% to 7.25¢ - 2/10/2¢--5/10/33 9,031
Missouri 4 $0 $2,000  4.25% to 7.00¢ - 6/27/16--10/31/33 5,72¢
Missouri 2 $0 $1,00( - 8.25% 8/31/18 721
Georgia 3 $0  $2,000 3.75% to 4.5% - 12/26/17--12/14/2" 2,06(
Georgia 3 $0  $2,00( - 8.75% to 10.25¢  3/24/1¢--12/1/29 2,33¢
Florida 4 $0  $3,000 3.37% to 5.74¢ - 11/1/2%--10/31/33 6,544
Florida 1 $0  $2,00( - 7.50% 2/5/33 1,33¢
Oregon 2 $0  $4,000 4.50% to 7.25¢ - 9/8/2¢--5/13/30 4,991
Oregon 3 $0  $1,00( - 9.00% to 9.90% 2/2/1¢-6/13/21 1,66¢
Tennesse 5 $0 $3,000 3.91% to 6.75¢ - 8/1/27--10/31/33 6,41(
Alabama 3 $0 $3,000  3.75% to 4.25¢ - 11/21/2(--10/1/26 5,00¢
Alabama 2 $0 $1,00( - 9.50% 6/15/1&--10/27/18 902
Indiana 5 $0 $2,000  3.75% to 8.25¢ - 12/4/2%--2126/32 5,64¢
California 3 $0 $2,00( 4.00% to 4.5% - 3/22/2%--12/13/26 3,39¢
California 1 $0  $1,00( - 9.00% 12/28/24 734
Pennsylvani 2 $0  $4,000 4.25% to 7.00¢ - 9/29/2--8/1/32 4,251
Pennsylvani 1 $0  $3,00( - 10.25% 6/22/20 2,09(
Mississippi 1 $0  $4,00( 7.25% - 12/1/32 3,08t
Mississippi 2 $0  $1,00( - 8.00% to 9.50%  6/12/1¢-12/26/22 1,09¢
lowa 3 $0  $2,000 4.25% to 6.95¢ - 9/30/1¢--5/30/26 3,721
Other 1C $0 $3,000  2.75% to 6.75¢ - 3/19/17--3/21/33 11,34:
Other(5) 7 $0 $2,00( - 6.75% to 9.78%  8/20/1+-12/16/30 4,77C

13¢ $ 169,93
Footnotes:

(1) There is one loan which is secured by a secondoliethe propery which is subordinated to our flish on the property
(2) Certain loans at variable interest rates have ietgrrate floors which may be in effe

(3) Excludes general reserves of $1,245,(

(4) Includes two loans with a face value of $3,116,800 valuation reserves of $812,01
(5) Insludes one loan with a face value of $1,032,00 avaluation reserve of $573,0(
(6) For Federal income tax purposes, the cost bas@uoinortgage loans on real estate was approxima#é[§2,183,000 (unauditec
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SCHEDULE IV
PMC COMMERCIAL TRUST AND SUBSIDIARIES
MORTGAGE LOANS ON REAL ESTATE
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2013
(Dollars in thousands, except footnotes)

SBA 7(a) Loans - States 2% or greatefl) :

Principal amount

Geographic Number Final Carrying of loans subject tc
Dispersion of of Size of Loans Maturity Amount of delinquent principal
Interest Rate Mortgages
Collateral Loans From To (2) Date (3) or “interest”
Michigan 23 $0 $1,00( 5.25% to 6.00¢ 12/28/1'--11/27/3¢ 5,25¢ =
Texas(4) 32 $0 $1,00( 4.13% to 6.00¢ 4/26/1¢-10/31/38 $  3,66( $ -
Ohio 17 $0 $1,00( 5.25% to 6.00¢ 10/16/2(--8/12/38 3,957 =
North Caroling 6 $0 $50(C 5.75% to 6.00¢ 9/8/3z--5/6/38 1,767 -
Virginia 7 $0 $50( 6.00% 9/6/3€--11/21/38 1,60 =
Florida 8 $0 $50(C 5.75% to 6.00¢ 6/19/1¢--11/7/38 1,43¢ -
Indiana 9 $0 $50( 4.75% to 6.00¢ 11/19/1¢--8/30/37 1,430 =
Wisconsin 7 $0 $50(C 5.00% to 6.00¢ 4/23/2(--7/17/38 1,37% -
llinois 5 $0 $50( 5.75% to 6.00¢ 3/26/1¢--9/18/37 1,17¢ =
Kentucky 5 $0 $50(C 6.00% 4/9/35--12/27/37 1,04% -
Mississippi 3 $0 $50( 5.75% to 6.00¢ 5/18/3¢--11/4/36 99¢ =
Alabama 4 $0 $50(C 5.00% to 6.00¢ 7/27/25--8/25/36 91€ -
lowa 4 $0 $50( 5.75% to 6.00¢ 12/22/3%--5/21/38 89¢ =
Conneticut 2 $0 $50( 5.13% to 5.63¢ 12/5/1+-11/30/36 62C
Arizona 4 $0 $50( 5.75% to 6.00¢ 1/12/3:--4/28/36 61€
Other(5) 47 $0 $50( 4.75% to 6.00¢ 1/31/1%--9/13/37 4,18¢ -
Government guaranteed portic(6) 19C -
SBA 7(a) loans, subject to secured borrowi(7) 37,40¢ -
182 $ 68,53, (8) $ =
Footnotes:

(1) Includes approximately $419,000 of loans not setimereal estate. Also includes $306,000 of loaitis subordinate lien position:

(2) Interest rates are variable at spreads over thengrirate unless otherwise not

(3) Excludes general reserves of $633,(

(4) Includes a loan with a face value of $85,000, aiatibn reserve of $19,000 and a fixed interest oit6.00%.

(5) Includes a loan with a face value of $25,000, aiatibn reserve of $2,000 and a fixed interest wHt6.25%.

(6) Represents the government guaranteed portionsroBBA 7(a) loans detailed above. As there is nio oisloss to us related to these portions of thergoteed loans, the geographic information is
presented as it is not meaningf

(7) Represents the guaranteed portion of loans whiaie weld with the proceeds received from the salectd as secured borrowing

(8) For Federal income tax purposes, the cost bas@uofoans was approximately $29,573,000 (unaudit
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SCHEDULE IV
PMC COMMERCIAL TRUST AND SUBSIDIARIES
MORTGAGE LOANS ON REAL ESTATE
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2013
(In thousands, except footnotes)

Balance at December 31, 20 $ 233,218
Additions during period
New mortgage loar(1) 39,524
Other- deferral for collection of commitment fees, netobts 410
Other- accretion of loan fees and discou 17 39,951

Deductions during periot

Collections of principa (21,473)

Foreclosure: 409

Cost of mortgages sold, r (16,400)

Other- bad debt expense, net of recove (460) (38,742)
Balance at December 31, 20 $ 234,427

Additions during period

New mortgage loar(2) 55,387

Other- deferral for collection of commitment fees, netosts 421

Other- accretion of loan fees and discou 204 56,012

Deductions during periot

Collections of principa (28,562)

Foreclosure: (1,481)

Cost of mortgages sold, r (19,471)

Other- bad debt expense, net of recove (1,934) (51,448)
Balance at December 31, 20 $ 238,991

Additions during period

New mortgage loar(3) 57,106

Other- deferral for collection of commitment fees, netobts 326

Other- accretion of loan fees and discou 317 57,749

Deductions during periot

Collections of principa (28,561)

Foreclosure: (3,641)

Cost of mortgages sold, r (24,963)

Reclassification from secured borrowing to loarceieable (1,749)

Other- bad debt expense, net of recove (1,237, (60,151)
Balance at December 31, 20 $ 236,589
Footnotes:

(1) Includes a loan of $1,172,000 which was origéabin connection with the sale of real estate awvhich did not require cash expenditure.
(2) Includes a loan of $1,225,000 which was origgubin connection with the sale of real estate awvhich did not require cash expenditure.
(3) Includes a loan of $975,000 which was origimkite connection with the sale of real estate owwaéth did not require cash expenditure.
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Exhibit
Number

2.1

2.2

2.3

3.1

3.1(a)

3.1(b)

3.1(c)

3.2

3.2(a)
4.1

4.2

EXHIBIT INDEX

Description
Agreement and Plan of Merger by and between PMC @ertial Trust and PM

Capital, Inc. dated March 27, 2003 (incorporatedrdéference to Annex A to t
Registrar’s Registration Statement on For-4 dated November 10, 200:

Amendment No. 1 to Agreement and Plan of Mergewbeh PMC Commerci
Trust and PMC Capital, Inc. dated August 1, 200Rdiporated by reference
Exhibit 2.5 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on

Form 1(-Q filed on August 12, 2003

Agreement and Plan of Merger by and among CIM UrBdT, LLC, CIM
Merger Sub, LLC, PMC Commercial Trust and Southfielérger Sub, LLC date
July 8, 2013 (incorporated by reference to Anneto Ahe Registrant’ Registratio
Statement on Form-4 dated December 30, 201

Declaration of Trust (incorporated by referencdhte exhibits to the Registraat’
Registration Statement on Forml$-filed with the Commission on June 25, 1!
as amended (Registration No-65910)).

Amendment No. 1 to Declaration of Trust (incorpechby reference to the exhit
to the Registrant’'s Registration Statement on F8#bi filed with the Commissic
on June 25, 1993, as amended (Registration M-65910)).

Amendment No. 2 to Declaration of Trust (incorpechtby reference to t
Registrar’s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 19!

Amendment No. 3 to Declaration of Trust dated Fabyul0, 2004 (incorporat
by reference to the Registrant's Annual Report omF10K for the year ende
December 31, 2003

Bylaws (incorporated by reference to the exhihitshte Registran$’ Registratio
Statement on Form $t filed with the Commission on June 25, 1993, rasrade:
(Registration No. 3-65910)).

Amendment No. 1 to Bylaws (incorporated by refeeeno Exhibit 3.1 to tF
Registrar’s Current Report on Forn-K filed on April 16, 2009)

Instruments defining the rights of security holdemhe instruments filed
response to items 3.1 and 3.2 are incorporatdusritem by reference

Debenture dated March 4, 2005 for $4,000,000 loé&h ®BA (incorporated L
reference to the Registrant’'s Annual Report on FAOK for the year ende
December 31, 2005

E-1
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4.3 Debenture dated September 6, 2011 for $5,000,080 Wwith SBA (incorporated |
reference to Exhibit 4.5 to the Registrant’'s AnnRa&lport on Form 16 for the yea
ended December 31, 201

4.4 Debenture dated September 19, 2012 for $2,000680 With SBA (incorporated |
reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant's Quéart&keport on Form 1@ for the
quarterly period ended September 30, 20

4.5 Debenture dated September 19, 2012 for $2,0000@9 With SBA (incorporated |
reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Registrant's Quért&keport on Form 1@ for the
quarterly period ended September 30, 20

4.6 Debenture dated March 4, 2013 for $3,000,000 loath BBA (incorporated &
reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant's Qué&rt&keport on Form 1@ for the
quarterly period ended March 31, 201

4.7 Debenture dated March 4, 2013 for $3,000,000 loath BBA (incorporated t
reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Registrant's Quéart&keport on Form 1@ for the
quarterly period ended March 31, 201

4.8 Debenture dated August 30, 2013 for $5,000,000 lvith SBA (incorporated L
reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant’'s Quért&eport on Form 1@ for the
quarterly period ended September 30, 20

4.9 Debenture dated August 30, 2013 for $3,500,000 Mith SBA (incorporated k
reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Registrant's Quéart&keport on Form 1@ for the
quarterly period ended September 30, 20

+10.1 2005 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by refeseto Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’
Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 20
104 Amended and Restated Credit Agreement between Pi@ng&rcial Trust and Fit

Western SBLC, Inc. and JPMorgan Chase Bank, NdtioAasociation, &
Administrative Agent, dated December 28, 2010 (ipooated by reference to Exhi
10.1 to the Registra’s Current Report on Forn-K filed January 3, 2011

+10.5 Executive Employment Contract with Jan F. Salit edatDecember 11, 20
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thegRtrant’s Current Report on Form 8:
K filed December 13, 2012

10.6 Purchase Agreement among PMC Commercial Trust, Mvierred Capital Trus-
and Taberna Preferred Funding |, Ltd. dated Ma&h2005 (incorporated by referel
to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Repon Form 10Q for the quarterl
period ended March 31, 200!

10.7 Junior Subordinated Indenture between PMC Commiefeisst and JPMorgan Che
Bank, National Association as Trustee dated Maggh2D05 (incorporated by referel
to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Rdpon Form 10Q for the quarterl
period ended March 31, 200!
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10.8 Amended and Restated Trust Agreement among PMC @ocieth Trust, JPMorgz
Chase Bank, National Association, Chase Bank US#tjoNal Association and T
Administrative Trustees Named Herein dated March 2605 (incorporated |
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant’s QerdytReport on Form 1@ for the
quarterly period ended March 31, 20C

10.9 Preferred Securities Certificate (incorporated keference to Exhibit 10.4 to t
Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form QOfor the quarterly period ended March
2005).

10.10 Floating Rate Junior Subordinated Note due 203%ofporated by reference

Exhibit 10.5 to the Registrant's Quarterly Report Borm 10Q for the quarterl
period ended March 31, 200!

10.11 Form of Indemnification Agreement (incorporated teference to the Registraat’
Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 20(
10.12 First Amendment to Amended and Restated Credit é&gent among PM

Commercial Trust, First Western SBLC, Inc., and #)an Chase Bank, Natio
Association, as Administrative Agent, and the lesdeamed therein, dated Juni
2011 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1hi Registrans Current Report ¢
Form &K filed with the SEC on June 10, 201

10.13 Second Amended and Restated Revolving Note exediytd®MC Commercial Tru
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to thegidtrants Current Report on Fo
8-K filed with the SEC on June 10, 201

10.14 First Amended and Restated Revolving Note exechte&irst Western SBLC, In
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to thegiRtrants Current Report on Fo
8-K filed with the SEC on June 10, 201

10.15 Second Amendment to Amended and Restated Crediefggnt (incorporated
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s CatriReport on Form & filed with the
SEC on June 20, 201

+10.1¢ Executive Employment Contract with Barry N. Berlitated December 11, 2C
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to thegidtrants Current Report on Fo
8-K filed with the SEC on December 13, 201

10.17 Third Amendment to Amended and Restated Credit é&gent dated August 5, 2C
(incorporated by reference Exhibit 10.1 to the Reghts Quarterly Report on Fol
1C-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 20

+10.1¢ Amended and Restated Executive Employment Contmatlt Jan F. Salit date
August 30, 2013 (incorporated by reference to EkHiB.1 to the Registrarg’Curren
Report on Form-K filed with the SEC on August 30, 201.
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*

*%

+

+10.19

10.20

*21.1
*23.1
*31.1
*31.2
**32.1
**32.2
101.INS
101.SCtH
101.CAL
101.DEF
101.LAB
101.PRE

Filed herewith

Furnished herewitt
Management contract or compensatory |

Amended and Restated Executive Employment ConiritictBarry N. Berlin date
August 30, 2013 (incorporated by reference to BExHiB.2 to the Registrarg’
Current Report on Formr-K filed with the SEC on August 30, 201.

Consent to Assignment and Limited Waiver to Agreetrand Plan of Merge
dated as of November 20, 2013, by and among PMCn@wuial Trust, CIN
Urban REIT, LLC, Southfork Merger Sub, LLC, and CMWkerger Sub, LLC, tF
terms of which were acknowledged and agreed to bgva subsidiary formed |
CIM Urban REIT, LLC, Urban Partners Il, LLC (incamated by reference
Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Reportramm 8K filed with the SEC o
November 22, 2013

Subsidiaries of the Registre

Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers |

Section 302 Officer Certificatio- Chief Executive Office
Section 302 Officer Certificatio- Chief Financial Office
Section 906 Officer Certificatio— Chief Executive Office
Section 906 Officer Certificatio— Chief Financial Office
XBRL Instance Documer

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docum

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docuntr
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurt
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Docum

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doent
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Exhibit 21.1
Subsidiaries of Registrant

State
of

Company Incorporation
PMC Investment Corporatic Florida
Western Financial Capital Corporati Florida
First Western SBLC, Inc Florida
PMC Funding Corp Florida
PMC Asset Holding, LLC Delaware
PMCT Asset Holding, LLC Delaware
PMC Preferred Capital Tri-A Delaware
PMC Properties, Inc Delaware
FW Asset Holding, LLC Delaware

Southfork Merger Sub, LL( Delaware



Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referéndie Registration Statement on Form S-3D (N®-323767) and Form S-8 (No. 333-
127531) of PMC Commercial Trust of our report datéatch 10, 2014 relating to the financial stateragfibhancial statement schedule anc
effectiveness of internal control over financigdoeting, which appears in this Form 10-K.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Dallas, Texas
March 10, 2014



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION

I, Jan F. Salit, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of PMC Commercial Trus

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omététe a material fact necess
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madepisieiading with respect
the period covered by this repc

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements$ atimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of opgerst and cash flows of the registrant as of, andtfee periods presented in |

report;

4.  The registran$ other certifying officer and | are responsible dstablishing and maintaining disclosure contewld procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15)) and internal control over financial repogtifas defined in Exchange /
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a)

b)

d)

designed such disclosure controls and proceduresaused such disclosure controls and procedurée tdesigne
under our supervision, to ensure that material rinédion relating to the registrant, including itsneolidate
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others withose entities, particularly during the period ihigh this report i
being preparec

designed such internal control over financial répgr or caused such internal control over finahodporting to b
designed under our supervision, to provide readeratsurance regarding the reliability of financigporting and tt
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadtisclosure controls and procedures and presentedis report ot
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disctosantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered by th
report based on such evaluation;

disclosed in this report any change in the tegi¢'s internal control over financial reporting thatooed during th
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regidts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of annual rHptirat ha
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to evadlly affect, the registrard’internal control over financial reportii
and

5. The registran$ other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxh on our most recent evaluation of internal @britver financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitaadmmittee of the registramst’board of directors (or persons performing
equivalent functions)

a)

b)

Date:03/10/14

all significant deficiencies and material weaknessehe design or operation of internal contra¢iofinancial reportin
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectitbgistrants ability to record, process, summarize and refmaihcia
information; anc

any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesnaggement or other employees who have a significdatin the
registran’'s internal control over financial reportir

/s/ Jan F. Salit
Jan F. Sali
Chief Executive Office




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION

[, Barry N. Berlin, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of PMC Commercial Trus

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omététe a material fact necess
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madepisieiading with respect
the period covered by this repc

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements$ atimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of opgerst and cash flows of the registrant as of, andtfee periods presented in |

report;

4.  The registran$ other certifying officer and | are responsible dstablishing and maintaining disclosure contewld procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15)) and internal control over financial repogtifas defined in Exchange /
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a)

b)

d)

designed such disclosure controls and proceduresaused such disclosure controls and procedurée tdesigne
under our supervision, to ensure that material rinédion relating to the registrant, including itsneolidate
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others withose entities, particularly during the period ihigh this report i
being preparec

designed such internal control over financial répgr or caused such internal control over finahodporting to b
designed under our supervision, to provide readeratsurance regarding the reliability of financigporting and tt
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadtisclosure controls and procedures and presentedis report ot
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disctosantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered by th
report based on such evaluation;

disclosed in this report any change in the tegi¢'s internal control over financial reporting thatooed during th
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth quarter in the case of an annual repbd) has material
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5. The registran$ other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxh on our most recent evaluation of internal @britver financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitaadmmittee of the registramst’board of directors (or persons performing
equivalent functions)

a)

b)

Date:03/10/14

all significant deficiencies and material weaknessehe design or operation of internal contra¢iofinancial reportin
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectitbgistrants ability to record, process, summarize and refmaihcia
information; anc

any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesnaggement or other employees who have a significdatin the
registran’'s internal control over financial reportir

/s/ Barry N. Berlin
Barry N. Berlin
Chief Financial Office




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of PMC Comnier@rust (the “Company”) on Form 1R-for the period ended December 31, 2
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiothe date hereof (the “Report)Jan F. Salit, Chief Executive Officer of the Quamy
certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adoptedyant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2@@&, to the best of my knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the reguments of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securlrshange Act of 1934, as amended,;

2. The information contained in the Repantly presents, in all material respects, theriitial condition and results of operation:
the Company.

/s/ Jan F. Sal

Jan F. Sali

Chief Executive Office
March 10, 201«



EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of PMC Comnier@rust (the “Company”) on Form 1R-for the period ended December 31, 2
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissio the date hereof (the “Reportl),Barry N. Berlin, Chief Financial Officer of t
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350adspted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbadeley Act of 2002, that to the best of
knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the reguments of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securklrshange Act of 1934, as amended,;

2. The information contained in the Repantly presents, in all material respects, theriitial condition and results of operation:
the Company.

/s/ Barry N. Berlir
Barry N. Berlin

Chief Financial Office
March 10, 201«




